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City of McAllen, Texas 

Management Discussion and Analysis 


September 30, 2012 


THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

The Ciry's Condensed Net Assets Information is presented in the tab le be low. 

Net Assets Information 
(in Millions) 

Toml 
Governmental Business-l)pC Primal)' 

ACli vt ies Aa ivitie s Gove mmem 
2012 2011 2012 201 1 2012 2011 

Current and ot her assets I 151 $ 148 $ 125 S 115 $ 276 $ 263 

Capit al assets 259 266 391 369 650 635 


Total assets $ 410 $ 414 $ 51 6 $ 484 $ 926 $ 898 

Long-ternl debl oUlSlanding 35 36 143 132 $ 178 $ 168 
Other liabilities 21 16 12 II JJ 27 

Total tiabilitie s 56 52 155 143 211 195 

Net asselS : 
In-.e sted in capital assets, 

net of related debt 23' 244 269 254 50J 498 
Res(riCled 3' 32 29 29 63 61 
UnrestriCled 86 86 63 58 149 144 

Total net assets I 354 I 362 $ 36 1 $ 341 $ 715 $ 703 

Net asset s of the City's governmenta l activities reflected no change from last year; however after the 
transfer of $16M of capital assets to business type activiti es resu lted in a decrease of $SM. After the 
capital assets transferred, capital assets, net of related debt category decreased by $10M whi le restricted 
increased by $2M and with no change to unrestricted . Unrestricted net assets is the ponion of net assets, 
which can be utilized to finance day-to-day opera tions, free of any consrraints estab lished by debt 
covenants, enab ling leg islation or other lega l requirements. 

The net assets of the City 's business·type act iv ities decreased $4M or 50% less than last year's amount. 
before the $16M transfer of capita l assets from governmental activities. Generally the City can only use 
these net assets to finance continuing operations and capital ex penses of the enterprise fund s. 

The table on th e fo llowing page presents mOre detail on revenues and expenses. 
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City of McAllen, Texas 

Management Discussion and Analysis 


September 30, 2012 


CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $650M in net capital assets. 

Capital Assets at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation, in Millions) 
Total 

Governmental Business-type Primary 
Activities Activities Government 

2012 2011 2012 2011 20 12 201 I 

Land $ 47 $ 48 $ 21 $ 20 $ 68 $ 68 
Buildings and improvements 69 65 275 267 344 332 
Equipment 22 22 19 20 41 42 
Infra structure 77 78 77 78 
Construct ion in progress 44 53 62 48 106 101 
Capi tali zed interest 7 7 7 7 
Water rights 7 7 7 7 

Totals $ 259 $ 266 $ 391 $ 369 $ 650 $ 635 

This yea r's major additions included the following projects (in millions): 

New McAllen li brary $4 

Street projects financed by the City directly and dedicated by developers ($1 M) J 

Drainage projects J 

Water and sewer improvement projects 10 

A irport projects ~ 


Total ill 

For more de tailed info nnation o n capital asset activity, refer to the notes to financ ia l state me nts (refer 10 

pages 74 and 76). 
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

 

ASSETS

Cash 2,266,445$            3,335,090$             5,601,535$              

Certificate of deposits 23,940,080 3,305,962 27,246,042

Investments 106,200,321 21,979,962 128,180,283

Receivables, net 20,569,699 6,976,999 27,546,698

Internal balances (3,457,068) 3,457,068 -

Inventories - 310,896 310,896

Notes receivable - 168,702 168,702

Deferred charges 279,664 2,520,990 2,800,654

Restricted assets - 82,715,938 82,715,938

Capital assets not being depreciated:

 Land 47,111,423 21,147,150 68,258,573

 Construction in progress 43,662,463 61,699,097 105,361,560

Capital assets being depreciated:

  Buildings and systems 63,737,943 229,559,974 293,297,917

  Equipment 72,472,450 48,944,568 121,417,018

  Improvements 40,056,357 216,184,694 256,241,051

  Infrastructure 179,561,099 - 179,561,099

  Water rights - 7,123,100 7,123,100

    Accumulated depreciation (188,078,556) (193,721,285) (381,799,841)

Other long term assets 1,246,791 609,713 1,856,504

 Total assets 409,569,111$        516,318,618$         925,887,729$          

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,135,243$          9,575,843$             25,711,086$            

Unearned revenues 558,431 2,118,705 2,677,136

Other 3,697,936 244,012 3,941,948

Non-current liabilities:

 Due within one year 7,281,970 6,618,000 13,899,970

 Due in more than one year 26,660,742 136,519,838 163,180,580

 Net OPEB obligation 1,049,270 - 1,049,270

 Net pension obligation 275,507 - 275,507

 Total liabilities 55,659,099 155,076,398 210,735,497

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 234,246,829 269,408,160 503,654,989

Restricted for:

 Economic Development 26,415,082 - 26,415,082

 Capital projects - 20,349,242 20,349,242

 Debt service 273,111 3,993,602 4,266,713

 Distribution of net surplus revenues - 4,610,438 4,610,438

 Other purposes 6,732,690 - 6,732,690

Unrestricted 86,242,300 62,880,778 149,123,078

Total net assets 353,910,012 361,242,220 715,152,232

Total liabilities and net assets 409,569,111$        516,318,618$         925,887,729$          

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

Primary Government

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012
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Expenses
Charges for 

Services
Operating Grants 
and Contributions

Capital Grants 
and Contributions

Functions/Programs

   Governmental activities:

     General government 22,505,316$         1,862,654$             1,033,797$             465,719$                

     Public safety 51,714,002 7,358,779 338,718 1,320,808

     Highways and streets 22,060,953 1,140,683 - 3,125,322

     Health and welfare 5,424,919 241,620 1,185,997 -

     Culture and recreation 16,468,099 1,206,028 20,553 154,074

     Interest on long-term debt 900,520 - - -

     Total governmental activities 119,073,809 11,809,764 2,579,065 5,065,923

   Business-type activities:

     Water services 16,492,817 15,964,657 - 770,502

     Sewer services 12,704,012 14,568,552 - 562,695

     Sanitation services 13,808,444 16,669,790 - 56,115

     Golf course services 1,464,808 1,254,934 - -

     Civic center services 398,739 254,288 - -

     Convention center services 4,970,522 1,946,962 - -

     Airport services 6,672,164 5,348,050 - 2,811,955

     Transit services 1,155,996 339,969 157,396 1,072

     Bus services 2,553,618 392,354 626,918 121,043

     Bridge services--anzalduas 4,140,909 2,648,419 - -

     Bridge services 6,004,265 11,911,324 - -

       Total business-type activities 70,366,294 71,299,299 784,314 4,323,382

Total primary government 189,440,103 83,109,063 3,363,379 9,389,305

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

   Franchise taxes

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 

Program Revenues

General revenues:

   Property taxes

   Hotel occupancy tax

   Sales taxes

 Net assets - beginning

 Net assets - ending

   Unrestricted investment earnings

   Royalties

   Miscellaneous

Transfers

          Total general revenues and transfers

            Change in net assets

- 20 -



Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

(19,143,146)$        -$                          (19,143,146)$        

(42,695,697) - (42,695,697)

(17,794,948) - (17,794,948)

(3,997,302) - (3,997,302)

(15,087,444) - (15,087,444)

(900,520) - (900,520)

(99,619,057) - (99,619,057)

- 242,342 242,342

- 2,427,235 2,427,235

- 2,917,461 2,917,461

- (209,874) (209,874)

- (144,451) (144,451)

- (3,023,560) (3,023,560)

- 1,487,841 1,487,841

- (657,559) (657,559)

- (1,413,303) (1,413,303)

- (1,492,490) (1,492,490)

- 5,907,059 5,907,059

- 6,040,701 6,040,701

(99,619,057) 6,040,701 (93,578,356)

33,445,701 - 33,445,701

3,503,985 - 3,503,985

58,407,779 - 58,407,779

6,348,331 - 6,348,331

675,810 456,604 1,132,414

1,138,925 - 1,138,925

1,727,591 1,001 1,728,592

(13,708,822) 13,708,822 -

91,539,300 14,166,427 105,705,727

(8,079,757) 20,207,128 12,127,371

361,989,769 341,035,092 703,024,861

353,910,012$       361,242,220$       715,152,232$       

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government
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General
Development 

Corp.

ASSETS

Current assets:

 Cash 1,656,445$           26,554$                

 Certificates of deposit 7,440,080 5,000,000

 Investments 37,960,340 23,120,378

 Receivables, net:

  Taxes 11,571,789 2,432,289

  Accounts 1,840,304 -

  Accrued interest 69,894 42,448

  Other 573,835 -

 Due from other funds 724,446 -

 Due from other governments 34,601 -

 Advances to other funds 150,000 -

 Board advances 1,246,791 -

  Total assets 63,268,525$         30,621,669$         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

 Accounts payable 2,880,404$           2,432,299$           

 Accrued liabilities 2,392,572 505,813

 Due to other funds - -

 Deferred revenues 11,202,850 1,263,649

 Other 982,435 -

  Total liabilities 17,458,261 4,201,761

Fund balances:

 Nonspendable 1,396,791 -

 Restricted 88,536 26,419,908

 Committed - -

 Assigned 1,464,107 -

 Unassigned 42,860,830 -

 Total fund balances 45,810,264 26,419,908

  Total liabilities and fund balances 63,268,525$         30,621,669$         

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2012
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Capital 
Improvement

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

23,914$                278,196$              1,985,109$           

- 1,650,000 14,090,080

8,216,783 9,376,940 78,674,441

- 37,984 14,042,062

- 674,404 2,514,708

11,149 13,190 136,681

4,244 408,744 986,823

- - 724,446

296,638 1,966,757 2,297,996

352,716 - 502,716

- - 1,246,791

8,905,444$           14,406,215$         117,201,853$       

689,027$              1,674,453$           7,676,183$           

58,720 461,987 3,419,092

- 907,274 907,274

- 37,984 12,504,483

- 2,700,644 3,683,079

747,747 5,782,342 28,190,111

352,716 - 1,749,507

- 7,751,219 34,259,663

- 217,989 217,989

7,804,981 663,760 9,932,848

- (9,095) 42,851,735

8,157,697 8,623,873 89,011,742

8,905,444$           14,406,215$         117,201,853$       
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Total governmental fund balances (refer to page 23)  89,011,742$          

252,493,086          

franchise taxes-$5,054,594; weed and lot cleaning-$773,488; special assessments-$21,974; 
others; $1,203,139 and Mission repayment on Series B Bridge bonds, $1,246,791. 11,946,051            

35,550,741            

and net OPEB obligation, ($1,049,270). (35,091,608)           

Net assets of governmental activities  353,910,012$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are deferred in 
the funds.  The amount consists of the following:  property taxes-$3,646,065; sales and

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as fleet 
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds 
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds, including unpaid compensated absences, ($8,411,369), sales tax revenue
bonds payable,($150,000), accrued interest, ($119,974),  certificate of obligations, ($24,355,000),
premium, ($1,010,152), discount, $164,494, issuance costs, $115,170, net pension obligation, ($275,507),

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
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General
Development 

Corp

REVENUES

Taxes 83,293,338$          14,601,944$          

Licenses and permits 1,522,912 -

Intergovernmental 580,898 -

Charges for services 3,836,385 -

Fines and forfeitures 1,695,585 -

Investment earnings 217,391 113,199
Net increase in the fair value of investments 51,225 29,017

Other 1,771,106 -

Total revenues 92,968,840 14,744,160

EXPENDITURES

Current:

 General government 17,167,270 607,266

 Public safety 48,994,483 100,000

 Highways and streets 11,902,801 8,331,863

 Health and welfare 2,061,310 2,174,829

 Culture and recreation 14,677,005 28,060

 Debt service:

  Principal - 25,000

  Interest and fiscal charges - 9,056

 Total expenditures 94,802,869 11,276,074

 Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,834,029) 3,468,086

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,376,061 -

  Transfers out (4,707,025) (5,382,394)

  Net other financing sources (uses) 4,669,036 (5,382,394)

  Net change in fund balances 2,835,007 (1,914,308)

Fund balances at beginning of year 42,975,257 28,334,216

Fund balances at end of year 45,810,264$          26,419,908$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Capital 
Improvement

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                           3,542,773$            101,438,055$        

- 13,990 1,536,902

257,015 5,896,357 6,734,270

- 1,190,240 5,026,625

- 3,727,043 5,422,628

51,521 30,112 412,223

15,792 226 96,260

83,321 832,399 2,686,826

407,649 15,233,140 123,353,789

307,682 3,328,205 21,410,423

740,388 2,770,371 52,605,242

1,913,217 2,834,978 24,982,859

- 1,166,454 5,402,593

2,636,207 5,127,978 22,469,250

- 2,505,000 2,530,000

- 1,003,200 1,012,256

5,597,494 18,736,186 130,412,623

(5,189,845) (3,503,046) (7,058,834)

2,181,997 4,412,566 15,970,624

(135,831) (3,624,503) (13,849,753)

2,046,166 788,063 2,120,871

(3,143,679) (2,714,983) (4,937,963)

11,301,376 11,338,856 93,949,705

8,157,697$            8,623,873$            89,011,742$          
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (refer to page27) (4,937,963)$            

9,472,628               

492,881                  

2,530,000               

(1,413,987)              

1,651,824               

by the cost of other assets sold, $45,447. (15,875,140)            

Change in net assets of governmental activities (8,079,757)$            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

In the statement of actitivies, only the loss on sale is reported, whereas in the governmental, the proceeds 
from the sale decrease financial resources.  Thus the change in net assets differs from the change in fund 
balance by the cost of the capital assets transferred to a BTA fund, $15,829,693, and

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost 
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is 
the amount by which capital outlays $21,842,876 exceeded depreciation, net of  depreciation ($12,370,248) 
in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources 
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds of which ($383,575) is compensated 
absences, $12,686 accrued interest expense, bond amortization expense, $99,049,   Firemen's Fund net 
pension obligation, ($92,877), and net OPEB obligation, ($1,049,270).

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as fleet 
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds 
is reported with governmental activities.
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 32,651,201$      32,651,201$      33,139,172$      487,971$           

 Sales 40,564,358 40,564,358 43,805,835 3,241,477

 Franchise 6,304,000 6,304,000 6,348,331 44,331

  Total taxes 79,519,559 79,519,559 83,293,338 3,773,779

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 43,000 43,000 55,953 12,953

 Occupational 201,400 201,400 253,938 52,538

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,013,800 1,013,800 1,213,021 199,221

  Total licenses and permits 1,258,200 1,258,200 1,522,912 264,712

Intergovernmental revenues:

 State shared revenues 430,000 430,000 580,898 150,898

  Total intergovernmental revenues 430,000 430,000 580,898 150,898

Charges for services:

 General government 1,368,602 1,368,602 1,342,629 (25,973)

 Public safety 696,900 696,900 764,039 67,139

 Highways and streets 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)

 Health 568,100 568,100 590,220 22,120

 Culture and recreation 1,013,460 1,013,460 1,139,497 126,037

  Total charges for services 3,648,062 3,648,062 3,836,385 188,323

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,650,000 1,720,571 1,628,655 (91,916)

 Other fines 45,000 45,000 66,930 21,930

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,695,000 1,765,571 1,695,585 (69,986)

Investment earnings 265,000 265,000 217,391 (47,609)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

Net increase in fair value of investments -$                       -$                       51,225$             51,225$             

Other:

 Royalties 2,500,000 2,500,000 1,138,925 (1,361,075)

 Rents and concessions 40,000 40,000 17,993 (22,007)

 Reimbursements - - 76,463 76,463

 Other 371,000 371,000 537,725 166,725

  Total other revenues 2,911,000 2,911,000 1,771,106 (1,139,894)

  Total revenues 89,726,821 89,797,392 92,968,840 3,171,450

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission 168,206 168,206 150,622 17,584

  Special service 856,800 856,800 983,805 (127,005)

  City manager 1,434,539 1,434,539 1,179,418 255,121

  City secretary 405,565 405,565 407,899 (2,334)

  Vital statistics 188,647 188,647 144,783 43,864

  Passport facility 63,550 63,550 58,602 4,948

  Audit office 200,623 200,623 201,919 (1,296)

  Municipal court 1,281,616 1,352,187 1,204,481 147,706

  Finance 1,286,945 1,286,945 1,304,555 (17,610)

  Tax office 942,393 942,393 997,215 (54,822)

  Purchasing and contracting 491,371 491,371 420,416 70,955

  Legal 999,617 1,309,617 1,490,140 (180,523)

  Grant administration 383,771 383,771 359,775 23,996

  Right of way 172,991 200,491 180,801 19,690

  Human resources 547,552 547,552 539,150 8,402

  Risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Planning 1,129,089 1,129,089 941,955 187,134

  Information technology 2,196,023 2,196,023 2,111,878 84,145

  Public information office 644,953 644,953 564,559 80,394

  City hall 738,552 738,552 655,338 83,214

  Building maintenance 506,733 506,733 518,667 (11,934)

  Non-departmental activities 2,159,435 2,159,435 2,099,531 59,904

  Contingency (1,733,333) (1,733,333) - (1,733,333)

  Total general government 15,717,399 16,125,470 17,167,270 (1,041,800)
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Public safety:

  Police 29,259,082$      29,259,082$      29,302,202$      (43,120)$            

  Animal control 210,653 210,653 183,681 26,972

  Communication technology 199,842 199,842 244,692 (44,850)

  Fire 15,959,012 15,959,012 16,191,498 (232,486)

  Traffic operations 2,146,745 2,146,745 2,179,112 (32,367)

  Building code compliance 971,794 971,794 893,298 78,496

  Total public safety 48,747,128 48,747,128 48,994,483 (247,355)

Highways and streets:

 Engineering services 1,826,293 1,871,793 1,828,514 43,279

 Street cleaning 424,120 424,120 369,402 54,718

 Street maintenance 6,898,047 6,898,047 5,710,159 1,187,888

 Street lighting 1,977,001 1,977,001 2,414,288 (437,287)

 Sidewalk construction 306,518 306,518 257,940 48,578

 Drainage 1,451,711 1,451,711 1,322,498 129,213

  Total highways and streets 12,883,690 12,929,190 11,902,801 1,026,389

Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance 1,100,898 1,100,898 1,041,252 59,646

 Graffiti cleaning 171,586 171,586 150,453 21,133

 Other agencies 242,462 242,462 869,605 (627,143)

  Total health and welfare 1,514,946 1,514,946 2,061,310 (546,364)

Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration 540,952 540,952 540,198 754

 Parks 5,409,583 5,409,583 5,722,790 (313,207)

 Recreation 1,145,052 1,145,052 1,337,214 (192,162)

 Pools 692,085 692,085 750,909 (58,824)

 Las palmas community center 334,241 334,241 315,631 18,610

 Recreation center-Lark 365,695 365,695 354,414 11,281

 Recreation center-Palmview 390,673 390,673 387,763 2,910

- 33 -



 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Quinta mazatlan 459,754$           459,754$           483,759$           (24,005)$            

 Library 3,041,082 3,041,082 2,649,354 391,728

 Library branch-Lark 401,143 401,143 346,905 54,238

 Library branch-Palmview 417,599 417,599 383,464 34,135

 Other agencies 656,659 656,659 656,492 167

 Museums 748,112 748,112 748,112 -

  Total culture and recreation 14,602,630 14,602,630 14,677,005 (74,375)

  Total expenditures 93,465,793 93,919,364 94,802,869 (883,505)

  Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (3,738,972) (4,121,972) (1,834,029) 2,287,943

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,261,430 9,261,430 9,376,061 114,631

  Transfers out (6,007,025) (6,007,025) (4,707,025) 1,300,000

  Net other financing sources (uses) 3,254,405 3,254,405 4,669,036 1,414,631

Net change in fund balances (484,567) (867,567) 2,835,007 3,702,574

Fund balances at begining of year 42,975,257 42,975,257 42,975,257 -

Fund balances at end of year 42,490,690$      42,107,690$      45,810,264$      3,702,574$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

REVENUES

 Sales tax 13,521,452$      13,521,452$      14,601,944$      1,080,492$        

 Intergovernmental revenues 913,069 913,069 - (913,069)

 Investment earnings 50,000 50,000 113,199 63,199

 Increase in the fair value of investments - - 29,017 29,017

  Total revenues 14,484,521 14,484,521 14,744,160 259,639

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  General government 4,391,640 4,391,640 607,266 3,784,374

  Public safety 112,500 112,500 100,000 12,500

  Highways and streets 12,258,401 12,924,124 8,331,863 4,592,261

  Health and welfare 2,356,000 2,356,000 2,174,829 181,171

  Culture and recreation 1,752,000 1,752,000 28,060 1,723,940

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 8,506 8,506 9,056 (550)

  Total expenditures 20,904,047 21,569,770 11,276,074 10,293,696

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures (6,419,526) (7,085,249) 3,468,086 10,553,335

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (9,584,606) (9,584,606) (5,382,394) 4,202,212

  Total other financing sources (uses) (9,584,606) (9,584,606) (5,382,394) 4,202,212

  Net changes in fund balances (16,004,132) (16,669,855) (1,914,308) 14,755,547

Fund balances--beginning 28,334,216 28,334,216 28,334,216 -

Fund balances--ending 12,330,084$      11,664,361$      26,419,908$      14,755,547$      

The notes to the financial statements are a integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash 290,735$           1,925,085$        150,672$           19,365$             70,822$             

Certificate of deposit 555,962 - 750,000 700,000 250,000

Investments 4,521,266 2,278,171 4,704,764 1,521,387 3,619,685

Receivables, net:

 Accounts 1,997,606 1,869,049 2,135,067 34,833 434,491

 Accrued interest 11,009 4,253 6,629 2,876 3,888

 Other 65 19,705 867 5,124 1,165

Due from other funds - - - 247,690 -

Due from other governments - - - - 17,157

Inventories, at cost 24,013 - - - -

Restricted assets:

  Cash and cash equivalents 152,971 18,021 39,444 69 14,888

  Total current assets 7,553,627 6,114,284 7,787,443 2,531,344 4,412,096

Noncurrent assets:

 Restricted assets:

   Investments 20,031,660 32,390,144 7,871,360 751,109 12,031,282

   Other 108,335 130,930 - - 1,196,392

  Total noncurrent restricted assets 20,139,995 32,521,074 7,871,360 751,109 13,227,674

Capital assets:

 Land 3,039,265 1,983,995 928,277 6,202,778 3,251,781

 Buildings and systems 54,547,011 63,233,397 2,241,785 56,281,224 32,253,761

 Improvements other than buildings 58,696,272 37,541,736 382,905 6,690,881 53,010,829

 Machinery and equipment 5,799,024 6,969,665 20,349,487 2,651,356 2,378,037

 Construction in progress 5,371,234 46,219,312 9,152 - 10,001,537

 Water rights 7,123,100 - - - -

   Less accumulated depreciation

    and amortization (51,535,468) (51,458,948) (14,332,738) (8,966,424) (41,928,635)

 Total capital assets (net of

    accumulated depreciation and amortization) 83,040,438 104,489,157 9,578,868 62,859,815 58,967,310

Other noncurrent assets

 Loans receivable 84,351 84,351 - - -

 Other assets, net 816,331 712,507 - - 158,798

 Goodwill - - - - -

 Board advances - - - - -

  Total other noncurrent assets 900,682 796,858 - - 158,798

  Total noncurrent assets 104,081,115 137,807,089 17,450,228 63,610,924 72,353,782

  Total assets 111,634,742$    143,921,373$    25,237,671$      66,142,268$      76,765,878$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

222,984$           92,976$             129,404$           2,902,043$              714,383$           

- - 1,050,000 3,305,962 9,850,000

1,938,119 1,023,644 2,372,926 21,979,962 27,525,880

- - 10,448 6,481,494 570,759

- - 2,625 31,280 43,067

- - - 26,926 -

- - 36,923 284,613 -

- - 397,745 414,902 -

- - - 24,013 286,883

124,204 56,393 94,744 500,734 -

2,285,307 1,173,013 4,094,815 35,951,929 38,990,972

6,130,581 1,106,355 467,056 80,779,547 -

- - - 1,435,657 -

6,130,581 1,106,355 467,056 82,215,204 -

573,798 2,936,598 2,230,658 21,147,150 -

10,698,086 10,415,086 7,285,171 236,955,521 -

2,415,376 40,357,634 9,560,691 208,656,324 132,823

1,784,526 930,393 7,486,053 48,348,541 21,132,558

77,642 - 20,220 61,699,097 -

- - - 7,123,100 -

(8,765,774) (4,169,998) (12,225,892) (193,383,877) (14,843,845)

6,783,654 50,469,713 14,356,901 390,545,856 6,421,536

- - - 168,702 -

- 833,354 - 2,520,990 -

609,713 - - 609,713 -

14,745,108 - - 14,745,108 -

15,354,821 833,354 - 18,044,513 -

28,269,056 52,409,422 14,823,957 490,805,573 6,421,536

30,554,363$      53,582,435$      18,918,772$      526,757,502$          45,412,508$      

Continued

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable 754,259$           417,357$           411,659$           137,437$           1,340,191$        

 Accrued expenses 497,144 1,360,205 171,898 50,290 338,338

 Due to other funds - - - - -

 Due to other government agencies - - - - -

 Customer deposits payable 2,359,579 - - 20,515 -

 Compensated absences due one year 290,000 186,000 200,000 50,000 50,000

 Current portion of revenue bonds 1,448,903 2,771,097 - - 370,000

 Other 16,684 - 300 198,425 14,749

  Total current liabilities 5,366,569 4,734,659 783,857 456,667 2,113,278

Other noncurrent liabilities:

 Advances from other funds - - 150,000 - -

 Revenue bonds, net of current portion and discount 21,780,769 66,839,233 - - 9,125,000

 Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 70,575 91,228 66,937 30,978 15,749

 Notes payable - - - - 108,335

 Bond premium 685,862 1,385,249 - - -

 Deferred revenues 197,639 1,165,000 397,292 82,444 -

 Board advances - - - - -

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 22,734,845 69,480,710 614,229 113,422 9,249,084

   Total liabilities 28,101,414 74,215,369 1,398,086 570,089 11,362,362

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 61,042,976 44,018,342 9,578,868 62,859,815 56,370,531

Restricted for:

 Capital projects 15,831,370 18,090,509 7,871,360 751,178 4,396,948

 Debt service 482,969 1,996,756 - - 276,884

 Distribution of net surplus revenues - - - - -

Unrestricted 6,176,013 5,600,397 6,389,357 1,961,186 4,359,153

  Total net assets 83,533,328 69,706,004 23,839,585 65,572,179 65,403,516

   Total liabilities and net assets 111,634,742$    143,921,373$    25,237,671$      66,142,268$      76,765,878$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statements.
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

113,467$           22,959$             275,406$           3,472,735$              763,267$           

42,050 160,597 82,017 2,702,539 4,445,687

1,785 - 100,000 101,785 -

731,515 - - 731,515 -

- - - 2,380,094 -

52,000 - 50,000 878,000 -

- 1,150,000 - 5,740,000 -

- - 13,854 244,012 14,857

940,817 1,333,556 521,277 16,250,680 5,223,811

- - 352,716 502,716 -

- 35,645,000 - 133,390,002 -

42,122 9,120 89,633 416,342 47,803

- - - 108,335 -

- 502,436 - 2,573,547 -

195,800 - 80,530 2,118,705 -

- 14,745,108 - 14,745,108 -

237,922 50,901,664 522,879 153,854,755 47,803

1,178,739 52,235,220 1,044,156 170,105,435 5,271,614

6,783,654 14,005,631 14,356,901 269,016,718 6,421,536

1,066,957 281,458 300,082 48,589,862 -

502,198 734,795 - 3,993,602 -

4,608,653 - - 4,608,653 -

16,414,162 (13,674,669) 3,217,633 30,443,232 33,719,358

29,375,624 1,347,215 17,874,616 356,652,067 40,140,894

30,554,363$      53,582,435$      18,918,772$      526,757,502$          45,412,508$      

Concluded
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Fund equity - total proprietary funds (page 39) 356,652,067$         

are included with business-type activities. 4,590,153               

Net assets of business-type activities 361,242,220$         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets  
are different because certain internal service fund assets and liabilities 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Assets of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2012
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

Operating revenues

 Charges for services 15,686,958$      14,076,842$      16,491,139$      921,344$           

 Rentals - - - 971,822

 Other 737,701 491,707 178,650 153,788

Total operating revenues 16,424,659 14,568,549 16,669,789 2,046,954

Operating expenses

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 5,570,443 3,513,661 5,048,829 1,488,759

 Supplies 3,337,922 585,035 266,750 72,128

 Contractual and other services 2,371,683 2,815,617 3,915,894 1,613,225

 Repairs and maintenance 801,879 478,351 2,839,453 312,859

 Depreciation and amortization 3,515,055 3,913,143 1,756,762 1,606,634

 Self insurance claims - - - -

 Other - - - -

  Total operating expenses 15,596,982 11,305,807 13,827,688 5,093,605

   Operating income (loss) 827,677 3,262,742 2,842,101 (3,046,651)

Non operating revenues (expenses)

 Investment earnings 118,230 122,978 58,102 6,694

 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 29,778 32,706 18,136 1,008

 Interest expense (1,345,463) (1,432,594) - -

 Interest on board advances - - - -

 Bond related charges (28,155) 27,684 - -

 Capitalized interest - - - -

 Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - - - -

 Other - - -

  Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (1,225,610) (1,249,226) 76,238 7,702

  Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (397,933) 2,013,516 2,918,339 (3,038,949)

Capital contributions 16,600,195 562,695 56,115 -

Transfers in - - - 2,002,277

Transfers out - - - -

  Change in net assets 16,202,262 2,576,211 2,974,454 (1,036,672)

Total net assets-beginning 67,331,066 67,129,793 20,865,131 66,608,851

Total assets--ending 83,533,328$      69,706,004$      23,839,585$      65,572,179$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Airport

McAllen 
International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

2,329,498$        10,211,452$      2,596,703$        1,838,498$        64,152,434$        5,915,826$        

2,727,851 1,558,127 11,111 61,704 5,330,615 -

290,699 141,744 40,607 341,346 2,376,242 12,020,709

5,348,048 11,911,323 2,648,421 2,241,548 71,859,291 17,936,535

1,492,187 1,116,181 382,331 2,320,365 20,932,756 1,230,015

58,560 69,881 14,509 138,850 4,543,635 23,533

1,545,620 959,940 329,837 906,483 14,458,299 4,745,133

302,674 318,250 90,192 808,934 5,952,592 63,094

3,337,995 573,073 1,538,249 1,424,602 17,665,513 1,973,339

- - - - - 8,664,502

(81,336) - - - (81,336) 15,216

6,655,700 3,037,325 2,355,118 5,599,234 63,471,459 16,714,832

(1,307,652) 8,873,998 293,303 (3,357,686) 8,387,832 1,221,703

40,863 4,847 2,664 9,203 363,581 142,747

11,136 - - 254 93,018 24,586

(266,287) (6,026) (1,772,085) - (4,822,455) -

- 486,649 (486,649) - - -

(6,496) (3,987) (17,043) - (27,997) -

227,891 - - - 227,891 -

- - - 1,001 1,001 30,076

- (2,970,293) - - (2,970,293) 370,744

7,107 (2,488,810) (2,273,113) 10,458 (7,135,254) 568,153

(1,300,545) 6,385,188 (1,979,810) (3,347,228) 1,252,578 1,789,856

2,811,955 - - 906,429 20,937,389 -

- - 671,868 1,577,168 4,251,313 -

(1,103,965) (4,840,282) - (427,937) (6,372,184) -

407,445 1,544,906 (1,307,942) (1,291,568) 20,069,096 1,789,856

64,996,071 27,830,718 2,655,157 19,166,184 336,582,971 38,351,038

65,403,516$      29,375,624$      1,347,215$        17,874,616$      356,652,067$      40,140,894$      

Business Type Activites-Enterprise Funds
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Change in net assets - total proprietary funds (page 43) 20,069,096$                      

service funds is reported  with business-type activities. 138,032                             

Net assets of business-type activities 20,207,128$                      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activity are different 
because the net revenue (expense) of  certain internal 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended September 30, 2012
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McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 16,251,811$           15,075,563$           16,530,374$        1,922,257$            
  Payments to employees (5,530,109)              (3,495,827)             (5,018,490)           (1,471,253)            
  Payments to suppliers (6,404,771)              (3,402,754)             (6,990,784)           (1,814,273)            

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 4,316,931               8,176,982               4,521,100            (1,363,269)            

Cash flows from noncapital financing
  activities:
   Transfers from other funds 2,002,277              
   Transfers to other funds -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Advance to other funds -                              -                             (250,000)              -                            
   Subsidy from federal grant -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Board advances -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Distribution of income to City of Hidalgo -                              -                             -                           -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
     financing activities -                              -                             (250,000)              2,002,277              

Cash flows from capital and related
  financing activities:
   Capital contributions -                              314,496                  -                           -                            
   Purchases of  capital assets (4,523,354)              (10,940,776)           (1,989,406)           (31,242)                 
   Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                              -                           -                            
   Proceeds from  capital debt -                              7,160,000               -                           -                            
   Principal repayments-bonds and notes (1,392,378)              (2,607,620)             -                           -                            
   Interest paid (1,354,395)              (1,442,467)             -                           -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
      related financing activities (7,270,127)              (7,516,367)             (1,989,406)           (31,242)                 

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  15,100,660             20,665,479             5,693,503            1,375,066              
   Purchase of investments (12,310,312)            (20,016,643)           (8,357,341)           (2,122,336)            
   Receipt of interest 202,587                  216,679                  83,363                 5,301                     

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities 2,992,935               865,515                  (2,580,475)           (741,969)               

    Net increase (decrease) in cash 39,739                    1,526,130               (298,781)              (134,203)               

    Cash at beginning of year 403,967                  416,976                  488,897               153,637                 

    Cash at end of year  443,706$                 1,943,106$              190,116$              19,434$                 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Business Type Activities

- 46 -



Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

5,326,732$            12,080,470$             2,648,422$           2,289,239$               72,124,868$       17,847,462$              
(1,388,885)            (1,110,080)                (374,978)               (2,289,889)                (20,679,511)        (1,223,873)                
(1,812,518)            (1,366,331)                (499,471)               (1,870,905)                (24,161,807)        (11,847,362)              

2,125,329              9,604,059                 1,773,973             (1,871,555)                27,283,550         4,776,227                  

(671,868)                   671,868                1,577,168                 3,579,445           -                                
(1,103,965)            (4,168,713)                -                            (427,937)                   (5,700,615)          -                                

-                            -                                -                            -                                (250,000)             -                                
-                            -                                -                            642,033                    642,033              -                                
-                            (326,283)                   326,283                -                                -                          -                                
-                            (2,949,936)                -                            -                                (2,949,936)          -                                

(1,103,965)            (8,116,800)                998,151                1,791,264                 (4,679,073)          -                                

1,712,365              -                                -                                2,026,861           -                                
(4,242,097)            (4,206)                       (3,608)                   (176,395)                   (21,911,084)        (1,192,832)                

-                            -                                -                            1,001                        1,001                  30,076                       
9,744,782              -                                -                            -                                16,904,782         -                                
(325,000)               (285,000)                   (820,000)               -                                (5,429,998)          -                                
(236,254)               (7,130)                       (1,774,818)            -                                (4,815,064)          -                                

6,653,796              (296,336)                   (2,598,426)            (175,394)                   (13,223,502)        (1,162,756)                

4,677,972              7,044,836                 1,929,656             2,942,319                 59,429,491          20,550,177                
(12,521,237)          (8,068,703)                (2,129,999)            (2,795,022)                (68,321,593)        (24,703,018)              

64,285                   5,525                        3,004                    12,297                      593,041              249,462                     

(7,778,980)            (1,018,342)                (197,339)               159,594                    (8,299,061)          (3,903,379)                

(103,820)               172,581                    (23,641)                 (96,091)                     1,081,914           (289,908)                   

189,530                 174,607                    173,010                320,239                    2,320,863           1,004,291                  

 85,710$                  347,188$                   149,369$              224,148$                   3,402,777$          714,383$                   

Continued

Business Type Activities

- 47 -



McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
  net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)  827,677$                3,262,742$             2,842,101$          (3,046,651)$          
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities:
   Depreciation and amortization  3,515,055               3,913,143               1,756,762            1,606,634              
   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (172,781)                 637,941                  (138,549)              (8,392)                   
   (Increase) decrease in intergovernmental receivables -                              (130,930)                -                           -                            
   (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                              -                             -                           (111,189)               
   (Increase) decrease in prepaid items (65)                          (867)                     (5,124)                   
   (Increase) decrease in inventories 13,013                    -                             -                           -                            
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 18,036                    26,252                    34,380                 (20,745)                 
   Increase (decrease) in customer deposits payable 72,096                    -                             -                           20,515                   
   Increase (decrease) in compensated abscences payable 30,109                    5,621                      19,410                 21,562                   
   Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 10,225                    12,213                    10,929                 (4,056)                   
   Increase (decrease) in due to other funds -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 15,846                    -                             300                      185,840                 
   Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues (12,280)                   450,000                  (3,366)                  (1,663)                   
   Recovery of prior year expenses -                              -                             -                           -                            

Total adjustments 3,489,254               4,914,240               1,678,999            1,683,382              

    Net cash provided by (used) by

      operating activities 4,316,931$             8,176,982$             4,521,100$          (1,363,269)$          

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets 16,600,195             248,199                  56,115                 -                            
Decrease in fair value of investments 29,778                    32,706                    18,136                 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

(1,307,652)$          8,873,998$               293,303$              (3,357,686)$               8,387,832$          1,221,703$                

3,337,995              573,073                    1,538,249             1,424,602                  17,665,513         1,973,339                  
(28,714)                 69,453                      -                            (5,883)                       353,075              (460,901)                   

-                                -                            -                                (130,930)             -                                
-                            -                                -                            51,104                      (60,085)               -                                

(1,165)                   -                                -                            2,473                        (4,748)                 1,084                         
-                            -                                -                            -                                13,013                (17,752)                     

89,642                   (18,258)                     (57,579)                 20,876                      92,604                (211,415)                   
-                            -                                -                            -                                92,611                -                                

9,175                     4,009                        -                            23,060                      112,946              2,517                         
12,786                   -                            (34,483)                     7,614                  1,911,851                  

-                            -                                -                            46,098                      46,098                -                                
4,700                     2,090                        -                            -                                208,776              58                              
8,562                     99,694                      -                            (41,716)                     499,231              -                                

-                            -                                -                            -                                -                          355,743                     

3,432,981              730,061                    1,480,670             1,486,131                 18,895,718         3,554,524                  

2,125,329$            9,604,059$               1,773,973$           (1,871,555)$              27,283,550$       4,776,227$                

-                            -                            -                                16,904,509         -                                
-                                -                            236                           80,856                24,586                       

Concluded

Business Type Activities
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Pension Trust Agencies

Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement Developer's

Communications 
Group

Fund Fund Fund

 

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,950,188$        2,705$              53,376$                  

Receivables:

Interest 116,127             4,159                -                              

Investments, at fair value:

TexPool -                         382,523            -                              

Certificate of deposit -                         1,000,000         -                              

Domestic and international equities 20,640,889        1,250,815         -                              

Treasury and corporate bonds 10,997,816        -                        -                              

Alternate investments 3,603,294          -                        -                              

Total investments 35,241,999        2,633,338         -                              

Total assets 38,308,314        2,640,202         53,376                    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 2,303                 -                        -                              

Due  agency -                         -                        53,376                    

Escrow payables -                         2,640,202         -                              

  Total liabilities 2,303 2,640,202$       53,376$                  

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits 38,306,011$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension Trust

Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement

Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

 Member 1,027,430$           

 Employer 1,287,288

  Total contributions 2,314,718

Investment earnings:

 Interest and dividends 1,013,874

 Loss on sale of investments (872,929)

 Net appreciation in fair value of investments 6,064,633

 Total investment earnings 6,205,578

  Less: investment expense 253,100

  Net investment earnings 5,952,478

  Total additions 8,267,196

DEDUCTIONS

  Benefits 2,001,400

  Refund of contributions 357,669

  Administrative expense 28,686

  Total deductions 2,387,755

    Changes in net assets 5,879,441

Net assets--beginning 32,426,570

Net assets--ending 38,306,011$         

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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I.    Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

(A) Reporting entity 
 

The City of McAllen, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation, which was incorporated 
February 20, 1911 under Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution.  The City operates 
under the commission-manager form of government and provides a full range of municipal 
services as authorized by its charter.  The governing body consists of an elected mayor and a six-
member commission.  Services provided include those typically provided by general-purpose 
local governments, namely public safety (principally police and fire,) highways and streets, 
health and welfare, culture and recreation (principally library, parks and recreation).  Other 
services provided include water and sewer utilities, sanitation, civic center, convention center, 
international airport, international toll bridge linking Hidalgo, Texas with downtown Reynosa, 
Tamaulipas, Mexico, international toll bridge linking south of the City of Mission with the west 
side of Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico, golf course, bus transit system, and intermodal transit 
terminal.   

  
 The accompanying financial statements present the reporting entity, which consists of the 

primary government.  Financial reporting standards also require the City to include, if any, 
legally-separate entities or organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable and other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but 
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion could cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 
 
Financial accountability exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an 
organization’s governing Board and either is able to impose its will on that organization or 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose 
specific financial burdens on, the primary government.  A primary government may also be 
financially accountable for governmental organizations with a separately elected governing 
Board, a governing Board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed Board that 
is fiscally dependent on the primary government. 

 
Applying these tests to other entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity, 
the City has determined that the Development Corporation meets the financial accountability 
tests and, therefore is included as a blended component unit.  Its Board is appointed by the City 
Commission and serves as an advisory board to the City Commission. 
 
The City of McAllen issues separate publicly available audited financial statements of the 
McAllen International Toll Bridge and the Anzalduas International Crossing, which may be 
obtained by writing to City of McAllen Finance Department, 1300 Houston, P.O. Box 220, 
McAllen, Texas  78505. 
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The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund is included as a pension trust fund, and reported as 
a fiduciary fund in the accompanying financial statements. 

 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) applicable to states 
and local governments.  US GAAP for local governments include those principles prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local 
Governments, and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when applicable).  The City 
has elected not to apply pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
issued after November 30, 1989 as permitted by GASB Statement No. 20.   
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued the following pronouncements, which 
are relevant to the City, became effective this fiscal year and have been implemented: 
 
GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus—and amendments of Statement 
No.4, No. 25, No. 31, No. 40, and No. 53.  
 
The objective of this Statement is to update and improve existing standards regarding 
financial reporting and disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments and external 
investment pools for which significant issues have been identified in practice.  The provisions 
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 
2010.  The adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the City’s financial 
statements. 
 
The following statements will become effective in future years.  Management does not believe 
these statements will have a significant impact on the City’s financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements.  
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related 
to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-
public partnership.  As used in this Statement, an SCA is an arrangement between a transferor 
(a government) and an operator (government on nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the 
transferor conveys to an operator the right and related obligation to provide services through 
the use of infrastructure or another public asset (a “facility”) in exchange for significant 
consideration and (2) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties.   
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning 
after December 15, 2011.  The provisions of this Statement generally are required to be 
applied retroactively for all periods presented. The adoption of this standard will not have a 
significant impact on the City’s financial statements. 
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GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial 
reporting entity.  The requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and 
the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, 
were amended to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen 
since the issuance of those Statements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.  Earlier application is 
encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. 
 
The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature 
certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following 
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements: 
 

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations 
2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions  
3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure. 
 

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the “FASB and AICPA 
pronouncements.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Earlier application is encouraged.  The provisions 
of this Statement generally are required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented. 
 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources and Net Position. 
 
The Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources.  Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, 
introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net assets by the government that 
is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government 
that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively.  Previous financial reporting 
standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statements, which are distinct 
from assets and liabilities.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Earlier application is encouraged. 
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GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
 
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 10 and No. 62. 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a 
governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from 
the issuance of two pronouncements, Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2012.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB 
Statement No.25 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local 
governmental pension plans.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the 
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with 
regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and 
inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency.  This Statement replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and 
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they 
relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts, or equivalent arrangements 
(hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria.  The requirements of 
Statements 25 and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through 
trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide 
postemployment benefits other than pensions.  This Statement is effective for financial 
statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013. Earlier application is encouraged. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No.27 
 



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2012 
 
 

- 57 - 
 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves information provided by state and 
local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other 
entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing 
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, 
and creating additional transparency. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2014. Earlier application is encouraged. 
 

The more significant accounting policies of the City are described below. 
 
 
(B) Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net assets, a statement of 
financial position and the  and the statement of activities, a statement of results of operations. 
These statements report information on all the activities of the reporting entity with the 
exception of fiduciary activity.  Generally, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated 
from these statements.  Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which 
primarily rely on fees and charges. 
 
The statement of activities reflects the extent to which direct expenses of each function are 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are attributable to a specific 
function and are clearly identifiable.  Program revenues include charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by 
a specific function as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a specific function.  Taxes and other items not 
appropriately included with program revenues are shown as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
In addition to and apart from the government-wide financial statements, fund financial 
statements are presented for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.  In 
each of these financial statements, major funds are presented in separate columns. 
 
(C) Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting; consistent with the presentation of the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, with the exception that agency funds 
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do not have a measurement focus.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, without regard to the timing of the related cash flows.  
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period.  The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, consistent with accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
those related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized only when 
payment is made. 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues 
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 
 
The City reports the following governmental fund types and related major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund.  It accounts for all of the financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources, other than for debt service or major capital projects that are legally 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  The only special revenue 
fund reported as a major fund is the Development Corp. Fund, a blended component unit. 
It is used to account for the additional ½¢ sales tax for economic development. 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the payment of principal, interest and related costs 
on general long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the City.  The fund balance 
of the Debt Service fund is restricted to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively 
for debt service expenditures. 
 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned expenditure for the acquisition and/or construction of 
capital facilities except those financed by proprietary fund types.  The Capital 
Improvement Fund is the only fund of this type that is reported as a major fund.  
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The governing body has adopted the policy that the Development Corp. Fund and the Capital 
Improvement Fund are to be considered major funds, without regard to the major fund criteria, 
due to them being particularly important to the users of these financial statements. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund types and related funds: 

 
The following enterprise funds are used to account for City operations for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services.  These funds must be used for activities, 
whose debt is backed solely by fees and charges or there is a legal requirement to recover 
cost, including capital cost, or a policy decision has been made to recover cost, including 
capital cost.  Enterprise funds, which are reported as major funds include: 
 
The Water Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s water system. 
  
The Sewer Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer system. 
 
The Sanitation Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-owned residential and 
commercial garbage and brush collection as well as recycling systems. 
 
The Convention Center Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s convention 
center. 
 
The McAllen International Airport Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-
owned international airport. 
 
The McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund, which accounts for the operations of the 
City-owned international bridge connecting the City of Hidalgo, Texas with downtown 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

 
The Anzalduas International Crossing Fund, which accounts for the operations of the 
international bridge connecting south of the City of Mission, Texas with the west side of 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

 
The City also reports, although not as major funds, the internal service funds as proprietary 
funds.  These fund types were established to finance and account for goods and services 
provided to various departments of the City, and on a limited basis to other local agencies, on a 
cost-reimbursement basis.  They account for fleet management, health insurance, retiree health 
insurance, and general insurance services provided to other operating funds of the City as well 
as a capital replacement fund for rolling stock used within departments of the General Fund. 
 

The City reports fiduciary fund types, in which the City accounts for assets received and held 
by the City in the capacity of trustee, agent or custodian. Expenditures are made only in 
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accordance with the purpose for which the assets are received and cannot be used to support 
the City’s programs.  Within this category of fund types, the pension trust fund accounts for the 
activities of the Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund, this accumulates resources for pension 
benefit payments to qualified firefighters.  It also accounts for developers’ contributions for 
future infrastructure development in the Developers’ Fund, an agency fund.  Additionally, it 
accounts for Communications Group Fund, an agency fund, which was established for the 
purpose of accounting the operations and maintenance of a consolidated regional public safety 
services communication system.  

 
Generally, with regard to enterprise funds, the City follows private-sector standards of 
accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989—to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the (GASB).  Governments also have 
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for the business-type activities and 
enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation.  As previously discussed, the City has elected 
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
 
Generally, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general statement are charges between the City’s water 
and sewer function and various other functions of the City.  Eliminating these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported by the respective functions. 
 
Amounts reported in program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues, 
which include all taxes, as opposed to program revenues. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses typically are the result from activities specific to a particular 
proprietary fund’s operations.  Operating revenues include charges for services.  Operating 
expenses include costs of services as well as materials, contracts, personnel and depreciation.  
All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets 
are available, the City typically first applies restricted resources, as appropriate opportunities 
arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to a future project or 
replacement equipment acquisition. 
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(D) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

 
(1) Deposits and investments 
 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits. 
The Public Funds Investment Act for the state of Texas allows municipalities to invest in the 
following: 

 
 Obligations of, or guaranteed by governmental entities, including: 

o Obligations of the United States or its agencies or instrumentalities 
o Direct obligations of this state or its agencies and instrumentalities 
o Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or 

instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is 
guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States. 

o Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of, this state 
or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities 

o Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political 
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent 

o Bonds issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the State of Israel 
 

 Certificates of deposit 
 Fully collateralized repurchase agreements 
 Bankers’ acceptances 
 Commercial paper 
 No-load mutual funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 
 Investment pools 
 
The City’s investment policy further restricts investments to the following: 
 
 U.S. Treasury obligations and government agency securities, specifically those issued 

by the Federal Home Land Bank, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and the Federal Farm Credit Bank, 
excluding mortgage-backed securities (i.e., those issued by the Government National 
Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae), Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae) 
and Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA). 
 

 Certificates of Deposit 
 
 Local government investment pools 
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The City’s investments are reported at fair value. 
 

(2)  Receivables and payables 
 
Lending/borrowing between funds that results in amounts outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to from other funds”.  
“Due to/from other funds” represents the current portion of interfund loans.  “Advances 
to/from other funds” represents the non-current portion of interfund loans.  With respect to the 
government-wide financial statements, any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as “internal balances.” 
 
Advance receivables between funds, reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a 
restricted category of fund balance in the applicable governmental fund(s) to indicate that they 
are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. 
 

Property taxes are levied on October 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on the 
previous January 1, on which date a tax lien attaches.  Assessed values are an approximation of 
market value.  A valuation of all property must be made at least every three (3) years.  
However, due to growth, the appraisal district conducts annual valuation by property category. 
 

(3)  Inventories and prepaid items 
 

Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, 
first-out basis.  The consumption method is used to account for inventories.  Under the 
consumption method, all inventory purchases are recorded as inventory acquisitions (current 
assets) at the time of purchase and expended when used. 
 
Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-
out basis as well. 
 
Payments to vendors, reflecting costs applicable to future accounting periods, are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

(4) Restricted assets 
 

Proceeds from the issuance of bonds, primarily related to enterprise funds and sales tax 
revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as 
restricted assets on the balance sheet due to their use being limited by applicable bond 
covenants.  The “revenue bond current debt service” account is used to report segregated 
assets accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.  The “revenue 
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bond contingency” account is used to report resources set aside to subsidize potential 
deficiencies from the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund and/or the Anzalduas 
International Crossing Fund operation that could adversely affect debt service payments.  In 
addition to assets restricted by bond covenants, others are restricted by enabling legislation for 
replacement and/or acquisition of capital assets. 
 

(5) Capital assets 
 

Capital assets, which includes property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $2,500 or more and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost.  Donated assets 
are reflected at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or 
materially extend the assets life are not capitalized. 

 
 Gains or losses on dispositions of capital assets are included in income within the proprietary 
fund financial statements and in the governmental activities and business-type activities 
columns of the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fund financial 
statements only the proceeds from the disposition are reported. Within the proprietary funds, 
interest cost, less interest earned on investments acquired with proceeds of related borrowing, 
is capitalized during the construction of capital projects when material.  Interest expense is not 
capitalized on general capital assets. 
 

Depreciation of capital assets used by proprietary funds, including those acquired by 
contributed capital, is charged as an expense against their operations in the fund financial 
statements as well as the government-wide financial statements.  Depreciation of general 
capital assets used by funds categorized as governmental activities is not provided in the fund 
financial statements, however is included in the gross expense by function in the government-
wide Statement of Activities.  Capital assets, accumulated depreciation as well as the net 
amount are reported on proprietary fund balance sheets and in both the governmental activities 
and business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets. 
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.  
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements  10 – 50 years
Equipment  5 – 15 years
Infrastructure  15 – 40 years
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(6) Compensated absences 

 
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued when incurred in all funds reported 
within the proprietary fund financial statements as well as the governmental activities and 
business-type activities columns of the government-wide statements. The expense is 
recognized in the governmental fund financial statements when paid or expected to be paid 
with current financial resources. Compensated absences are reported in governmental funds 
only if they have matured.    

 
(7) Long-term obligations 

 
    In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund 

financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the governmental/business-type activities or the specific proprietary fund to which each 
relates, as applicable.  Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred 
and amortized over the life of the bonds.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable 
bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources and discounts are reported as other 
financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from debt proceeds, are reported as 
debt service expenditures. 

 
(8)  Fund balances 

 
Fund balance, reported in governmental funds, which has some level of constraint placed on it, 
is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned.  The amount remaining, 
which can be spent for any lawful purpose is classified as unassigned.  Amounts classified as 
restricted have constraints placed on the use by law, regulations of other governments, 
creditors, grantors or by enabling legislation.  Those classified as committed are constrained 
by the City Commission through an ordinance for specific purposes, but are neither restricted 
nor committed.  Non-spendable is amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not 
in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The City 
Commission has delegated the authority to make assignments to the City Manager with 
Commission direction.  For the purposes of classifying governmental fund balances, the City 
typically considers expenditure to be made from the most restrictive first when more than one 
classification is available, however reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to 
future expenditure.  During the budget process, the City Manager designates the assignment of 
fund balances and makes recommendations to the City Commission for their consent and 
approval. 
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At September 30, 2012, the McAllen EB-5 Regional Center fund, a non-major governmental 
fund, reflects a fund deficit of $9,095. The City intends to cover this shortfall by providing 
resources in the upcoming year. 
 
The table in the following page outlines the composition of the City’s governmental fund 
balances classifications. 
 

Non-major
Development Capital Funds

General Corp. Improvements Other Total

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Interfund advances 1,396,791$     -$                   352,716$     -$                  1,749,507$     
Restricted for:

Law enforcement -                     -                     -                   5,822,461     5,822,461       
Debt service -                     -                     -                   268,285        268,285          
Economic development -                     26,419,908     -                   -                    26,419,908     
Tourism -                     -                     -                   24,873          24,873            
Capital improvements -                     -                     -                   959,138        959,138          
Public access network 88,536            -                     -                   -                    88,536            
Parks -                     -                     -                   676,462        676,462          

Committed to:
Downtown services parking -                     -                     -                   217,989        217,989          

Assigned to:
Future bridge assistance 1,464,107       -                     -                   -                    1,464,107       
Information technology projects -                     -                     -                   663,760        663,760          
Other capital projects -                     -                     7,804,981    -                    7,804,981       

Unassigned 42,860,830     -                     -                   (9,095)           42,851,735     

Total fund balances 45,810,264$   26,419,908$   8,157,697$  8,623,873$   89,011,742$   

Major Funds

 
(9)  Minimum fund balance policy 

 
In order to maintain a margin of safety in the General Fund fund balance in anticipation of 
economic downturns or natural disasters, the City Commission has adopted an ordinance, 
requiring a minimum fund balance of 140 days of expenditures. 
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II.  Stewardship, compliance and accountability 

 
(A)  Budgetary information 
 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected 
in the basic financial statements: 

 
1. Prior to August 1 of each year, the City Manager is required to submit to the City 

Commission a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following 
October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means 
of financing them. 

 
2.   Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through 

passage of an ordinance. 
 
4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts 

within any department; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any department must be approved by the City Commission.  Budgeted amounts 
include transfers and revisions to the original appropriations ordinance. 

 
5. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental funds with the 

exception of less significant grants. 
 
6. The budget and actual comparisons include the General Fund, and the Development 

Corp Fund. Budgets for these funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of American (US 
GAAP) applicable to state and local governments.  Budgets for proprietary funds 
have been prepared on a non-US GAAP basis, which excludes depreciation but 
includes capital outlay and debt principal payments. 

 
7. Annual budgeted expenditures are adopted at the department level within funds.  As 

previously noted, the City Manager is authorized to make transfers within a 
department.  Accordingly, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed 
appropriations is the department level.  During the year, several supplementary 
appropriations were necessary. 

 
(B)  Excess of expenditures over appropriations 
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For the year ended September 30, 2012, expenditures in certain general fund departments 
exceeded appropriations.  The related departments and the excess of expenditures over 
appropriations are reflected in the following page:   
 
    

   

Department:

  Special service 127,005$    
  City secretary 2,334         
  Audit office 1,296         
  Finance 17,610       
  Tax office 54,822       
  Legal 180,523     
  Building maintenance 11,934       
  Police 43,120       
  Communication technology 44,850       
  Fire 232,486     
  Traffic operations 32,367       
  Street lighting 437,287     
  Other agencies 627,143     
  Parks 313,207     
  Recreation 192,162     
  Pools 58,824       
  Quinta Mazatlan 24,005       

    Total general fund 2,400,975$  

 
 
III.  Detailed notes on all funds 

 
(A)  Deposits and investments 
 

It is the City’s policy as well as a requirement in its Depository Agreement for deposits plus 
accrued interest thereon to be 110% secured by collateral valued at fair value, less the amount 
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance.  At September 30, 2012, the City’s 
deposits were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance or were secured by collateral held 
by the City’s agent in the City’s name pursuant to the City’s Investment Policy and its 
Depository Agreement.   
 

Investments at fair value, including accrued interest, as of September 30, 2012 are reflected in 
the table that follows: 

  



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2012 
 
 

- 68 - 
 

 

Fair Value 1 or less 2 3+ 4+

Tex Pool 52,808,197$    52,808,197$   -$                 -$                  -$                 
Certificates of deposit 44,492,841      32,081,938    12,410,903 -                   -                    
U.S. Government
   securities 139,115,823    10,178,438    57,909,216 71,028,169  -                  

236,416,861$  95,068,573$   70,320,119$ 71,028,169$ -$                 

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
Public funds investment pools 

Public funds investment pools in Texas (“Pools”) are established under the authority of the 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code and are subject to the 
provisions of the Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, 
the Act requires Pools to:  (1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and 
other persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise 
the pool; (2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and (3) maintain the fair value of its 
underling investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the values of its shares. 
 

The City’s investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per 
share of the pool’s underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are 
reported at amortized cost.  A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy 
that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment 
Company Act of 1940. 
 

TexPool is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Act.  The State Comptroller of Public 
Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool.  Oversight includes the ability to 
significantly influence operations, designation of management, and accountability for fiscal 
matters.  Additionally, the State Comptroller of Public Accounts has established an Advisory 
Board composed both of participants in TexPool and of other persons who do not have a 
business relationship with TexPool.  The Advisory Board members review the investment 
policy and management fee structure. 
 
The City believes TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940.  As such, TexPool uses amortized cost to report net assets 
and share prices since that amount approximates fair value.  The City believes that TexPool 
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operates as a 2a-7 like pool as described in GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instrument 
Omnibus. 
 
Interest rate risk. The investment policy states that no investment shall exceed seven years 
in maturity.  By limiting the exposure of its investments by no more than three years as 
reflected in the schedule below, the City reduces its risk to rising interest rates.  The table 
that follows reflects the allocation of the investment portfolio. 
  

  

Government Certificates
Agencies of  Deposit

< 1 Year 10,178,438$      32,081,938$        
1-3 Years 128,937,385      12,410,903          
4 Years     -                        -                          

Total 139,115,823$    44,492,841$        

 Weighted
Average Maturity 709 Days 108 Days  

 
 
Credit risk.  As of September 30, 2012, the investments in the State’s investment pool was 
rated AAAm by Standards and Poor’s.  Available funds were invested in certificates of 
deposit, all of which are under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit, as well as 
with the City’s depository bank, First National Bank, a privately owned bank.  However, 
the collateral pledged against the certificates of deposit with First National Bank is 
comprised of government securities, which carry AAA rating.  The government securities 
consist of instruments issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation, both of which are rated AAA by the rating agencies:  Moody’s 
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings.  The City’s investment policy limits authorized 
investments to TexPool, certificates of deposits, U.S. Treasuries and federal government 
agencies, excluding Student Loan Marketing Association and Tennessee Valley Authority 
and mortgage backed securities. 
 
Concentration of credit risk.  The certificate of deposits holdings at September 30, 2012 
represents 18.8% of the total portfolio.  The U.S. government agencies category represents 
58.8% of the total portfolio.  Within this category, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank represent 36% of the portfolio, those issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
represent 22%, those issued by Federal Farm Credit Bank represent 14%, and those issued by 
Federal National Mortgage Association represent 28%.  The investment policy is silent in the 
concentration of holding in the various types of securities and investments. 
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Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments 
 

 The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments (Plan) are recorded at fair value as of 
September 30, 2012.  The table in the following page reflects the composition of these 
investments. 

 

  

Investment Policy
Asset

Fair Value % of Portfolio Allocation
Equities:
   Domestic 17,365,812$  49.28% 30-60%
   International 3,275,077      9.29% 10-30%

Equities total 20,640,889    

Fixed income
Treasury/corporate bonds 10,997,816    

Fixed income total 10,997,816    31.21% 30-50%
 

Alternative investments 3,603,294 10.22% 0-20%

Total portfolio 35,241,999$  100.00%

 
 

Because of the complexity of the portfolio, the firemen’s board of trustees relies on its 
consultant to provide the necessary guidance to accomplish the Plan’s objectives.  The Board 
also understands that return objectives can be achieved while assuming “market” volatility.  
The Board is willing to forgo potential return in strong markets in return for protection against 
a severe decline during weak periods. 
 

Concentration of credit risk.  As noted in the above schedule, none of the sectors exceed 
their percentage of asset allocation.     The Plan is well diversified; with no one issue 
exceeding 5%.  With the exception of the alternative investments, the portfolio can be 
liquidated within one to two days if so desired.  Alternative investments can only be 
liquidated quarterly.   
 
Interest rate risk.  Only the fixed income securities of the Plan are subject to interest rate 
risk due to the possibility that prevailing interest rates could change before the securities 
reach maturity.  Securities that are subject to interest rate risk as of September 30, 2012 
amount to $6,205,448 and have weighted-average duration of 6.64 years.  Durations is 
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defined as the change in the value of a fixed income security that will result from a 1% 
change in interest rates.  Duration is stated in years.  For example, 5 year duration means the 
bond will decrease in value by 5% if interest rates rise 1% and increase in value by 5% if 
interest rates fall 1%.  Securities that are subject to interest rate risk are shown in the 
following table.  The investment policy is silent on the subject. 
  

Weighted-Average
Percentage Duration

Investment Type Fair Value of Total (Years)

Corporate bonds 797,327$        12.85% 5.69

Government agencies 1,767              0.03% 2.34
Government bonds 5,394,584       86.93% 6.78
Government MBS 966                 0.02% 3.73

Sub-pranationals 10,802            0.17% 8.05
Municipal & derivatives 2                     0.00% -0.49

Total interest rate sensitive bonds 6,205,448$    100.00% 6.64

 
 
Credit risk.  Using Standard and Poor’s rating system for fixed income securities as of 
September 30, 2012 the Plan’s bonds were rated as noted below. The investment policy is 
silent on the subject. 

Percentage S&P
Fair Value of Total Rating

24,782$          0.40% AAA
61,832            1.00% AA

335,856          5.41% A
2,861,483       46.11% BBB
1,478,639       23.83% BB
1,155,860       18.63% B

14,288            0.23% CCC
272,708          4.39% Not rated

Total credit sensitive bonds 6,205,448$    100.00%

 
Foreign currency risk.  The Plan has one equity investment manager that has direct foreign 
currency exposure.  The table that follows represents a summary of the country/currency 
allocations as of September 30, 2012.  The investment policy is silent on the subject. 
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Percentage
Country Fair Value of Total

Brazil 127,802$          3.90%
Canada 147,464            4.50%
China 255,603            7.80%
Denmark 98,309              3.00%
Europe (forwards) 1,387                0.04%
France 232,665            7.10%
Germany 412,898            12.61%
Hong Kong 68,816              2.10%
Ireland 75,370              2.30%
Israel 104,863            3.20%
Japan 291,650            8.91%
Mexico 45,878              1.40%
Netherlands 75,370              2.30%
Russia 16,385              0.50%
South Korea 91,755              2.80%
Sweden 88,478              2.70%
Switzerland 252,326            7.70%
United States 150,740            4.60%
United Kingdom 737,318            22.51%

Totals 3,275,077$       100.00%

 
 
 

 
(B) Receivables 

 
 
Receivables for the City’s governmental activities and business type activities at year end are 
reflected in the following table: 
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Inter- Net
Accounts Taxes Interest governmental Other Receivables

Governmental activities:
General 1,840,304$      11,571,789$   69,894$        34,601$         573,835$    14,090,423$    
Development corp. -                      2,432,289       42,448          -                    -                  2,474,737        
Capital Improvement -                      -                      11,149          296,638         4,244          312,031           
Nonmajor governmental
and internal services 1,222,766        37,984            56,257          1,966,757      408,744      3,692,508        

Total governmental 3,063,070$      14,042,062$   179,748$      2,297,996$    986,823$    20,569,699$    

Business-type activities:
Water 1,997,606$      -$                    11,009$        -$                  65$             2,008,680$      
Sewer 1,869,049        -                      4,253            -                    19,705        1,893,007        
Sanitation 2,135,067        -                      6,629            -                    867             2,142,563        
Convention center 34,833             -                      2,876            -                    5,124          42,833             
McAllen international 
airport 434,491           -                      3,888            17,157           1,165          456,701           
Nonmajor enterprise and 
fleet 32,845             -                      2,625            397,745         -                  433,215           

Total business type 6,503,891$      -$                    31,280$        414,902$       26,926$      6,976,999$      

 
Within the City’s water, sewer, and sanitation funds, an estimated amount has been recorded for 
services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the year.  The receivable was determined by 
prorating the cycle billings sent to customers in October 2012 based on the number of days 
applicable to the prior fiscal year.  The receivable balances in the water, sewer, and sanitation have 
been reduced by estimated allowances for doubtful accounts.  Water accounts were reduced by 
$71,067; sewer accounts by $65,814; and sanitation accounts by $91,204. 

 
 
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are 
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the 
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue 
reported in the fund financial statements are reflected in the following page. 
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Unavailable Unearned

Governmental funds:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) 3,646,065$       -$                   

Sales tax (general fund) 5,054,594         -                     

Sales tax (development corp fund) 1,263,649         -                     

Other 3,245,393         558,431          

Total deferred/unearned revenues for governmental funds 13,209,701$     558,431$        

 
 
(C) Capital assets 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Retirement/ Ending

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 48,031,171        $ 641,237           (1,560,985)    $ 47,111,423         

Construction in progress 53,244,610        4,732,006        (14,314,153)  43,662,463         

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated 101,275,781      5,373,243        (15,875,138)  90,773,886         

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 96,654,471        7,139,829        -                    103,794,300       

Equipment 67,231,249        5,611,508        (370,307)       72,472,450         

Infrastructure 174,824,090      4,737,009        -                    179,561,099       

Total capital assets being depreciated 338,709,810      17,488,346      (370,307)       355,827,849       

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (32,014,194)      (3,124,233)       -                    (35,138,427)        

Equipment (45,156,769)      (5,187,002)       370,307         (49,973,464)        

Infrastructure (96,976,634)      (5,990,031)       -                    (102,966,665)      

Total accumulated depreciation (174,147,597)    (14,301,266)     370,307         (188,078,556)      

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 164,562,213      3,187,080        -                    167,749,293       

Governmental activities capital assets net $ 265,837,994      $ 8,560,323        $ (15,875,138)  $ 258,523,179       

(1)

(1) $15,520,0138 represents a project, Boeye Reservior, that was transferred to the Water Fund.  
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Depreciation expense, exclusive of $370,307 in depreciation retirement, was charged to governmental 
functions as follows: 
 

General government 1,622,332$       

Public safety 2,212,136         

Highways and streets, which includes the depreciation of

 general infrastructure assets 6,303,618         

Health and welfare 24,673              

Culture and recreation 2,207,489         

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's

 internal service funds is charged to the various functions

 based on their usage of the assets 1,931,018         

Total depreciation-governmental activities 14,301,266$     
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Beginning Retirement/ Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 20,464,078      $ 7,000             $ 676,072          $ 21,147,150       
Construction in progress 48,344,717      6,165,649      (29,034)           54,481,332       
Water rights (perpetual) 4,923,100        -                     -                      4,923,100         
Capitalized interest 6,989,873        227,891         -                      7,217,764         
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 80,721,768      6,400,540      647,038          87,769,346       

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 416,993,322    13,878,246    14,873,100     445,744,668     
Equipment (1) 45,287,244      3,660,825      (3 ,500)             48,944,569       
Water rights (non-perpetual) 2,200,000        -                     -                      2,200,000         

Total capital assets being depreciated 464,480,566    17,539,071    14,869,600     496,889,237     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (149,979,740)   (13,655,607)   -                      (163,635,347)    
Equipment (25,624,714)     (3,942,224)     3 ,500              (29,563,438)      
Water rights (412,500)          (110,000)        -                      (522,500)           

Total accumulated depreciation (176,016,954)   (17,707,831)   3 ,500              (193,721,285)    

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 288,463,612    (168,760)        14,873,100     303,167,952     

Business-type activities 
Capital assets net $ 369,185,380    $ 6,231,780      $ 15,520,138     $ 390,937,298     

(1)

 
(1) During the year, previous construction in progress known as “Boeye Reservior” project, in 

the governmental funds were transferred to the Water Fund in the net amount of 
$15,520,138.  This project added more water capacity and would serve its current 
customer base as well as in the future.   
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Depreciation expense, exclusive of $3,500 in depreciation retirement, was charged to business 
type activity functions as follows: 
 

  

Water 3,515,055$     
Sewer 3,913,143       
Sanitation 1,756,762       
Golf course 354,025          

Civic center 75,173            
Convention center 1,606,634       
McAllen international airport 3,337,995       
McAllen express 676,276          
Transit terminal 319,126          
McAllen international toll bridge 573,073          
Anzalduas international crossing 1,538,249       

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's
 internal service funds is charged to the various functions
 based on their usage of the assets 42,320            

Total depreciation-business type activities 17,707,831$   
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At September 30, 2012, the City had the following significant remaining contractual 
commitments for various construction and improvement projects: 

 

Remaining
Project Description Commitment Financing Sources

Paving and drainage 5,118,508$   Local and grant
Boye reservior relocation 10,228          Local and bond fund
Bentsen road canal replacement 10,147          Local
Sewer improvements (1) 682,766        Local and bond fund
Water improvements 1,200,411     Local 
Airport improvements 15,250,714   Local and bond fund
Toll bridge improvements 678,876        Local and grant
NWWT plant improvements 57,198          Local

23,008,848$ 

(1) $682,766 is related to improvement financed by the Texas Water
Development Board (Stimulus Funds) an interest free loan, which is
funded on expense-reimbursement basis.
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(D)  Interfund receivables, advances and transfers 
 

The compositions of inter-fund balances as of September 30, 2012 are reflected below.  
 

Receivable Fund: Payable Fund: Amount

General Fund Miscellaneous Grants Fund 159,453$      
Community Development Fund 563,208        
McAllen Bridge Fund 1,785            

Total Governmental Funds 724,446$      

Civic Center Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 36,923$        

Convention Center Fund Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund 147,690$      

Convention Center Fund Civic Center Fund 100,000$      

Total Proprietary Funds 284,613$      

Combined totals 1,009,059$   

 
 

The due to/from other funds primarily represent temporary short-term borrowings for working 
capital, which are intended to be satisfied soon after year end. 
 
Advances to/from other funds: 
 

 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Sanitation Fund 150,000$      
Capital Improvement Fund Transit Terminal Fund 352,716        

Total 502,716$      

 
 
The General Fund advance to the Sanitation Fund was to finance that fund’s construction of a 
recycling center.  It is expected to be repaid with the sales proceeds of improved property 
owned by the debtor fund.  During the year, a payment of $250,000 was made from earnings 
of the fund, thus reducing the advance amount to $150,000.  
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The Capital Improvement Fund advanced the Transit Terminal Fund $352,716 to assist in 
funding the acquisition and construction of the transit terminal building.   
 
Transfers are used to 1) provide unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds, and 2) move revenues from the fund that the 
budget requires to collect them to the fund that the budget requires to expend them.  The table 
below reflects the transfer activity at year end. 

 

Anzalduas Int 'l

General Capital Convention Nonmajor Nonmajor Crossing

Fund Imprv. Center Governmental Proprietary Fund Total

Transfer out:

General fund -$                    1,200,000$      -$                    3,507,025$      -$                       -$                       4,707, 025$          

Development corp. 3,507,025        29,060             -                      769,710           1,076,5 99          -                         5,382, 394            

Capital impv. Fund -                      -                       135,831           -                         -                         135, 831               

Nonmajor prop. funds -                      427,937           -                         427, 937               

Nonmajor gov. funds 596,657           525,000           2,002 ,277        -                       500,5 69             -                         3,624, 503            

McAllen int'l  toll bridge 4,168,414        -                       -                      -                       -                         671,8 68             4,840, 282            

McAllen int'l  airport 1,103,965        -                       -                      -                       -                         -                         1,103, 965            

Total 9,376,061$      2,181,997$      2,002 ,277$      4,412,566$      1,577,1 68$        671,8 68$           20,221, 937$        

Trans fer In:

 
During the year, the General Fund transferred $1,200,000 of surplus revenues to the Capital 
Improvement Fund to assist in funding some major projects contemplated in next year’s 
budget.  It also provided funding in the amount of $3,507,025 to the Debt Service Fund, a non 
major governmental fund. This funding is to cover the debt service requirements of the existing 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2010.  
 
The Development Corporation provided funding for operating costs to the McAllen Express 
Fund in the amounts of $1,076,599, as reflected in the non-major proprietary column.  It also 
transferred $3,507,025 to the General Fund for operating expenditures associated with the 
public safety building, which was originally a project of the development corporation fund.  It 
also transferred $769,710 to the Certificate of Obligation Reservior, a non-major governmental 
fund, towards the completion of the Boeye Reservior project.  A lesser amount of $29,060 was 
transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund.  
 
The transfers of $2,002,277 and $500,269 from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund, a non-major 
governmental fund, to the Convention Center and Civic Center respectively represent the use 
of the former fund as a conduit to these funds.  The transfer of $596,657 from the Downtown 
Service Parking Fund, a non-major governmental fund, to the General Fund is a reimbursement 
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for debt service requirements on the debt related to the downtown parking garage.  The transfer 
of $1,103,965 from the Airport Fund to the General Fund represents reimbursement for public 
safety personnel assigned to the airport. 
 
The amount reflected from the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund to the General Fund of 
$4,168,414 represents the City’s share of surplus net revenue from operation of the 
international toll bridge.  Additionally, it transferred $671,868 to the Anzalduas International 
Crossing Fund for debt service requirements on the International Toll Bridge System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2007B. 
 

 
(E)  Long-term debt 
 
(1)  General obligation bonds and other   
 
The City issues general obligation bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities, generally for governmental activities and are direct obligations, for which the 
City has pledged the full faith and credit of the government.  These bonds generally are serial 
bonds and carry a term of 20 years or more with varying amounts of principal maturing each 
year.  All outstanding general obligation bonds have been retired, leaving only sales tax 
revenue bonds and combination of tax and revenue certificates of obligation bond 
indebtedness. 

  
The schedule that follows presents an analysis of general long-term debt outstanding, followed 
by a schedule of the debt service requirements on those bonds. 
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Governmental activities

$25,000,000 Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc.
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998  due in annual installments of
$25,000 per year through February 15, 2018; interest
at 4.80% to 5.25% 150,000$        

  $25,030,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
    Series 2010 due in annual installments ranging from $2,170,000 to
    $3,450,000 per year through February 15, 2020, with a final installment
    of $3,450,000; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 24,355,000     

Net OPEB obligation 1,049,270       

Net pension obligation 275,507          

Bond premium 1,010,152       

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 8,427,560       

Total general long-term debt 35,267,489$   

 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity on sales tax bonds payable and combination tax 
and revenue certificates of obligation as of September 30, 2012, including interest, are reflected in 
the table below: 
 

  

Year Ending Principal Interest

2013 2,645,000       893,637             
2014 2,765,000       773,331             

2015 2,890,000       646,894             
2016 3,025,000       513,957             
2017 3,145,000       390,244             

2018-2020 10,035,000     513,319             

Totals 24,505,000$   3,731,382$        
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(2) Revenue bonds and other 
 
The City also issues bonds, for which it pledges revenue, derived from the activity using the bond-
financed assets, to pay debt service.  The following schedule is an analysis of the business-type 
activity long-term debt, including related revenue bonds. 
   
Payable from Water Fund:

$14,263,200 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 due in annual installments from 
$30,000 to $2,005,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 3.00% to 5.25% 12,471,200$   

$12,029,050 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000
to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 10,758,472     

Bond premium 685,862          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 360,575          

Total water fund 24,276,109$    
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Payable from Sewer Fund:

$11,206,800 -Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue 9,798,800$     
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 due in annual installments from $30,000
to $2,005,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 3.00% to 5.25%

$26,525,950 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue
and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000 
to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 23,766,530$   

$39,485,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009
due in annual installments from $1,090,000 to $1,350,000
 through February 1, 2040: with no interest 37,305,000     

$1,190,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue
Series 2012 due in annual installments from $95,000 to $1,135,000 
through February 1, 2022: interest at 0.240% to 0.850%; with interest 
commencing  February 1, 2019 1,190,000       

Bond premium 1,385,249       

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 277,228          

Total sewer fund 73,722,807$   

Payable from Sanitation Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 266,937$        

Payable from Palm View Golf Course Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 70,362$          

Payable from  Convention Center Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 80,978$          
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Payable from McAllen International Airport Fund:
$9,820,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation
Bonds, Series 2011 due in annual installments from $325,000 
to $710,000 through September 30, 2031: interest at 2.00% to 4.75% 9,495,000$     

Note payable due Water Fund at 4% 108,335          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 65,479            

Total airport fund 9,668,814$     

Payable from McAllen Express Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 53,113$          

Payable from Transit System Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 41,158$          

Payable from McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund:
Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 94,122$          

Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund:
$26,000,000 International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A
due in annual installments from $415,000 to $1,895,000 through
March 1, 2032: interest at 4.50% to 4.65% 24,700,000$   

Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund (Continued):
$13,160,000  International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007B
due in annual installments from $340,000 to $915,000 through
March 1, 2032: interest at 4.00% to 5.00% 12,095,000     

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 9,120              

Bond premium 502,436          

Total Anzalduas International Crossing Fund 37,306,556$   

 



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2012 
 
 

- 86 - 
 

Payable from Fleet Materials Management Fund (an internal service 
fund treated as BTA):

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 31,612$          

Total Proprietary Fund Debt 145,504,233$ 

 
Repayment for the $39,485,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, which 
were sold to the Texas Water Development Board is on a “cash reimbursement basis”. To-date the 
total amount received for the construction phase is $37,035,000.    With principal payments made in 
the amount of $1,090,000, the current outstanding principal balance is $34,855,000. 
 
The table below reflects the revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity. 
  

Year Ending Principal Interest

2013 5,740,000$     4,761,591$        
2014 5,940,000       4,564,293          
2015 6,360,000       4,363,468          
2016 6,650,000       4,143,181          
2017 6,895,000       3,893,205          

2018-2022 33,930,000     15,552,099        
2023-2027 33,760,000     9,075,182          
2028-2032 31,500,000     2,707,326          
2033-2037 6,755,000       -                         
2038-2040 4,050,000       -                         

Total bonds  
outstanding 141,580,000$ 49,060,345$      

(1) (2,450,000)      -                         

Net bonds 
outstanding 139,130,000$ 49,060,345$      

(1) At September 30, 2012, this amount was not  available. The
draws on the 2009-Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds
are on a "cost reimbursement basis".
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(3)  Changes in long-term liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2012 is shown in the table below: 
 

Additional
Balance at Obligations Retirement Balance at Amounts

September 30, and Net and Net September 30, Due Within
2011 Increases Decreases 2012 One Year

Governmental activities:

Sales tax revenue bonds 175,000$          -$                   (25,000)$          150,000$          25,000$          

Combination tax and revenue 
Certificate of obligation 26,860,000       -                     (2,505,000)       24,355,000       2,620,000       

Bond premium 1,147,122         -                     (136,970)          1,010,152         136,970          
Compensated absences 8,044,122         4,883,438      (4,500,000)       8,427,560         4,500,000       
Net OPEB obligation -                       1,049,270      -                       1,049,270         -                     
Net pension obligation 182,630            92,877           -                       275,507            -                     

Total general long-term 36,226,244       6,025,585      (7,166,970)       35,267,489       7,281,970       

Business-Type activities:
Revenue bonds payable 127,580,000     16,980,000    (5,429,998)       139,130,002     5,740,000       
Note payable -                       108,335         -                       108,335            -                     
Compensated absences 1,205,730         990,224         (870,000)          1,325,954         878,000          
Bond premium 2,714,649         -                     (141,102)          2,573,547         -                     

Total proprietary fund debt 131,500,379     18,078,559    (6,441,100)       143,137,838     6,618,000       

Total debt 167,726,623$   24,104,144$  (13,608,070)$   178,405,327$   13,899,970$   

 
With respect to governmental activities, claims and judgments, net OPEB obligation, and 
compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.  The exception to this is 
net pension obligation, which is reflected as $275,507. 
 
 

(4) Debt covenants 
 

The City is required to comply with various provisions included in the trust indenture for 
issued bonds (including bonds issued through the Texas Water Development Board).  The City 
has complied with all significant provisions of the trust indenture. 
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IV.  Other information 
 
(A)  Risk Management 
 
 The City is exposed to various risks or torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 

injuries to employees, citizens and the general public; and natural disasters.  During fiscal 
year 2012, the City self-funded group health insurance, life insurance, general liability 
insurance, and workmen’s compensation insurance.  The City purchased insurance coverage 
for fire and extended coverage on buildings and contents; and fire, lightning, and windstorm 
insurance for its vehicles for damages in excess of certain limits. 
 
The group health insurance program is reported in the Employee Benefits Fund, an internal 
service fund.  General liability and workmen’s compensation insurance programs are reported 
in the General Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, and the Retiree Health Insurance 
Fund, an internal service fund. 

  
 The health insurance excess coverage policy covers individual claims in excess of $150,000.  

Third-party coverage is currently maintained for workmen’s compensation claims in excess of 
$400,000.  Third-party coverage is also currently maintained for general liability claims in 
excess of $10,000. 

  
 The City estimates the liabilities for its self-funded insurance programs on a case-by-case 

basis based on historical claims experience.  A liability for a claim is established if 
information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the 
financial statements and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable.  Accruals for claims are 
adjusted on a regular basis based on the latest information available on each case.  Claims 
incurred but not reported have been considered in determining the accrual for claims, and City 
management believes adequate accruals have been provided at September 30, 2012.  Inter-
fund premiums are based primarily on claims experience and are reported as quasi-external 
transactions. 

 
 There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year by 

major category of risk.  In addition, there were no insurance settlements exceeding insurance 
coverage in any of the past three years. Changes in claims payable amounts for the most 
recent two years are reflected in the following page. 
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Retiree

Employee Health General
Benefits Insurance Insurance Total

Claims payable at      
September 30, 2010 (1,000,000)$  (240,000)$    (572,957)$     (1,812,957)$  

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (8,777,808)    (945,076)      (1,853,197)    (11,576,081)  

Current period claims paid 8,027,808      945,076        1,923,159     10,896,043    

Claims payable at       
September 30, 2011 (1,750,000)    (240,000)      (502,995)       (2,492,995)    

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (7,325,477)    (791,488)      (1,274,642)    (9,391,607)    

Current period claims paid 7,325,477      791,488        1,410,162     9,527,127      

Claims payable at     
September 30, 2012 (1,750,000)$ (240,000)$   (367,475)$     (2,357,475)$ 

 
(B) Contingent liabilities  

 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if 
any of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, 
although the City expects such amounts, if any to be immaterial. 
 
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s management and legal counsel the 
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of 
the City. 
 
The City has been granted authority from U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service to operate 
an EB-5 Visa (also known as the Employment Based 5th Preference Visa) Regional Center, 
which attracts foreign investment for jobs creation in exchange for expediting applicants for 
permanent residency.  This activity is accounted for in a non-major governmental fund.  
Under this program a foreign national deposits with the City—in addition to $10,000 
application fee, $540,000, which is held in deposit pending approval of permanent residency, 
at which time $40,000 is released to the City as an administrative fee and the remaining 
$500,000 to the investment project selected by applicant.  As of September 30, 2012 the 
account deposited amounted to $2,700,000.   
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(C) Accounting for post-employment benefits other than pensions 

Prior to the implementation of GASB 45 ''Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
for Pos/employment Benefits Other Than Pensions ", the City reported retiree's hea lth benefits 
in the Employee Benefits Fund. The City created an internal service fund entitled " Retiree 
Health Insurance Fund" to accommodate the provisions of GASB 45. 

(\) 	Plan Description: The City provides post-employment health care benefits for eligible 
retirees and their dependents. To be eligible to eject retiree medical coverage, a City 
employee retiring at age 60 or over must have at least 10 years of se rvice with the 
City. City employees retiring before age 60 must have at least 25 year of service with 
the City. Members of the City's Fire Department are eligible to retire on or after age 
50 with at least 20 years of service with the City. 

Effective October I, 2008, spouses must have been covered for at least three years 
prior to retirement, Retirees less than age 65 will have a one-time option to drop 
coverage and to be reinstated once the retiree reached age 65 and has enrolled in 
Medicare Parts A and B. Retirees are required to pay 100% of the blended (active and 
retiree) premium cost for both single and dependent coverage. However, police 
officers who retire prior to October I, 20 I 0 with 25 or more years of service will pay 
50% of the blended premium cost for both single and dependent coverage. As of 
yearend, there were 118 employees who had retired: 47 with single coverage; 31 
sing le coverage with one dependent; and 40 with family coverage. 

(2) Funding Policy: The policy of the City is to fund the plan on a pay-tls-you-go basis. 

(3) Annual OPES Cost and Net OPES Obligation: The Retiree Health Insurance Fund's 
(Fund) ARC is ac(uarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45, Accounling and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Poslemploymenl Benefits Other Than Pension. The ARC represent s a level o f funding 
thal, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projec ted to cover the normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded ac tuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 
exceed 30 years. The most curren! actuaria l valuation was October I, 20 I O. The 
following table shows the Fund 's annua l OPEB cost for the year. the amOUill actua lly 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Fund 's net OPEB obligation. 
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09/30/12

Annual required contribution 859,964$      
Interest on net OPEB obligation (10,591)        
Adjustment to annual required contribution 13,253          

Annual OPEB cost 862,626        
Contributions made (385,550)      

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 477,076        

Net OPEB obligation (asset) at beginning of year (revised) 572,194        

Net OPEB obligation (asset) at end of year 1,049,270$   

Net OPEB Obligation

 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost and the percentage cost contributed to the plan for the 
year ended September 30, 2012 is as follows: 

   

Annual Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Obligation (Asset)

September 30, Cost Cost Contributed at Year End

2008 548,770$   136.6% (201,098)$          
2009 551,544     96.2% (179,896)            
2010 882,368     51.5% 248,430             
2011 882,368     62.2% 572,194             
2012 862,625     44.7% 1,049,270          

 
  
 

(4) Funded Status and Funding Progress:  The funding of the plan was based on the 
actuarial valuation dated October 1, 2010.  The study reported the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) at $8,076,583 with an annual required cost of $859,964. The 
actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an UAAL of $8,076,583.  The City will 
also be required to have an actuarial valuation performed at least every two years. The 
table in the following page reflects the funding progress.  
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered rercentage of 
Vnluation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (,) « b-,)',) 

10/01106 $ $ 4,568,795 $ 4,568,795 0.0% $ 5 1,690,160 8.8% 
10/01/08 7,253,404 7,253,404 0.0%. 60,443,815 12.0% 
10/011 10 8,076,583 8,076,583 0.0010 62,858.165 12.8% 

(5) Actuarial Methods and 	Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting 
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefits costs between the employer 
and the plan members to that point. The actuaria l methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volati li ty in 
actuarial accrued liabil ities consistent w ith the long-term pe rspec tive of the 
ca lcula tions. For the fi scal year ended Se ptember 30. 20 12, the ac tuarial valuation 
date was Oc tobe r I, 20 I O. The actuarial method used was the "projected unit credit" 
method, the amortization method used was the " le ve l do llar open" method, and (he 
remaining amoniza ti on period was 30 years. The asse t va hmtion method was market 
va lue and the assumed in vestment rate of return was 5.5%. The hea lthcare initial 
inflation rate was 10%, with an ultimate goa l o r 5.00/0. Assumptions such as projected 
sa lary increases and post-re tirement bene fit increases are not applicab le 10 the plan. 

(D) Reliremenl Plans 

( I ) Texas Municipal Retirement System 

a} . Plan Description 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees, except City 
Fire Depanment personnel, for whom there is a separate retirement plan. th rough 
a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). an agent mUltiple-employer public 
employee retirement system. The plan provisions th at have been adopted by the 
City are within the options available in the governing slate statutes ofTMRS. 
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for 
TMRS; the repon also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefi ts 
and actuarial methods and assumptions used the System. This report may be 
obtained by writing to Texas Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 149 153, 
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Austin, Texas 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is 
available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com. 
 
The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the 
options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.  Plan provisions for the 
City were as follows: 
 
 Plan Year 2011 Plan Year 2012 
Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0% 
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1 
Years required for vesting 10 10 
Service retirement eligibility 
(expressed as age/years of service) 

60/10,0/20 60/10,0/20 

Updated Service Credit 0% 0%  
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI 
 
 

 b). Contributions 
 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is 
determined annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost 
method.  This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service 
cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year 
to-year.  The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active 
member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate 
amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable 
period for that city.  Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates 
include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as 
Updated Service Credits and Annuity increases. 
 
The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate.  Both the 
employees and the City make contributions monthly.  Since the City needs to 
know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year 
delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the 
calendar year when the rate goes into effect.  In meeting its fiscal responsibility, 
the City issued a lump sum contribution of $250K for fiscal year 2011.  It was an 
effort to reduce potential unfunded actuarial liability.  Additionally, the City’s 
contribution rate was 8.64% and 8.52% for 2010 and 2011 respectively.  For the 
current year the contribution rate was 5.22%   The annual pension cost and the net 
pension obligation/ (asset) are reflected in the following page. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost 

Actual 
Contribution 

Percentage 
of APC 

Contributed 

Net Pension 
Obligation/(Asset)

09/30/2010 $4,693,532 $4,693,532 100% $0 
09/30/2011 $5,101,423 $5,101,423 100% $0 
09/30/2012 $3,414,628 $3,414,628 100% $0 

 
The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2012 were determined as part of the 
December 31, 2008 and 2009 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of 
the latest actuarial valuation, December 2011, is reflected below. 

   

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/11

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll

GASB 25 Equivalent Single 25.5 Years 
Amortization period Closed period

Asset valuation method 10-yr Smoothed Market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.0%
Projected salary increases – Varies by 

age and service
includes inflation at 3.0%

cost-of-living adjustments None

Actuarial value of assets $161,885,479

Actuarial accrued liability $159,194,692

Percentage funded 101.7%

Unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (asset) (UAAL) ($2,690,787)

Annual covered payroll $56,625,910

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll -4.8%  

   
The funded status as of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date 
is as follows (unaudited): 
 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $159,194,692 
Actuarial value of Assets 161,885.479 
  

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (Asset) 
(UAAL) 

$ (2,690,787) 

Funded ratio (actuarial value of Assets/AAL) 101.7% 
Annual covered payroll $59,840,444 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll (4.8)% 
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary 
Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year 
trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.   

  
 
 
 
(2) Firemen’s Fund 

 
a). Plan Description     

 
Firemen’s Fund, a single-employer defined benefit plan (the “Plan”), was created 
pursuant to the Texas Local Fire Fighter’s Retirement Act (“TLFFRA”) and is 
administered by the Board of Trustees of the fund.  The fund provides pension, 
disability, death, and severance benefits to employees of the City’s fire department 
and former volunteer firemen eligible to receive benefits. 
 
The City issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Firemen’s Fund.  This 
financial report may be obtained by writing to the City of McAllen Finance 
Director, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas 78505-0220 or by calling (956) 681-1064. 

 
b).  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements of the Firemen’s Fund are prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting.  Employee and employer contributions are 
recognized as revenues when due, pursuant to formal commitments, as well as 
statutory or contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan document. 
 
Plan Benefits – Benefit provisions are established under authority of the TLFFRA.  
Specific plan provisions are governed by a Plan document and a trust agreement 
executed by the Board of Trustees.  The Plan document may be amended as 
provided in Section 7 of the TLFFRA (Article 6243e. V.T.C.S.)  Amending the Plan 
requires approval of any proposed change by an eligible actuary and a majority of 
the participating members of the Plan.  Both the City and the members of the Plan 
have specific authority to appoint members of the Board under TLFFRA. 

 
Pension Benefits – Pension benefits become fully vested after 20 years of credited 
service.  Employees may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service (“normal 
retirement age”).  A partially vested benefit is also provided for employees who 
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terminate employment with at least 10 but less than 20 years of service.  The 
monthly benefit at normal retirement age, payable in an annuity, is equal to 58% of 
the compensation base, as defined, plus $58.00 per month for each year of service in 
excess of 20 years. 

 
Death Benefits – Duty related death benefits payable to a member’s spouse equals 
the sum of 38.67% of the member’s compensation base, as defined, plus two-thirds 
of the member’s accrued retirement benefit at death.  Non-duty related benefits will 
equal the duty related death benefit to which the member’s beneficiary was eligible 
multiplied by the member’s vested percentage based on the member’s years of 
service at death.  In addition to the spouse’s benefit, each unmarried child of the 
member under age 18 will receive a monthly benefit of 7.73% of the firefighter’s 
average monthly salary.  The sum of all benefits payable as a result of the death of 
an active plan member may not exceed the disability or retirement benefit such 
member had earned as of the date of death. 

 
Severance Benefits – Members who terminate employment with less than 10 years 
of service will be entitled to the return of the excess of his/her contributions to the 
fund over the amount of any benefits received from the Plan.  Such refunds will not  
include any interest on the member’s contribution.  If a member terminates on or 
after the date of completing 10 years of service but prior to the date of completing 
20 years of service, he/she will be entitled to receive a monthly benefit, starting on 
the date he/she would have both completed 20 years of service and attained age 50, 
had he/she remained in the service of the fire department.  The amount the member 
will receive will equal the monthly service retirement benefit accumulated on the 
date the member separated from service with the fire department, multiplied by the 
member’s vested percentage. 
 
Method Used to Value Investments – Fund investments are reported at fair value.  
Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.  The fair 
value of the Fund’s investments is based on the quoted value of each investment on 
the last business day of the Fund year.  The Plan’s investments are stated at fair 
value and, accordingly, unrealized appreciation and depreciation are reported in the 
statements of changes in plan net assets.  The fair values of United States 
Government securities, corporate and foreign bonds, common stocks, and foreign 
equities are based on quoted market prices.  Plan values in investments in hedge 
funds based on its percentage investment in each such fund.  The estimated fair 
value of each fund is based on market conditions and information reported by the 
fund managers, and is generally based on the estimated fair value of each funds’ 
underlying investments at the end of the reporting period.  No investment in any one 
organization (other than the U.S. Government or mutual funds) represents 5% or 
more of Fund assets.   
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Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis and, 
accordingly, the related receivables and payables for any unsettled trades are 
recorded.  Interest income and dividends are recorded on the accrual basis. 

 
 
 

c). Annual Pension Cost 
 

For 2010, the City’s annual pension cost was equal to the City’s actual and required 
contributions.  The required contribution was established as part of the September 30, 
2010 actuarial valuation using the entry-age actuarial cost method.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, compounded annually 
(b) projected salary increases of 4.25% per year, compounded annually, (c) inflation 
rate of 3.00% and (d) the amortization period is calculated from the rate contributed 
by the City.  The plan receives a fixed percentage of pay contribution from the City 
each year.  Thus, the City’s contribution is not expressed as a dollar amount.  This 
procedure is permitted under the Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements 25, 26 
and 27 on Pension Reporting and Disclosure by State and Local Government Plans 
and Employers.  The investment rate of return and the projected salary increases both 
used the same assumptions with regard to inflation.  The actuarial value of assets was 
determined using the smoothed market value technique, a technique that smoothes the 
effect of short-term volatility in the market value over a four-year period.  The 
unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected 
payroll on an open basis.  The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2010 
was 39.6 years.  The most recent actuarial valuation was done as of September 30, 
2010. The amounts of the actuarial value of assets represent estimates based upon the 
assumptions described above.  Changes in those estimates will result in changes in 
such estimates in the future.  The amount of benefits ultimately to be paid could differ 
materially from the current estimates.   
 
The schedule of actuarial funding progress is presented in the following page.  
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Actuarial Valuation Date 09/30/10

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level Percent of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period 39.6 Years open period
Asset valuation method 5yr Smooth Market Value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases – 

includes inflation at 4.25%
cost-of-living adjustments None

 
Actuarial value of assets $36,651,357

 
Actuarial accrued liability $51,565,906

Percentage funded 71.1%

Unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) $14,914,549

Annual covered payroll $8,996,407

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll 165.8%

Schedule of Actuarial Funding Progress

   
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the profitability of occurrence of events far into the 
future.  Examples include assumptions about future rates of retirement, mortality, 
and salary increases.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits.  The accompanying Schedule of Employer Contributions presents trend 
information about the amount contributed to the Plan by the employer in 
comparison to the annual required contributions (“ARC”), an amount that is 
actuarially determined. 
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Annual pension cost 09/30/12 09/30/11 09/30/10

Annual required contribution (ARC) 1,376,033$      1,315,456$      1,071,252$      

Interest on NPO 14,610             7,968               13,524             

Adjustments to the ARC 10,478             5,714               9,699               

Total annual pension cost (APC) 1,380,165$     1,317,710$     1,075,077$      

Percentage of annual pension
cost contributed 93.3% 93.7% 106.5%

Contributions made 1,287,288$      1,234,674$      1,144,532$      
Increase in NPO 92,877$           83,036$           (69,455)$          
NPO at the end of the period 275,507$         182,630$         99,594$           

Schedule of Employer Contributions

 
 
d). Contributions 

 
The Plan’s minimum required contribution provisions are established under Title 8, 
Subtitle A, Chapter 802, Subchapter B, Section 802.101 of the Texas Government 
Code and under Texas Pension Review Board Guidelines for Actuarial Soundness.  
Specific Plan contribution rates are governed by the Plan document.  Changes in the 
members’ or the City’s contribution rate requires a plan amendment. 
 
The contribution rates of the Plan members and the City are established under the 
terms of the Plan.  An actuarial valuation is performed biennially to verify that Plan 
benefits and Plan contributions are in balance.  Costs of administering the fund are 
paid from Plan assets. 
 
Pursuant to the Plan document, a legal instrument binding both the City and its 
firefighters, the City of McAllen is required to match employee contributions.  
Benefits paid to former volunteer firefighters are funded by the City when paid to the 
former volunteer firefighters or beneficiaries.  The City’s contribution rate for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 was 12.5% of annual compensation.  
Contributions required and paid into the fund as of September 30, 2012 were 
members, $1,027,430 and employer, $1,287,288. 

 
e). Other pension information 
  

In September 2003 Texas voters approved an amendment to the Texas Constitution, 
which provided that once certain benefits are granted to retirees, those benefits may 
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not be subsequently reduced.  It was codified as Article XVI, Section 66, of the Texas 
Constitution.  The amendment applies only to the City of McAllen Firefighters’ Relief 
and Retirement Plan.  It further provided that the City and the retirement system that 
finance benefits under the retirement system are jointly responsible for ensuring that 
benefits are not reduced or otherwise impaired, which could potentially require the 
City to involuntarily increase its funding due to under-performing investments, plan 
improvements as well as other factors outside the control of the City.  The amendment 
also permitted the City to be exempt from its requirements upon holding an election in 
which the majority of the votes favored the exemption.  On May 15, 2004, a special 
City election was held, in which the majority of the voters voted in favor of exempting 
the City of McAllen and the McAllen Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement plan from 
the application of this amendment, Article XVI, Section 66 of the Texas Constitution.   

 
 

(D) Subsequent events 
 

During the year, the City and the McAllen Fire Fighter’s Association were in discussions 
concerning the collective bargaining agreement.  This agreement was approved by the City 
Commission on January 14, 2013, and all parties signed on January 17, 2013.  This is a four 
year agreement covering the period of October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2016.  Aside 
from special labor conditions, some of the key provisions covered by the agreement are: 

 Base salary increase of 0.5% per year from FY 2012- FY 2015 with no increase in FY 
2015-2016. 
 

 Subject to the approval of the plan participants, employees shall contribute up to 11% 
of their pay to the Firemen’s Retirement Fund.  The Employer (City) shall increase its 
contribution to the Firemen’s Retirement Fund, from  its current rate of 12.50%, for 
all employees in accordance with the following: 
 

i. Effective as of the signing of this Agreement the City shall increase its 
contribution to the Firemen’s Retirement Fund to an amount equal to 12.75% 
of annual salaries. 
 

ii. Effective October 1, 2013, the City shall increase its contribution to 13.00% 
of annual salaries. 
 

iii. Effective October 1, 2014, the City shall increase its contribution to 13.25% 
of annual salaries. 
 

iv. Effective October 1, 2015 through September 29, 2016, the City shall increase 
its contribution to 13.50% of annual salaries. 

 
v. Effective September 30, 2016, the City shall decrease its contribution to 

13.00% of annual salaries. 
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The City Commission in its December 10, 2012 meeting adopted an ordinance, which updated 
service credits with transfers, from 0% to 100%, for all qualifying members of the Texas 
Municipal Retirement System. The ordinance became effective January 1, 2013.  The most 
significant impact was the reduction of the City’s funded ratio from 101.7% to 98.8%. 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

12/31/06 83,266,393$    88,394,297$           5,127,904$  94.2% 44,106,054$   11.6%
12/31/07 90,516,206      91,916,258             1,400,052   98.5% 47,258,770    3.0%
12/31/08 97,604,499      100,472,137           2,867,638   97.1% 53,770,371    5.3%
12/31/09 105,016,856    118,250,995           13,234,139 88.8% 57,440,380    23.0%
12/31/10 149,600,330    148,677,672           (922,658)     100.6% 58,890,846    -1.6%
12/31/11 161,885,479    159,194,692           (2,690,787)  101.7% 56,625,910    -4.8%

Refer to page 92 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.  These are a required part of RSI.
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

FIREMEN'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

09/30/00 18,173,765$   21,576,631$           3,402,866$  84.2% 4,263,430$  79.8%
09/30/02 21,116,716     28,141,949             7,025,233   75.0% 5,190,836   135.3%
09/30/04 25,443,339     33,227,793             7,794,454   76.6% 5,818,893   133.8%
09/30/06 29,226,476     38,659,974             9,433,498   75.6% 6,817,267   138.4%
09/30/08 34,588,465     45,073,090             10,484,625 76.7% 8,199,849   127.9%
09/30/10 36,651,357     51,565,906             14,914,549 71.1% 8,996,407   165.8%

Refer to page 95 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.  These are a required part of RSI

The next actuarial valuation will be performed as of September 30, 2012.

The City issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial
 statements and required supplementary information for the Firemen's Fund.

This financial report may be obtained by writing to the City of McAllen Finance
 Director, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas 78505-0220 or by calling (956) 681-1064.
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/06 -$                    4,568,795$             4,568,795$  0.0% 51,690,160$   8.8%
10/01/08 -                      7,253,404               7,253,404   0.0% 60,443,815    12.0%
10/01/10 -                      8,076,583               8,076,583   0.0% 62,858,165    12.8%

Refer to page 90 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.

This is a "single-employer" plan and no separate financial report is issued by the City.
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Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources allocated to specific purposes.  A special revenue 
fund continues in existence as long as governmental resources are allocated to its specific purposes:

The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund was established to account for the hotel-motel occupancy tax 

The McAllen EB5 Regional Center Fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures 
to operate an EB-Regional Center under the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS).

The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund was established to account for the hotel motel occupancy tax 
levied.  This tax revenue is allocated to the promotion of tourism and conventions, promotion of 
the arts, support of convention center and civic center management, and other expenditures.

The Park Development Fund was established to account for land acquired for future park 
development.

The Community Development Fund was established to account for receipt and disbursement of 
Federal Program revenues.

Th  PD S i d F d  t bli h d t  t f  t d d f d  d  f  h  f 

The Miscellaneous Government Grants Fund was established to account for all grant programs 
applicable to the City for which a separate fund is not established.

The Downtown Services Parking Fund was established to account for revenues and disbursements 
associated with the activities of vehicular parking in the downtown district.

The Debt Service Fund was established to retired general government debt.

Capital Projects Funds:

The PD Seized Fund was established to account for court awarded funds and use for purchase of 
police department capital assets .

I f i  T h l  F d  bli h d   f  ll  l d  h  

Certificate of Obligation Reservior Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 
improvements of  and extensions to the City's Waterworks System.

Certificate of Obligation Library Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 

Information Technology Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 
implementation of strategic technology projects.

construction of the City's Main Library.



Hotel 
Occupancy Tax

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center

Park 
Development

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

ASSETS

Cash 20,446$             24,026$             116,342$           -$                      2,845$               62,665$             

Certificate of deposit - - 500,000 - - -

Investments 4,660 2,700,573 58,048 - - 190,748

Receivables:

 Accounts 258,225 - - 416,179 - -

 Taxes - - - - - -

 Accrued interest - - 2,072 - - -

 Other - - - - - 627

Due from other governments - - - 660,307 1,306,450 -

   Total assets 283,331$           2,724,599$        676,462$           1,076,486$        1,309,295$        254,040$           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 73,845$             33,694$             -$                      276,257$           1,149,842$        16,939$             

Accrued liabilities - - - 237,021 - 18,468

Due to other funds 184,613 - - 563,208 159,453 -

Deferred revenues - - - - - -

Other liabilities - 2,700,000 - - - 644

  Total liabilities 258,458 2,733,694 - 1,076,486 1,309,295 36,051

FUND BALANCES

Restricted 24,873 - 676,462 - - -

Commited - - - - - 217,989

Assigned - - - - - -

Unassigned - (9,095)

Total fund balances 24,873 (9,095) 676,462 - - 217,989

Total liabilities and fund balances 283,331$           2,724,599$        676,462$           1,076,486$        1,309,295$        254,040$           

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

Special Revenue

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2012
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PD Seized Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Certificate of 
Obligation 
Reservior

Certificate of 
Obligation 

Library

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

6,847$               233,171$           29,393$             10,496$                 514$                  4,622$               278,196$           

1,000,000 1,500,000 - 150,000 - - 1,650,000

4,832,881 7,786,910 238,892 525,050 180,572 645,516 9,376,940

- 674,404 - - - - 674,404

- - 37,984 - - - 37,984

10,488 12,560 - 630 - - 13,190

- 627 - - - 408,117 408,744

- 1,966,757 - - - - 1,966,757

5,850,216$        12,174,429$      306,269$           686,176$               181,086$           1,058,255$        14,406,215$      

27,755$             1,578,332$        -$                      22,416$                 1,215$               72,490$             1,674,453$        

- 255,489 - - 166,466 40,032 461,987

- 907,274 - - - - 907,274

- - 37,984 - - - 37,984

- 2,700,644 - - - - 2,700,644

27,755 5,441,739 37,984 22,416 167,681 112,522 5,782,342

5,822,461 6,523,796 268,285 - 13,405 945,733 7,751,219

- 217,989 - - - - 217,989

- - - 663,760 - - 663,760

(9,095) (9,095)

5,822,461 6,732,690 268,285 663,760 13,405 945,733 8,623,873

5,850,216$        12,174,429$      306,269$           686,176$               181,086$           1,058,255$        14,406,215$      

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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Hotel 
Occupancy 

Tax

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center

Park 
Development

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

REVENUES

Hotel taxes 3,503,985$       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Property taxes - - - - - -

Licenses and permits - - - - - 13,990

Intergovernmental - - - 3,789,451 2,106,906 -

Charges for services - 49,991 - - - 1,140,249

Fines and forfeitures - - - - - 241,909

Investment earnings 6 573 1,616 - - 228

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments - - - - - -

Other - - 111,300 - 178,372 8,789

Total revenues 3,503,991 50,564 112,916 3,789,451 2,285,278 1,405,165

EXPENDITURES

Current:

 General government 1,001,139 144,206 - 453,222 465,719 -

 Public safety - - - - 1,750,003 -

 Highways and streets - - - 2,064,704 - 770,274

 Health and welfare - - - 1,166,454 - -

 Culture and recreation - - - 105,071 69,556 -

 Debt service:

  Principal - - - - - -

  Interest and fiscal charges - - - - - -

 Total expenditures 1,001,139 144,206 - 3,789,451 2,285,278 770,274

 Excess (deficency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 2,502,852 (93,642) 112,916 - - 634,891

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - - - - -

  Transfers out (2,502,846) - - - - (596,657)

  Net other financing sources (uses) (2,502,846) - - - - (596,657)

  Net change in fund balances 6 (93,642) 112,916 - - 38,234

Fund balances (deficits) at beginning of year 24,867 84,547 563,546 - - 179,755

Fund balances (deficits) at end of year 24,873$            (9,095)$             676,462$          -$                      -$                      217,989$          

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statements.

Special Revenue

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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PD Seized Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Certificate of 
Obligation 
Reservior

Certificate of 
Obligation 

Library

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

-$                      3,503,985$       -$                      -$                          -$                      -$                      3,503,985$       

- - 38,788 - - - 38,788

- 13,990 - - - - 13,990

- 5,896,357 - - - - 5,896,357

- 1,190,240 - - - - 1,190,240

3,485,134 3,727,043 - - - - 3,727,043

17,859 20,282 1,264 3,684 135 4,747 30,112

- - - 226 - - 226

- 298,461 - - - 533,938 832,399

3,502,993 14,650,358 40,052 3,910 135 538,685 15,233,140

- 2,064,286 - 361,170 902,749 - 3,328,205

1,020,368 2,770,371 - - - - 2,770,371

- 2,834,978 - - - - 2,834,978

- 1,166,454 - - - - 1,166,454

- 174,627 - - - 4,953,351 5,127,978

- - 2,505,000 - - - 2,505,000

- - 1,003,200 - - - 1,003,200

1,020,368 9,010,716 3,508,200 361,170 902,749 4,953,351 18,736,186

2,482,625 5,639,642 (3,468,148) (357,260) (902,614) (4,414,666) (3,503,046)

- - 3,507,025 - 905,541 - 4,412,566

- (3,099,503) - - - (525,000) (3,624,503)

- (3,099,503) 3,507,025 - 905,541 (525,000) 788,063

2,482,625 2,540,139 38,877 (357,260) 2,927 (4,939,666) (2,714,983)

3,339,836 4,192,551 229,408 1,021,020 10,478 5,885,399 11,338,856

5,822,461$       6,732,690$       268,285$          663,760$               13,405$            945,733$          8,623,873$       

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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These funds are used to account for City operations that are financed and/or operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises.  Included in this category are:  Palm View Golf Course; Civic Center; 
Transit Terminal; and McAllen Express.

The Palm View Golf Course Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the City's golf course.

The Civic Center Fund is utilized to account for the operations of a cultural center.

The Transit Terminal Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Intermodal Transportation System

The McAllen Express Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Bus Transportation System.



Palm View Golf 
Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 50,269$            47,253$            9,649$              22,233$             129,404$          
Certificate of deposit 50,000 350,000 400,000 250,000 1,050,000
Investments 551,598 733,061 651,582 436,685 2,372,926
Receivables, net:
  Accounts 184 - - 10,264 10,448
  Accrued interest 557 753 1,071 244 2,625
Due from other funds - 36,923 - - 36,923

Due from other governments - - 330,564 67,181 397,745

  Total currents assets 652,608 1,167,990 1,392,866 786,607 4,000,071

Restricted assets:
Cash 94,744 - - - 94,744
Investments 166,974 300,082 - - 467,056

   Total restricted assets 261,718 300,082 - - 561,800

Capital assets:
Land 187,995 358,070 - 1,684,593 2,230,658
Buildings and systems 228,345 1,454,607 - 5,602,219 7,285,171
Improvements other than buildings 7,717,383 1,283,398 440,858 119,052 9,560,691
Machinery and equipment 1,193,127 552,758 5,199,084 541,084 7,486,053
Construction in progress - - 20,220 - 20,220

  Total capital assets 9,326,850 3,648,833 5,660,162 7,946,948 26,582,793
    Less accumulated depreciation (5,417,506) (2,386,879) (2,557,178) (1,864,329) (12,225,892)

    Net capital assets 3,909,344 1,261,954 3,102,984 6,082,619 14,356,901

    Total assets 4,823,670$        2,730,026$       4,495,850$       6,869,226$        18,918,772$     

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012
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Palm View Golf 
Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 58,277$            -$                      200,880$          16,249$             275,406$          

Accrued expenses 25,430 - 39,510 17,077 82,017
Due to other funds - 100,000 - - 100,000

Compensated absences due one year 25,000 - - 25,000 50,000
Other - - 4 - 4

  Total current liabilities 108,707 100,000 240,394 58,326 507,427

Liabilities(payable from restricted assets):

Accounts payable 13,850 - - - 13,850

  Total liabilities(payable from restricted assets) 13,850 - - - 13,850

Other noncurrent liabilities:

Deferred revenues 71,862 8,668 - - 80,530

Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 45,362 - 28,113 16,158 89,633

Advances from other funds - - - 352,716 352,716

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 117,224 8,668 28,113 368,874 522,879

Total liabilities 239,781 108,668 268,507 427,200 1,044,156

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,909,344 1,261,954 3,102,984 6,082,619 14,356,901

Restricted for improvements - 300,082 - - 300,082

Unrestricted 674,545 1,059,322 1,124,359 359,407 3,217,633

Total net assets 4,583,889 2,621,358 4,227,343 6,442,026 17,874,616

Total liabilities and net assets 4,823,670$        2,730,026$        4,495,850$        6,869,226$        18,918,772$      

The notes to the financial statements are a intergral part of this statement.
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Palm View Golf 
Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

 

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 941,185$           179,860$           391,659$       325,794$           1,838,498$      

 Rentals - 61,704 - - 61,704

 Other 313,750 12,724 695 14,177 341,346

  Total operating revenues 1,254,935 254,288 392,354 339,971 2,241,548

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 658,739 - 1,155,186 506,440 2,320,365

 Supplies 77,991 8,241 1,321 51,297 138,850

 Contractual and other services 257,400 279,195 125,116 244,772 906,483

 Repairs and maintenance 122,411 44,234 611,128 31,161 808,934

 Depreciation and amortization 354,025 75,173 676,277 319,127 1,424,602

  Total operating expenses 1,470,566 406,843 2,569,028 1,152,797 5,599,234

  Operating loss (215,631) (152,555) (2,176,674) (812,826) (3,357,686)

Nonoperating revenues:

 Investment earnings 1,463 3,741 2,726 1,273 9,203

 Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments 272 (36) 18 - 254

 Other - - 1,001 - 1,001

  Nonoperating revenues 1,735 3,705 3,745 1,273 10,458

  Loss before contributions and transfers (213,896) (148,850) (2,172,929) (811,553) (3,347,228)

Capital contributions - - 747,961 158,468 906,429

Transfers in - 500,569 1,076,599 - 1,577,168

Transfers out - (427,937) - - (427,937)

    Changes in net assets (213,896) (76,218) (348,369) (653,085) (1,291,568)

Total net assets--beginning 4,797,785 2,697,576 4,575,712 7,095,111 19,166,184

Total net assets--ending 4,583,889$        2,621,358$        4,227,343$    6,442,026$        17,874,616$    

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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McAllen  
International McAllen  

Palm View Civic  Express Transit  
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 1,255,631$          251,490$          392,354$        389,764$              2,289,239$       

  Payments to employees (638,831)              -                        (1,151,685)      (499,373)               (2,289,889)        

  Payments to suppliers (465,705)              (333,994)           (653,964)         (417,242)               (1,870,905)        

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 151,095               (82,504)             (1,413,295)      (526,851)               (1,871,555)        

Cash flows from noncapital financing

  activities:

   Transfers from other funds -                            500,569            1,076,599       -                            1,577,168         

   Transfers to other funds -                            (427,937)           -                      -                            (427,937)           

   Subsidy from federal grant -                            -                        498,755          143,278                642,033            

    Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -                            72,632              1,575,354       143,278                1,791,264         

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

   Payments for capital acquisitions (26,871)                -                        (149,524)         -                            (176,395)           

   Gain on sale of capital assets -                            -                        1,001              -                            1,001                

     Cash used by capital and related financing activities (26,871)                -                        (148,523)         -                            (175,394)           

Cash flows from investing activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 677,879               832,768            594,581          837,091                 2,942,319         

   Purchase of investments (718,853)              (1,033,481)        (605,157)         (437,531)               (2,795,022)        

   Receipt of interest 1,511                    3,414                5,476              1,896                    12,297              

  Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (39,463)                (197,299)           (5,100)             401,456                159,594            

    Net increase (decrease)  in cash 84,761                  (207,171)           8,436              17,883                  (96,091)             

    Cash  at beginning of year 60,252                  254,424            1,213              4,350                    320,239            

    Cash at end of year 145,013$              47,253$            9,649$            22,233$                 224,148$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For  the Year Ended September 30, 2012
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McAllen
International McAllen  

Palm View Civic  Express Transit  
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Reconciliation of operating loss to 

  net cash provided by operating activities

Operating  loss (215,631)$            (152,555)$         (2,176,674)$    (812,826)$              (3,357,686)$      

Adjustment to reconcile operating income

  (loss) to net cash provided by operating

  activities:

   Depreciation and amortization 354,025               75,173              676,277          319,127                 1,424,602         

   Accounts receivable 697                       -                        -                      (6,580)                   (5,883)               

   Due from other funds -                            (2,798)               -                      53,902                  51,104              

Prepaid items -                            -                        -                      2,473                    2,473                

   Accounts payable 21,182                  (66,213)             147,999          (82,092)                 20,876              

   Compensated abscences payable 16,480                  -                        733                  5,847                    23,060              

   Accrued expenses 3,428                    (23,481)             (7,728)             (6,702)                   (34,483)             

   Due to other funds -                            100,000            (53,902)           -                            46,098              

   Deferred revenue (29,086)                (12,630)             -                      -                            (41,716)             

     Total adjustments 366,726               70,051              763,379          285,975                1,486,131         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 151,095$             (82,504)$           (1,413,295)$    (526,851)$             (1,871,555)$      

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 272                       (36)                    -                      -                            236                    

Concluded

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For  the Year Ended September 30, 2012

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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The Internal Service Funds were established to finance and account for services, materials, and supplies 
furnished to the various departments of the City, and on a limited basis, to other local governmental 
agencies.  These services are provided on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Fleet Materials Management Fund sales and services are accounted for in two Interdepartmental 

The Employee Benefits Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for City employees.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General Fund and 
Enterprise Funds.

The Fleet Materials Management Fund sales and services are accounted for in two Interdepartmental 
Service Fund departments:  Fleet Operations and Materials Management. 

The General Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to workmen's 
compensation claims and general liability insurance.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General 
Fund and Enterprise Funds.

The General Depreciation Fund which was established for the sole purpose of replacing fixed assets of the 
General Fund.  Funding has been provided by a rental charge to the appropriate department in the General 
FundFund

The Retiree Health Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for retired City employees.



Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

Retiree Health 
Insurance

ASSETS

Current assets:

 Cash 433,047$           38,704$             10,748$             

 Certificates of deposit - 2,050,000 500,000

 Investments - 2,240,337 1,377,695

 Receivables, net:

  Accounts 22,397 982 55,744

  Accrued interest - 5,701 1,208

 Inventories 286,883 - -

 Total current assets 742,327 4,335,724 1,945,395

 Capital assets 728,850 - -

 Less accumulated depreciation (337,408) - -

  Net capital assets 391,442 - -

  Total assets 1,133,769$       4,335,724$       1,945,395$       

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable 258,939$           244,405$           17,585$             

 Accrued expense 30,021 1,764,379 240,000

 Other - 14,857 -

  Total current liabilities 288,960 2,023,641 257,585

Other non-current liabilities:

 Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 31,612 4,510 -

  Total other non-current liabilities 31,612 4,510 -

  Total liabilities 320,572 2,028,151 257,585

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 391,442 - -

Unrestricted 421,755 2,307,573 1,687,810

 Total net assets 813,197 2,307,573 1,687,810

  Total liabilities and net assets 1,133,769$       4,335,724$       1,945,395$       

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

 September 30, 2012
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General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

192,817$           39,067$             714,383$           

3,900,000 3,400,000 9,850,000

14,194,193 9,713,655 27,525,880

491,636 - 570,759

22,946 13,212 43,067

- - 286,883

18,801,592 13,165,934 38,990,972

37,744 20,498,787 21,265,381

(37,744) (14,468,693) (14,843,845)

- 6,030,094 6,421,536

18,801,592$      19,196,028$     45,412,508$     

144,020$           98,318$             763,267$           

2,411,287 - 4,445,687

- - 14,857

2,555,307 98,318 5,223,811

11,681 - 47,803

11,681 - 47,803

2,566,988 98,318 5,271,614

- 6,030,094 6,421,536

16,234,604 13,067,616 33,719,358

16,234,604 19,097,710 40,140,894

18,801,592$      19,196,028$     45,412,508$     
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Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

Retiree Health 
Insurance

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 3,015,809$        -$                       -$                       

Contributions - 7,873,119 405,938

Total operating revenues 3,015,809 7,873,119 405,938

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 841,655 226,160 -

 Supplies and materials 17,201 2,976 -

 Contractual and other services 2,105,517 1,225,604 64,154

 Repairs and maintenance 40,441 - -

 Depreciation and amortization 42,320 - -

 Self insurance claims - 7,325,477 (71,137)

 Other 15,216 - -

  Total operating expenses 3,062,350 8,780,217 (6,983)

  Operating income (loss) (46,541) (907,098) 412,921

Non operating revenues:

 Investment earnings 5 16,743 4,710

 Net increase in fair value of investments - 411 354

 Other 14,962 39 -

  Non-operating revenues 14,967 17,193 5,064

Income (loss) (31,574) (889,905) 417,985

Change in net assets (31,574) (889,905) 417,985

Total net assets-beginning 844,771 3,197,478 1,269,825

Total net assets--ending 813,197$           2,307,573$        1,687,810$        

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

-$                       2,900,017$        5,915,826$        

3,741,652 - 12,020,709

3,741,652 2,900,017 17,936,535

162,200 - 1,230,015

3,356 - 23,533

1,349,858 - 4,745,133

22,653 - 63,094

- 1,931,019 1,973,339

1,410,162 - 8,664,502

- - 15,216

2,948,229 1,931,019 16,714,832

793,423 968,998 1,221,703

70,200 51,089 142,747

11,609 12,212 24,586

355,743 30,076 400,820

437,552 93,377 568,153

1,230,975 1,062,375 1,789,856

1,230,975 1,062,375 1,789,856

15,003,629 18,035,335 38,351,038

16,234,604$      19,097,710$      40,140,894$      
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Fleet Retiree
Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 3,008,374$            7,903,260$                416,246$          

  Payments to employees (835,197)                (227,520)                    -                        

  Payments to suppliers (2,368,291)             (8,741,795)                 (2,907)               

  Net cash provided (used)  by operating activities (195,114)                (1,066,055)                 413,339            

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:
  Payments for capital acquisitions (174,117)                -                                 -                        
  Gain on sale of capital assets -                             -                                 -                        

  Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (174,117)                -                                 -                        

Cash flows from investing

 activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments -                             3,181,687                  796,662            

   Purchase of investments -                             (2,183,735)                 (1,227,751)        
   Receipt of interest 6                            35,819                       4,336                

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities 6                            1,033,771                  (426,753)           

    Net increase (decrease) in cash (369,225)                (32,284)                      (13,414)             

Cash at beginning of year 802,272                 70,988                       24,162              

Cash at end of year 433,047$               38,704$                     10,748$            
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General General
Insurance Depreciation Totals

3,619,565$         2,900,017$         17,847,462$         

(161,156)             -                          (1,223,873)            

(769,874)             35,505                (11,847,362)          

2,688,535           2,935,522           4,776,227             

-                          (1,018,715)          (1,192,832)            
-                          30,076                30,076                  

-                          (988,639)             (1,162,756)            

10,306,211         6,265,617           20,550,177           

(12,982,215)        (8,309,317)          (24,703,018)          
111,342              97,959                249,462                

(2,564,662)          (1,945,741)          (3,903,379)            

123,873              1,142                  (289,908)               

68,944                37,925                1,004,291             

192,817$            39,067$              714,383$              

Continued
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Fleet Retiree

Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Operating (loss) income (46,541)$                (907,098)$                  412,921$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating
 income (loss) to net cash provided
  by operating activities:
  Depreciation 42,320                   -                                 -                        

  Accounts receivable (22,397)                  30,102                       10,308              
  Inventories (17,752)                  -                                 -                        
  Prepaid expenses -                             -                                 -                        
  Accounts payable (157,202)                (194,154)                    (9,890)               
  Compansated absences payables 2,654                     (1,181)                        -                        
  Accrued liabilities 3,804                     6,218                         -                        
  Decrease in other liabilities -                             58                              -                        
  Recovery of prior year expenses -                             -                                 -                        

Total adjustments (148,573)                (158,957)                    418                   

    Net cash provided (used) by 

     operating activities (195,114)$              (1,066,055)$               413,339$          

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

Increase in fair value of investments -                             411                            354                   
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General General

Insurance Depreciation Totals

793,423$            968,998$            1,221,703$           

1,931,019           1,973,339             

(478,914)             (460,901)               
(17,752)                 

1,084                  1,084                    
114,326              35,505                (211,415)               

1,044                  -                          2,517                    
1,901,829           -                          1,911,851             

58                         
355,743              -                          355,743                

1,895,112           1,966,524           3,554,524             

2,688,535$         2,935,522$         4,776,227$           

11,609                12,212                24,586                  

Concluded
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Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments and/or funds.

Agency Fund   to account for funds which are custodial in nature and for which the City is acting as an Agency Fund: - to account for funds which are custodial in nature and for which the City is acting as an 
agent.  The City has established the following agency fund based upon the above definition:

The Developers Fund was established to account for developers' contributions for future infrastructure 
development.

The Communications Group was established to account for operation and maintenance of a consolidated 
regional public safety services communications system.



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
AGENCY FUND

DEVELOPER'S FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

September 30, 2012

Balance Balance
09/30/11 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/12

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 47,863$            3,550,483$       3,595,641$         2,705$                
Investments 2,497,407         3,351,419         3,215,490           2,633,336           
Receivables:
  Accrued interest 6,393                6,871                9,105                  4,159                  

    Total current assets 2,551,663$       6,908,773$      6,820,236$        2,640,200$        

Liabilities:

  Escrow payables 2,551,663$       436,253$          524,790$            2,640,200$         

    Total liabilities 2,551,663$       436,253$         524,790$           2,640,200$        
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
AGENCY FUND

 COMMUNICATIONS GROUP
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

September 30, 2012

Balance Balance
09/30/11 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/12

Assets:

Cash and equivalents -$                      59,248$            5,872$                53,376$              

    Total current assets -$                     59,248$           5,872$                53,376$             

Liabilities:

  Due Agency -$                      59,248              5,872                  53,376$              

    Total liabilities -$                     59,248$           5,872$                53,376$             
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 32,651,201$       32,651,201$       33,139,172$      487,971$           

 Sales 40,564,358 40,564,358 43,805,835 3,241,477

 Franchise 6,304,000 6,304,000 6,348,331 44,331

  Total taxes 79,519,559 79,519,559 83,293,338 3,773,779

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 43,000 43,000 55,953 12,953

 Occupational 201,400 201,400 253,938 52,538

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,013,800 1,013,800 1,213,021 199,221

  Total licenses and permits 1,258,200 1,258,200 1,522,912 264,712

Intergovernmental revenues:

 State shared revenues 430,000 430,000 580,898 150,898

  Total intergovernmental revenues 430,000 430,000 580,898 150,898

Charges for services:

 General government 1,368,602 1,368,602 1,342,629 (25,973)

 Public safety 696,900 696,900 764,039 67,139

 Highways and streets 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)

 Health 568,100 568,100 590,220 22,120

 Culture and recreation 1,013,460 1,013,460 1,139,497 126,037

  Total charges for services 3,648,062 3,648,062 3,836,385 188,323

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,650,000 1,720,571 1,628,655 (91,916)

 Other fines 45,000 45,000 66,930 21,930

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,695,000 1,765,571 1,695,585 (69,986)

Investment earnings 265,000 265,000 217,391 (47,609)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

Increase  in the fair value of investments -$                        -$                        51,225$             51,225$             

Other:

 Royalties 2,500,000 2,500,000 1,138,925 (1,361,075)

 Rents and concessions 40,000 40,000 17,993 (22,007)

 Reimbursements - - 76,463 76,463

 Other 371,000 371,000 537,725 166,725

  Total other revenues 2,911,000 2,911,000 1,771,106 (1,139,894)

  Total revenues 89,726,821 89,797,392 92,968,840 3,171,448

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission:

   Personal services 143,263 143,263 107,817 35,446

   Supplies 4,680 4,680 2,321 2,359

   Miscellaneous services 20,263 20,263 40,484 (20,221)

   Total city commission 168,206 168,206 150,622 17,584

 Special service:

   Miscellaneous services 856,800 856,800 983,805 (127,005)

  Total special service 856,800 856,800 983,805 (127,005)

 City manager:

  Personal services 1,050,170 1,050,170 1,001,104 49,066

  Supplies 2,430 2,430 2,689 (259)

  Miscellaneous services 40,259 40,259 60,325 (20,066)

  Maintenance 1,680 1,680 - 1,680

  Capital outlay 340,000 340,000 115,300 224,700

  Total city manager 1,434,539 1,434,539 1,179,418 255,121

 City secretary:

  Personal services 366,917 366,917 370,488 (3,571)

  Supplies 4,500 4,500 3,227 1,273

  Miscellaneous services 10,961 10,961 13,834 (2,873)

  Maintenance 23,187 23,187 20,350 2,837

  Total city secretary 405,565 405,565 407,899 (2,334)
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 Audit office:

  Personal services 188,625$            188,625$            190,387$           (1,762)$             

  Supplies 1,316 1,096 1,405 (309)

  Miscellaneous services 10,682 10,902 10,127 775

Total audit office 200,623 200,623 201,919 (1,296)

Vital statistics:

 Personal services 156,020 156,020 121,790 34,230

 Supplies 7,200 7,200 6,260 940

 Miscellaneous services 25,427 25,427 16,001 9,426

 Capital outlay - - 732 (732)

Total vital statistics 188,647 188,647 144,783 43,864

Passport facility:

 Personal services 57,185 57,185 52,803 4,382

 Supplies 990 990 792 198

 Miscellaneous services 5,175 5,175 4,730 445

 Maintenance 200 200 277 (77)

 Total passport facility 63,550 63,550 58,602 4,948

 Municipal court:

  Personal services 1,160,050 1,160,050 1,053,296 106,754

  Supplies 8,910 9,410 9,097 313

  Miscellaneous services 60,681 64,301 57,207 7,094

  Maintenance 41,975 75,357 38,638 36,719

  Capital outlay 10,000 43,069 46,243 (3,174)

  Total municipal court 1,281,616 1,352,187 1,204,481 147,706

 Finance:

  Personal services 1,136,324 1,136,324 1,179,293 (42,969)

  Supplies 20,520 20,520 17,624 2,896

  Miscellaneous services 106,138 106,138 81,210 24,928

  Maintenance 23,963 23,963 21,176 2,787

  Capital outlay - - 5,252 (5,252)

  Total finance 1,286,945 1,286,945 1,304,555 (17,610)

- 138 -



 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Tax office:

  Personal services 256,159$            256,159$            253,055$           3,104$               

  Supplies 4,334 4,334 4,941 (607)

  Miscellaneous services 672,569 672,569 731,259 (58,690)

  Maintenance 9,331 9,331 7,960 1,371

  Total tax office 942,393 942,393 997,215 (54,822)

 Purchasing and contracting:

  Personal services 479,048 479,048 407,530 71,518

  Supplies 7,020 7,020 5,116 1,904

  Miscellaneous services 5,303 5,303 6,774 (1,471)

  Capital outlay - - 996 (996)

  Total purchasing and contracting 491,371 491,371 420,416 70,955

 Legal:

  Personal services 837,011 837,011 959,511 (122,500)

  Supplies 3,078 3,078 1,869 1,209

  Miscellaneous services 159,528 469,528 528,760 (59,232)

  Total legal 999,617 1,309,617 1,490,140 (180,523)

 Grant administration:

  Personal services 311,039 311,039 298,878 12,161

  Supplies 8,347 9,072 7,862 1,210

  Miscellaneous services 64,385 63,660 58,285 5,375

  Total grant administration 383,771 383,771 365,025 18,746

 Right of way:

  Personal services 134,581 134,581 120,713 13,868

  Supplies 1,154 1,154 1,076 78

  Miscellaneous services 37,256 64,756 59,012 5,744

  Total right of way 172,991 200,491 180,801 19,690
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 Human resources:

  Personal services 384,352$            384,352$            396,403$           (12,051)$            

  Supplies 3,765 4,265 3,492 773

  Miscellaneous services 127,135 157,635 139,255 18,380

  Maintenance 32,300 1,300 - 1,300

  Total human resources 547,552 547,552 539,150 8,402

 Risk management:

  Liability insurance 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Total risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

 Planning:

  Personal services 1,012,930 1,012,930 836,558 176,372

  Supplies 14,355 16,655 16,931 (276)

  Miscellaneous services 103,275 100,975 52,803 48,172

  Maintenance 18,970 18,970 10,564 8,406

  Other (20,441) (20,441) 25,099 (45,540)

  Total planning 1,129,089 1,129,089 941,955 187,134

 Information technology:

  Personal services 1,322,683 1,322,683 1,299,758 22,925

  Supplies 17,548 17,548 16,494 1,054

  Miscellaneous services 186,798 186,798 216,369 (29,571)

  Maintenance 389,994 389,994 369,741 20,253

  Capital outlay 279,000 279,000 209,516 69,484

  Total information technology 2,196,023 2,196,023 2,111,878 84,145

 Public information office:

  Personal services 591,225 591,225 512,576 78,649

  Supplies 12,393 12,393 9,847 2,546

  Miscellaneous services 31,395 31,395 31,301 94

  Maintenance 9,940 9,940 10,835 (895)

  Total public information office 644,953 644,953 564,559 80,394
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 City hall:

  Personal services 96,223$              96,223$              95,431$             792$                  

  Supplies 14,257 20,257 15,300 4,957

  Miscellaneous services 424,672 424,672 393,414 31,258

  Maintenance 203,400 194,700 148,582 46,118

  Capital outlay - 2,700 2,611 89

  Total city hall 738,552 738,552 655,338 83,214

 Building maintenance:

  Personal services 444,406 444,406 442,126 2,280

  Supplies 10,911 10,911 15,036 (4,125)

  Miscellaneous services 10,145 10,145 10,646 (501)

  Maintenance 41,271 41,271 50,859 (9,588)

  Total building maintenance 506,733 506,733 518,667 (11,934)

 Economic development:

  McAllen Economic Development Corp. 1,383,195 1,383,195 1,383,195 -

  Chambers of commerce 619,200 619,200 619,200 -

  Total economic development 2,002,395 2,002,395 2,002,395 -

 Non-departmental activities 157,040 157,040 97,136 59,904

 Contingency (1,733,333) (1,733,333) - (1,733,333)

  Total general government 15,717,399 16,125,470 17,167,270 (1,041,800)

Public safety:

 Police:

  Personal services 26,175,544 26,175,544 25,879,653 295,891

  Supplies 385,195 385,195 526,622 (141,427)

  Miscellaneous services 1,298,543 1,298,543 1,352,182 (53,639)

  Maintenance 1,582,875 1,582,875 1,727,731 (144,856)

  Other (350,000) (350,000) (334,596) (15,404)

  Capital outlay 166,925 166,925 150,610 16,315

  Total police 29,259,082 29,259,082 29,302,202 (43,120)
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Animal control:

  Personal services 151,123$            151,123$            132,155$           18,968$             

  Supplies 2,916 2,916 (4,969) 7,885

  Miscellaneous services 17,123 17,123 16,767 356

  Maintenance 39,491 39,491 39,728 (237)

  Total animal control 210,653 210,653 183,681 26,972

Communication technology:

 Personal services 141,304 141,304 168,565 (27,261)

 Supplies 8,257 8,257 3,470 4,787

 Miscellaneous services 78,466 78,466 69,104 9,362

 Maintenance 4,375 4,375 3,553 822

 Other (32,560) (32,560) - (32,560)

 Total communication technology 199,842 199,842 244,692 (44,850)

 Fire:

  Personal services 14,113,614 14,113,614 14,201,615 (88,001)

  Supplies 244,452 236,652 223,049 13,603

  Miscellaneous services 818,473 825,473 992,020 (166,547)

  Maintenance 438,773 427,773 439,855 (12,082)

  Capital outlay 343,700 355,500 334,959 20,541

  Total fire 15,959,012 15,959,012 16,191,498 (232,486)

 Traffic operations:

  Personal services 1,301,561 1,301,561 1,295,895 5,666

  Supplies 115,492 115,492 111,934 3,558

  Miscellaneous services 354,996 354,996 373,660 (18,664)

  Maintenance 350,846 350,846 377,133 (26,287)

  Capital outlay 23,850 23,850 20,490 3,360

  Total traffic operations 2,146,745 2,146,745 2,179,112 (32,367)

 Building code compliance:

  Personal services 849,621 849,621 812,912 36,709

  Supplies 12,487 12,487 9,246 3,241

  Miscellaneous services 91,978 91,978 55,262 36,716

  Maintenance 17,708 17,708 15,878 1,830

  Total building code compliance 971,794 971,794 893,298 78,496

  Total public safety 48,747,128 48,747,128 48,994,483 (247,355)
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Highways and streets:

 Engineering services:

  Personal services 1,607,952$         1,607,952$         1,622,491$        (14,539)$            

  Supplies 17,032 17,032 13,227 3,805

  Miscellaneous services 158,871 158,871 172,365 (13,494)

  Maintenance 42,438 42,438 44,482 (2,044)

  Other - 45,500 (33,225) 78,725

  Capital outlay - - 9,174 (9,174)

  Total engineering 1,826,293 1,871,793 1,828,514 43,279

 Street cleaning:

  Personal services 174,793 174,793 176,403 (1,610)

  Supplies 3,330 3,330 3,632 (302)

  Miscellaneous services 104,025 104,025 103,735 290

  Maintenance 141,972 141,972 85,632 56,340

  Total street cleaning 424,120 424,120 369,402 54,718

 Street maintenance:

  Personal services 1,491,753 1,491,753 1,304,371 187,382

  Supplies 37,515 37,515 35,001 2,514

  Miscellaneous services 916,132 916,132 914,915 1,217

  Maintenance 4,447,847 4,447,847 3,451,418 996,429

  Capital outlay 4,800 4,800 4,454 346

  Total street maintenance 6,898,047 6,898,047 5,710,159 1,187,888

 Street lighting:

  Miscellaneous services 1,904,326 1,904,326 2,342,830 (438,504)

  Maintenance 72,675 72,675 71,458 1,217

  Total street lighting 1,977,001 1,977,001 2,414,288 (437,287)

 Sidewalk construction:

  Personal services 215,789 215,789 172,969 42,820

  Supplies 36,200 36,200 32,474 3,726

  Miscellaneous services 6,492 6,492 6,495 (3)

  Maintenance 42,037 42,037 46,002 (3,965)

  Capital outlay 6,000 6,000 - 6,000

  Total sidewalk construction 306,518 306,518 257,940 48,578
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 Drainage:

  Personal services 645,692$            645,692$            588,732$           56,960$             

  Supplies 23,412 23,412 17,567 5,845

  Miscellaneous services 427,143 427,143 425,117 2,026

  Maintenance 328,664 328,664 268,741 59,923

  Capital outlay 26,800 26,800 22,341 4,459

  Total drainage 1,451,711 1,451,711 1,322,498 129,213

  Total highways and streets 12,883,690 12,929,190 11,902,801 1,026,389

Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance:

  Personal services 911,046 911,046 844,160 66,886

  Supplies 19,835 17,835 18,744 (909)

  Miscellaneous services 121,060 121,060 102,392 18,668

  Maintenance 48,957 48,957 74,487 (25,530)

  Capital outlay - 2,000 1,469 531

  Total health code compliance 1,100,898 1,100,898 1,041,252 59,646

 Graffiti cleaning:

  Personal services 97,571 97,571 84,062 13,509

  Supplies 10,181 10,181 7,697 2,484

  Miscellaneous services 18,051 18,051 18,042 9

  Maintenance 22,783 22,783 21,074 1,709

  Capital outlay 23,000 23,000 19,578 3,422

  Total graffitti cleaning 171,586 171,586 150,453 21,133

 Other agencies:

  Humane society 237,662 237,662 502,390 (264,728)

  Other health and welfare agencies 4,800 4,800 367,215 (362,415)

  Total other agencies 242,462 242,462 869,605 (627,143)

  Total health and welfare 1,514,946 1,514,946 2,061,310 (546,364)
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Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration:

  Personal services 411,174$            411,174$            410,680$           494$                  

  Supplies 6,311 6,311 7,074 (763)

  Miscellaneous services 107,522 107,522 108,002 (480)

  Maintenance 15,945 15,945 14,442 1,503

  Total parks and  recreation administration 540,952 540,952 540,198 754

 Parks:

  Personal services 3,305,846 3,305,846 3,131,673 174,173

  Supplies 134,954 134,954 149,985 (15,031)

  Miscellaneous services 1,536,412 1,536,412 1,874,510 (338,098)

  Maintenance 432,371 432,371 566,622 (134,251)

  Total parks 5,409,583 5,409,583 5,722,790 (313,207)

 Recreation:

  Personal services 866,343 866,343 1,053,932 (187,589)

  Supplies 43,560 43,560 48,960 (5,400)

  Miscellaneous services 230,348 230,348 226,164 4,184

  Maintenance 4,801 4,801 8,158 (3,357)

  Total recreation 1,145,052 1,145,052 1,337,214 (192,162)

 Pools:

  Personal services 496,854 496,854 530,002 (33,148)

  Supplies 59,275 59,275 92,415 (33,140)

  Miscellaneous services 97,339 97,339 87,367 9,972

  Maintenance 38,617 38,617 41,125 (2,508)

  Total pools 692,085 692,085 750,909 (58,824)

 Las palmas community center:

  Personal services 228,031 228,031 212,264 15,767

  Supplies 10,737 10,737 10,040 697

  Miscellaneous services 75,423 75,423 80,688 (5,265)

  Maintenance 15,750 15,750 8,579 7,171

  Capital outlay 4,300 4,300 4,060 240

  Total las palmas community center 334,241 334,241 315,631 18,610
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 Recreation center-Lark:

  Personal services 244,275$            244,275$            211,353$           32,922$             

  Supplies 22,695 22,695 19,561 3,134

  Miscellaneous services 87,400 87,400 109,020 (21,620)

  Maintenance 8,325 8,325 12,366 (4,041)

  Capital outlay 3,000 3,000 2,114 886

  Total recreation center-Lark 365,695 365,695 354,414 11,281

 Recreation center-Palmview:

  Personal services 235,874 235,874 230,755 5,119

  Supplies 19,445 19,445 18,925 520

  Miscellaneous services 86,305 86,305 108,769 (22,464)

  Maintenance 8,825 8,825 9,769 (944)

  Capital outlay 40,224 40,224 19,545 20,679

  Total recreation center-Palmview 390,673 390,673 387,763 2,910

 Quinta mazatlan:

  Personal services 334,163 334,163 299,496 34,667

  Supplies 22,645 22,645 24,062 (1,417)

  Miscellaneous services 73,563 73,563 110,002 (36,439)

  Maintenance 18,883 18,883 25,181 (6,298)

  Capital outlay 10,500 10,500 9,559 941

  Total quinta mazatlan 459,754 459,754 468,300 (8,546)

 Library:

  Personal services 2,223,820 2,223,820 1,855,021 368,799

  Supplies 71,904 71,904 67,613 4,291

  Miscellaneous services 486,741 486,741 480,258 6,483

  Maintenance 83,617 83,617 87,927 (4,310)

  Capital outlay 175,000 175,000 160,732 14,268

  Total library 3,041,082 3,041,082 2,651,551 389,531

 Library branch-Lark:

  Personal services 356,721 356,721 311,878 44,843

  Supplies 8,809 8,809 8,077 732

  Miscellaneous services 9,913 9,913 7,101 2,812

  Maintenance 5,700 5,700 1,673 4,027

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 18,176 1,824

  Total library branch-Lark 401,143 401,143 346,905 54,238
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 Library branch-Palmview:

  Personal services 373,049$            373,049$            350,271$           22,778$             

  Supplies 8,937 8,937 6,505 2,432

  Miscellaneous services 9,913 9,913 7,915 1,998

  Maintenance 5,700 5,700 1,552 4,148

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 17,221 2,779

  Total library branch-Palmview 417,599 417,599 383,464 34,135

 Other agencies 656,659 656,659 656,492 167

 Museums 748,112 748,112 748,112 -

  Total culture and recreation 14,602,630 14,602,630 14,677,005 (74,375)

  Total expenditures 93,465,793 93,919,364 94,802,869 (883,505)

  Excess of revenues over expenditures (3,738,972) (4,121,972) (1,834,029) 2,287,943

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,261,430 9,261,430 9,376,061 114,631

  Transfers out (6,007,025) (6,007,025) (4,707,025) 1,300,000

  Net other financing sources (uses) 3,254,405 3,254,405 4,669,036 1,414,631

Net change in fund balances (484,567) (867,567) 2,835,007 3,702,574

Fund balances at begining of year 42,975,257 42,975,257 42,975,257 -

Fund balances at end of year 42,490,690$       42,107,690$       45,810,264$      3,702,574$        
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REVENUES

 Hotel tax 3,200,000$        3,200,000$        3,503,985$        303,985$           

 Investment earnings - - 6 6

  Total revenues 3,200,000 3,200,000 3,503,991 303,991

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 914,240 914,240 1,001,139 86,899

  Total expenditures 914,240 914,240 1,001,139 86,899

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 2,285,760 2,285,760 2,502,852 217,092

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (2,285,760) (2,285,760) (2,502,846) (217,086)

  Total other financing sources (uses) (2,285,760) (2,285,760) (2,502,846) (217,086)

  Net changes in fund balances - - 6 6

Fund balances--beginning 24,867 24,867 24,867 -

Fund balances--ending 24,867$             24,867$             24,873$             6$                      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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REVENUES

 Charges for services -$                       -$                       49,991$             49,991$             

 Investment earnings - - 573 573

  Total revenues - - 50,564 50,564

EXPENDITURES

  General government 85,000 85,000 144,206 (59,206)

  Total expenditures 85,000 85,000 144,206 (59,206)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures (85,000) (85,000) (93,642) (8,642)

  Net changes in fund balances (85,000) (85,000) (93,642) (8,642)

Fund balances--beginning 84,547 84,547 84,547 -

Fund balances--ending (453)$                 (453)$                 (9,095)$              (8,642)$              

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EB-5 REGIONAL CENTER  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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REVENUES

 Intergovernmental 2,304,081$        2,304,081$        3,789,451$        1,485,370$        

  Total revenues 2,304,081 2,304,081 3,789,451 1,485,370

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 347,081 347,081 453,222 (106,141)

  Highways and streets 600,000 600,000 2,064,704 (1,464,704)

  Health and welfare 1,175,200 1,175,200 1,166,454 8,746

  Culture and recreation 181,800 181,800 105,071 76,729

  Total expenditures 2,304,081 2,304,081 3,789,451 (1,485,370)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - - - -

  Net changes in fund balances - - - -

Fund balances--beginning - - - -

Fund balances--ending - - - -

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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REVENUES

 Licenses and permits 12,000$             12,000$             13,990$             1,990$               

 Charges for services 1,133,645 1,133,645 1,140,249 6,604

 Fines and forfeitures 326,387 326,387 241,909 (84,478)

 Investment earnings - - 228 228

 Other 7,200 7,200 8,789 1,589

  Total revenues 1,479,232 1,479,232 1,405,165 (74,067)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Highways and streets 814,829 814,829 770,274 44,555

  Total expenditures 814,829 814,829 770,274 44,555

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 664,403 664,403 634,891 (29,512)

  Transfers out (596,657) (596,657) (596,657) -

  Total other financing sources (uses) (596,657) (596,657) (596,657) -

  Net changes in fund balances 67,746 67,746 38,234 (29,512)

Fund balances--beginning 179,755 179,755 179,755 -

Fund balances--ending 247,501$           247,501$           217,989$           (29,512)$            

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DOWNTOWN SERVICES PARKING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 Sales tax 13,521,452$      13,521,452$      14,601,944$      1,080,492$        

 Intergovernmental revenues 913,069 913,069 - (913,069)

 Investment earnings 50,000 50,000 113,199 63,199

 Increase in the fair value of investments - - 29,017 29,017

  Total revenues 14,484,521 14,484,521 14,744,160 259,639

EXPENDITURES

Current:

  General government 4,391,640 4,391,640 607,266 3,784,374

  Public safety 112,500 112,500 100,000 12,500

  Highways and streets 12,258,401 12,924,124 8,331,863 4,592,261

  Health and welfare 2,356,000 2,356,000 2,174,829 181,171

  Culture and recreation 1,752,000 1,752,000 28,060 1,723,940

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 8,506 8,506 9,056 (550)

  Total expenditures 20,904,047 21,569,770 11,276,074 10,293,696

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures (6,419,526) (7,085,249) 3,468,086 10,553,335

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (9,584,606) (9,584,606) (5,382,394) 4,202,212

  Total other financing sources (uses) (9,584,606) (9,584,606) (5,382,394) 4,202,212

  Net changes in fund balances (16,004,132) (16,669,855) (1,914,308) 14,755,547

Fund balances--beginning 28,334,216 28,334,216 28,334,216 -

Fund balances--ending 12,330,084$      11,664,361$      26,419,908$      14,755,547$      

The notes to the financial statements are a integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Original 
Budget Final Budget

Actual 
Amount

Variance 
with Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative)

REVENUES

 Property tax -$                       -$                  38,788$         38,788$         

 Interest - - 1,264 1,264

  Total revenues - - 40,052 40,052

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

Debt service:

  Principal 2,505,000$        2,505,000$    2,505,000$    -$                  

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,002,025 1,002,025 1,003,200 1,175

  Total expenditures 3,507,025 3,507,025 3,508,200 1,175

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,507,025) (3,507,025) (3,468,148) 38,877

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 3,507,025 3,507,025 3,507,025 -

  Transfers out - - - -

  Total other financing sources (uses) 3,507,025 3,507,025 3,507,025 -

  Net changes in fund balances - - 38,877 38,877

Fund balance--beginning 229,408 229,408 229,408 -

Fund balance--ending 229,408$           229,408$       268,285$       38,877$         

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Intergovernmental 2,921,874$        2,921,874$        257,015$           (2,664,859)$       

 Investment earnings - - 51,521 51,521

 Increase in the fair value of investments - - 15,792 15,792

 Other 1,099,914 1,099,914 83,321 (1,016,593)

  Total revenues 4,021,788 4,021,788 407,649 (3,614,139)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 2,603,000 2,603,000 307,682 2,295,318

  Public safety 1,466,800 1,833,113 740,388 1,092,725

  Highways and streets 7,157,424 7,819,111 1,913,217 5,905,894

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

  Culture and recreation 7,176,605 11,670,038 2,636,207 9,033,831

  Total expenditures 18,403,829 23,925,262 5,597,494 18,327,768

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (14,382,041) (19,903,474) (5,189,845) 14,713,629

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 7,500,982 11,428,221 2,181,997 (9,246,224)

  Transfers out - - (135,831) (135,831)

  Total other financing sources (uses) 7,500,982 11,428,221 2,046,166 (9,382,055)

  Net changes in fund balances (6,881,059) (8,475,253) (3,143,679) 5,331,574

Fund balances--beginning 11,301,376 11,301,376 11,301,376 -

Fund balances--ending 4,420,317$        2,826,123$        8,157,697$        5,331,574$        
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REVENUES

 Investment earnings -$                       -$                       3,684$               3,684$               

 Increase in the fair value of investments - - 226 226

  Total revenues - - 3,910 3,910

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 636,942 636,942 361,170 275,772

  Culture and recreation - - - -

  Total expenditures 636,942 636,942 361,170 275,772

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (636,942) (636,942) (357,260) 271,862

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Net changes in fund balances (636,942) (636,942) (357,260) 271,862

Fund balances--beginning 1,021,020 1,021,020 1,021,020 -

Fund balances--ending 384,078$           384,078$           663,760$           271,862$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Positive 
(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Other -$                       -$                       533,938$           533,938$           

 Investment earnings - - 4,747 4,747

  Total revenues - - 538,685 538,685

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation - 5,875,025 4,953,351 921,674

  Total expenditures - 5,875,025 4,953,351 921,674

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - (5,875,025) (4,414,666) (382,989)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out - (242,230) (525,000) (282,770)

  Net changes in fund balances - (6,117,255) (4,939,666) 1,177,589

Fund balances--beginning 5,885,399 5,885,399 5,885,399 -

Fund balances--ending 5,885,399$        (231,856)$          945,733$           1,177,589$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION LIBRARY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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REVENUES

 Other -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

 Investment earnings - - 135 135

  Total revenues - - 135 135

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 826,000 826,000 902,749 (76,749)

  Total expenditures 826,000 826,000 902,749 (76,749)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (826,000) (826,000) (902,614) (76,614)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - 905,541 905,541

  Net changes in fund balances (826,000) (826,000) 2,927 828,927

Fund balances--beginning 10,478 10,478 10,478 -

Fund balances--ending (815,522)$          (815,522)$          13,405$             828,927$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION RESERVIOR FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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(Negative)

 

Operating revenues:

 Water sales

  Residential customers 9,303,276$        9,303,276$        9,200,363$        (102,913)$          

  Commercial accounts 5,087,283 5,087,283 5,457,108 369,825

  Industrial customers 630,057 630,057 468,086 (161,971)

  Total water sales 15,020,616 15,020,616 15,125,557 104,941

 Service charges:

  Tap fees 380,000 380,000 294,900 (85,100)

  Connect fees 90,000 90,000 138,860 48,860

  Reconnect fees 160,000 160,000 118,515 (41,485)

  Other services 729,000 729,000 746,825 17,825

  Total service charges 1,359,000 1,359,000 1,299,100 (59,900)

  Total operating revenues 16,379,616 16,379,616 16,424,657 45,041

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 181,447 181,447 118,230 (63,217)

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 29,778 29,778

  Capital contributions - - 16,600,195 16,600,195

  Total non-operating revenues 181,447 181,447 16,748,203 16,566,756

  Total revenues 16,561,063 16,561,063 33,172,860 16,611,797

Expenses:

 Water plant:

  Salaries and benefits 1,492,847 1,517,347 1,463,248 54,099

  Supplies and raw water purchases 3,185,410 3,276,710 3,214,139 62,571

  Contractual and other services 1,499,029 1,502,329 1,361,059 141,270

  Repairs and maintenance 340,832 371,732 362,088 9,644

  Total water plant 6,518,118 6,668,118 6,400,534 267,584

 

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 

 

Water lab:

  Salaries and benefits 212,149$           220,449$           216,694$           3,755$               

  Supplies 31,130 32,030 29,513 2,517

  Contractual and other services 37,470 28,270 25,125 3,145

  Repairs and maintenance 20,990 20,990 13,571 7,419

  Total water lab 301,739 301,739 284,903 16,836

 Transmission and distribution:

  Salaries and benefits 1,661,291 1,672,691 1,463,874 208,817

  Supplies 31,000 31,000 21,522 9,478

  Contractual and other services 96,475 79,175 58,925 20,250

  Repairs and maintenance 375,251 381,151 332,851 48,300

  Total Transmission and distribution 2,164,017 2,164,017 1,877,172 286,845

 Water meters:

  Salaries and benefits 704,250 708,950 682,748 26,202

  Supplies 23,900 21,400 18,761 2,639

  Contractual and other services 44,601 47,301 34,511 12,790

  Repairs and maintenance 90,357 85,457 76,055 9,402

  Total water meters 863,108 863,108 812,075 51,033

 Utility billing:

  Salaries and benefits 361,069 361,069 327,693 33,376

  Supplies 44,000 40,000 35,889 4,111

  Contractual and other services 267,774 271,774 265,239 6,535

  Repairs and maintenance 100 100 - 100

  Total utility billing 672,943 672,943 628,821 44,122
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 

 

 Customer relations:

  Salaries and benefits 640,538$           637,538$           636,824$           714$                  

  Supplies 15,560 12,060 11,996 64

  Contractual and other services 62,686 69,186 64,499 4,687

  Repairs and maintenance 1,700 1,700 1,008 692

  Total customer relations 720,484 720,484 714,327 6,157

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 843,441 869,841 779,362 90,479

  Supplies 8,806 6,206 6,102 104

  Contractual and other services 510,335 482,335 472,252 10,083

  Repairs and maintenance 21,515 25,715 16,306 9,409

  Total administration 1,384,097 1,384,097 1,274,022 110,075

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 90,073 90,073 90,071 2

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,450,838 1,353,755 1,345,463 8,292

  Bond principal requirements 1,292,610 1,389,693 - 1,389,693

  Other - - 28,155 (28,155)

  Capital outlay 9,792,991 9,937,346 4,574,814 5,362,532

  Total non-departmental expenses 12,626,512 12,770,867 6,038,503 6,732,364

  Total expenses 25,251,018 25,545,373 18,030,357 7,515,016

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (8,689,955) (8,984,310) 15,142,503 24,126,813
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 

 

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted -$                       -$                       (3,515,055)$       (3,515,055)$       

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 4,574,814 4,574,814

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as a rduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 1,292,610 1,389,693 - 1,389,693

Net income-GAAP basis (9,982,565)$       (10,374,003)$     16,202,262$      26,576,265$      
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

Current

Debt Customer

Service Deposits Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2011 693,365$              2,271,943$                     7,764,320$                     

Cash receipts:

  Transfers in 2,754,893             -                                      1,192,480                       

  Operating activities -                            837,595                          -                                      

  Interest received 399                        -                                      45,515                            

Total cash receipts 2,755,292             837,595                          1,237,995                       

     Total cash available 3,448,657             3,109,538                       9,002,315                       

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                            -                                      18,243                            

  Transfers out 389                        -                                      -                                      

  Refunds -                            765,500                          -                                      

  Capital acquisition -                            -                                      1,147,594                       

  Principal payments 1,389,693             -                                      -                                      

  Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,354,395             -                                      -                                      

     Total cash disbursements 2,744,477             765,500                          1,165,837                       

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2012 704,180$              2,344,038$                     7,836,478$                     

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2012

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash -$                          -$                                    90,034$                          

   Certificates of deposit -                            2,344,038                       2,250,000                       

   Investments (net) 704,180                -                                      5,379,011                       

   Accrued Interest -                            -                                      9,098                              

   Note receivable -                            -                                      108,335                          

Totals 704,180$              2,344,038$                     7,836,478$                     
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Capital Water

Improvement Revenue Bonds Total

 8,082,926$                   3,755,896$                        22,568,450$                 

895,658                        -                                        4,843,031                      

-                                    -                                        837,595                         

47,817                          7,247                                100,978                         

943,475                        7,247                                5,788,851                      

9,026,401                     3,763,143                         28,357,301                    

5,514                            -                                        23,757                           

-                                    -                                        389                                

-                                    -                                        765,500                         

848,462                        2,527,298                         4,523,354                      

-                                    -                                        1,389,693                      

-                                    -                                        1,354,395                      

853,976                        2,527,298                         8,057,088                      

 8,172,425$                   1,235,845$                        20,292,966$                 

 62,859$                        78$                                    152,971$                       

1,500,000                     800,000                            6,894,038                      

6,602,776                     433,227                            13,119,194                    

6,790                            2,540                                18,428                           

-                                    -                                        108,335                         

 8,172,425$                   1,235,845$                        20,292,966$                 
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Operating revenues:

 Sewer service charges 13,486,859$      13,486,859$      13,803,713$      316,854$           

 Industrial surcharges 384,959 384,959 273,129 (111,830)

 Other services 225,500 225,500 491,710 266,210

  Total operating revenues 14,097,318 14,097,318 14,568,552 471,234

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 164,188 164,188 122,977 (41,211)

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 32,706 32,706

  Other 5,301,914 5,301,914 562,696 (4,739,218)

  Total non-operating revenues 5,466,102 5,466,102 718,379 (4,747,723)

  Total revenues 19,563,420 19,563,420 15,286,931 (4,276,489)

Expenses:

 Sewer plant:

  Salaries and benefits 1,886,039 1,903,039 1,845,089 57,950

  Supplies 302,200 168,500 159,105 9,395

  Contractual and other services 1,688,578 1,793,478 1,704,105 89,373

  Repairs and maintenance 207,766 207,766 159,276 48,490

  Total sewer plant 4,084,583 4,072,783 3,867,575 205,208

Sewer lab:

  Salaries and benefits 286,601 286,601 293,038 (6,437)

  Supplies 49,647 49,647 45,623 4,024

  Contractual and other services 8,680 8,780 7,351 1,429

  Repairs and maintenance 7,310 7,710 6,649 1,061

  Total sewer lab 352,238 352,738 352,661 77

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Sewer collection:

  Salaries and benefits 959,223$           987,523$           930,257$           57,266$             

  Supplies 435,000 394,900 377,870 17,030

  Contractual and other services 274,990 294,790 320,273 (25,483)

  Repairs and maintenance 319,143 328,943 289,729 39,214

  Total sewer collection 1,988,356 2,006,156 1,918,129 88,027

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 447,819 445,319 445,280 39

  Supplies 7,000 7,000 2,437 4,563

  Contractual and other services 670,223 761,853 711,687 50,166

  Repairs and maintenance 6,800 25,100 22,697 2,403

  Total administration 1,131,842 1,239,272 1,182,101 57,171

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Employee benefits 45,198 198 - 198

  Liability insurance 72,201 72,201 72,201 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,441,257 1,441,257 1,432,594 8,663

  Bond principal requirements 2,610,307 2,610,307 - 2,610,307

  Other - - (27,684) 27,684

  Capital outlay 13,351,512 15,444,936 9,723,231 5,721,705

  Total non-departmental expenses 17,520,475 19,568,899 11,200,342 8,368,557

  Total expenses 25,077,494 27,239,848 18,520,808 8,719,040
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(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (5,514,074)$       (7,676,428)$       (3,233,877)$       4,442,551$        

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (3,913,143) (3,913,143)

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as reduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 2,610,307 2,610,307 - 2,610,307

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per  GAAP basis - - 9,723,231 9,723,231

Net income-GAAP basis (8,124,381)$       (10,286,735)$     2,576,211$        12,862,946$      
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

Current 2009-TWDB

Debt Bond Debt

Service Reserve Service

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2011 751,961$              439,221$               727,993$               

Cash receipts:

  Transfers from operating cash 2,974,181             265,219                1,122,814             

  Contributed capital -                            -                            -                            

  Due sewer fund 9                           -                            -                            

  Interest received -                            2,832                    629                       

Total cash receipts 2,974,190             268,051                1,123,443             

     Total cash available 3,726,151             707,272                1,851,436             

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                            -                            -                            

  Due sewer fund -                            -                            -                            

  Principal payments 1,520,307             -                            1,090,000             

   Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,441,817             -                            650                       

  Capital acqusitions -                            -                            -                            

     Total cash disbursements 2,962,124             -                            1,090,650             

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2012 764,027$              707,272$               760,786$               

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2012

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash -$                          -$                           -$                          

   Certificates of deposit -                            -                            -                            

   Investments (net) 764,027                707,272                760,786                

   Accrued Interest -                            -                            -                            

   Other receivables -                            -                            -                            

Totals 764,027$              707,272$               760,786$               
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Capital Sewer Sewer Sewer

Depreciation Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2012 2009-TWDB Total

8,450,580$           11,614,628$              11,303,657$         -$                    -$                        33,288,040$           

1,956,883             145,158                     -                            -                      6,740,000          13,204,255             

-                            200,000                     -                            114,495          -                         314,495                  

-                            828,666                     -                            38,747            -                         867,422                  

51,169                  69,615                       22,084                  -                      -                         146,329                  

2,008,052             1,243,439                  22,084                  153,242          6,740,000          21,272,501             

10,458,632           12,858,067                11,325,741           153,242          6,740,000          54,560,541             

28,022                  -                                 -                            -                      -                         28,022                    

-                            -                                 -                            -                      259,873             259,873                  

-                            -                                 -                            -                      -                         2,610,307               

-                            -                                 -                            -                      -                         1,442,467               

2,398,026             1,712,492                  311,385                38,747            6,480,127          10,940,777             

2,426,048             1,712,492                  311,385                38,747            6,740,000          15,281,446             

8,032,584$           11,145,575$              11,014,356$         114,495$        -$                        32,539,095$           

15,145$                -$                               2,876$                  -$                    -$                        18,021$                  

1,750,000             3,200,000                  2,600,000             -                      -                         7,550,000               

6,260,936             7,918,868                  8,403,872             -                      -                         24,815,761             

6,503                    10,272                       7,608                    -                      -                         24,383                    

-                            16,435                       -                            114,495          -                         130,930                  

8,032,584$           11,145,575$              11,014,356$         114,495$        -$                        32,539,095$           
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Operating revenues:

 Solid waste collections 15,930,355$      15,930,355$      16,491,139$      560,784$           

 Other services 60,000 60,000 178,650 118,650

  Total operating revenues 15,990,355 15,990,355 16,669,789 679,434

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 58,102 58,102

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 18,136 18,136

  Other 15,000 15,000 56,115 41,115

  Total non-operating revenues 15,000 15,000 132,353 117,353

  Total revenues 16,005,355 16,005,355 16,802,142 796,787

Expenses:

 Facilities administration:

  Salaries and benefits 721,244 721,244 693,326 27,918

  Supplies 15,750 15,750 14,494 1,256

  Contractual and other services 887,722 887,722 933,319 (45,597)

  Repairs and maintenance 58,424 58,424 41,137 17,287

  Capital outlay 465,158 489,944 257,739 232,205

  Total facilities administration 2,148,298 2,173,084 1,940,015 233,069

 Brush collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,247,115 1,247,115 1,066,931 180,184

  Supplies 255,070 255,070 148,355 106,715

  Contractual and other services 121,500 121,500 122,986 (1,486)

  Repairs and maintenance 585,610 585,610 541,451 44,159

  Capital outlay 201,355 201,355 21,422 179,933

  Total brush collection 2,410,650 2,410,650 1,901,145 509,505

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Residential collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,199,666$        1,199,666$        1,164,776$        34,890$             

  Supplies 34,359 34,359 21,402 12,957

  Contractual and other services 551,200 551,200 604,585 (53,385)

  Repairs and maintenance 942,511 942,511 909,288 33,223

  Capital outlay 60,000 60,000 - 60,000

  Total residential collection 2,787,736 2,787,736 2,700,051 87,685

 Commercial box collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,070,423 1,070,423 936,769 133,654

  Supplies 41,479 41,479 30,393 11,086

  Contractual and other services 1,213,900 1,213,900 1,278,019 (64,119)

  Repairs and maintenance 983,750 983,750 923,205 60,545

  Capital outlay 306,000 306,000 223,175 82,825

  Total commercial box collection 3,615,552 3,615,552 3,391,561 223,991

 Roll offs:

  Salaries and benefits 271,693 271,693 220,614 51,079

  Supplies 5,750 5,750 3,452 2,298

  Contractual and other services 258,500 258,500 244,243 14,257

  Repairs and maintenance 207,462 207,462 211,861 (4,399)

Total roll offs 743,405 743,405 680,170 63,235

 Recycling:

  Salaries and benefits 968,129 968,129 712,731 255,398

  Supplies 41,606 41,606 33,896 7,710

  Contractual and other services 254,193 254,193 399,976 (145,783)

  Repairs and maintenance 150,875 150,875 138,236 12,639

  Capital outlay 208,200 208,200 85,112 123,088

  Total recycling 1,623,003 1,623,003 1,369,951 253,052
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Composting:

  Salaries and benefits 267,262$           267,262$           253,684$           13,578$             

  Supplies 15,250 15,250 14,758 492

  Contractual and other services 232,500 232,500 227,868 4,632

  Repairs and maintenance 65,186 65,186 74,275 (9,089)

  Total composting 580,198 580,198 570,585 9,613

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Depreciation fund-capital outlay 1,874,589 1,899,881 1,401,958 497,923

  Liability insurance 104,898 104,898 104,897 1

  Total non-departmental expenses 1,979,487 2,004,779 1,506,855 497,924

  Total expenses 15,888,329 15,938,407 14,060,334 1,878,074

Excess of revenues over expenses (budget basis) 117,026 66,948 2,741,809 2,674,861

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,756,762) (1,756,762)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,989,407 1,989,405

Net income-GAAP basis 117,026$           66,948$             2,974,454$        2,907,504$        
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Operating revenues:

  Green fees 650,134$           650,134$           620,073$           (30,061)$            

  Membership sales 180,119 180,119 201,679 21,560

  Cart rental 280,685 280,685 277,667 (3,018)

  Rentals and other sales 151,728 151,728 155,516 3,788

  Total operating revenues 1,262,666 1,262,666 1,254,935 (7,731)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 2,000 2,000 1,463 (537)

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 272 272

  Total non-operating revenues 2,000 2,000 1,735 (265)

  Total revenues 1,264,666 1,264,666 1,256,670 (7,996)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 763,820 763,820 658,739 105,081

  Supplies 119,352 109,010 77,991 31,019

  Contractual and other services 187,745 175,087 257,400 (82,313)

  Repairs and maintenance 94,358 117,358 122,411 (5,053)

  Capital outlay 61,000 61,000 26,871 34,129

  Total expenses 1,226,275 1,226,275 1,143,412 82,863

Excess of revenues over budget 38,391 38,391 113,258 74,867

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (354,025) (354,025)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 26,871 26,871

Net income-GAAP basis 38,391$             38,391$             (213,896)$          (252,287)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 252,000$           252,000$           257,447$           5,447$               

  Concessions-other 60,000 60,000 68,347 8,347

  Other services 17,600 17,600 14,177 (3,423)

  Total operating revenues 329,600 329,600 339,971 10,371

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 1,273 1,273

  Intergovernmental 278,308 278,308 158,468 (119,840)

  Total non-operating revenues 278,308 278,308 159,741 (118,567)

  Total revenues 607,908 607,908 499,712 (108,196)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 524,947 524,947 506,440 18,507

  Supplies 48,129 48,129 51,297 (3,168)

  Contractual and other services 242,482 242,482 244,772 (2,290)

  Repairs and maintenance 26,109 26,109 31,161 (5,052)

  Capital outlay 208,963 208,963 - 208,963

  Total expenses 1,050,630 1,050,630 833,670 216,960

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (442,722) (442,722) (333,958) 108,764

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (319,127) (319,127)

Net income-GAAP basis (442,722)$          (442,722)$          (653,085)$          (210,363)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 116,800$           116,800$           61,704$             (55,096)$            

  Concessions-other 131,770 131,770 179,860 48,090

  Other services 14,000 14,000 12,724 (1,276)

  Total operating revenues 262,570 262,570 254,288 (8,282)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 551 551 3,741 3,190

  Decrease in the fair value investments - - (36) (36)

  Total non-operating revenues 551 551 3,705 3,154

  Total revenues 263,121 263,121 257,993 (5,128)

Expenses:

  Supplies 10,500 10,500 8,241 2,259

  Contractual and other services 310,631 310,631 279,195 31,436

  Repairs and maintenance 17,000 17,000 44,234 (27,234)

  Total expenses 338,131 338,131 331,670 6,461

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (75,010) (75,010) (73,677) 1,333

Transfers:

 Transfers in 457,280 457,280 500,569 43,289

 Transfers out - (1,150,000) (427,937) 722,063

Net transfers 457,280 (692,720) 72,632 765,352

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 382,270 (767,730) (1,045) 766,685

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (75,173) (75,173)

Net income-GAAP basis 382,270$           (767,730)$          (76,218)$            691,512$           

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 1,030,000$        1,030,000$        971,822$           (58,178)$            

  Concessions-other 628,825 628,825 921,344 292,519

  Other services 137,750 137,750 153,788 16,038

  Total operating revenues 1,796,575 1,796,575 2,046,954 250,379

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 5,000 5,000 6,694 1,694

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 1,008 1,008

  Total non-operating revenues 5,000 5,000 7,702 2,702

  Total revenues 1,801,575 1,801,575 2,054,656 253,081

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,591,737 1,591,737 1,488,759 102,978

  Supplies 70,675 70,675 72,128 (1,453)

  Contractual and other services 1,402,965 1,402,965 1,613,225 (210,260)

  Repairs and maintenance 313,357 313,357 312,859 498

  Capital outlay 1,530,095 1,530,095 31,242 1,498,853

  Total expenses 4,908,829 4,908,829 3,518,213 1,390,616

Excess (deficency) of revenues over

  over expenses (budget basis) before transfers (3,107,254) (3,107,254) (1,463,557) 1,643,705

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,828,480 1,828,480 2,002,277 173,797

 Transfers out - (500,000) - 500,000

Net transfers 1,828,480 1,328,480 2,002,277 673,797

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (1,278,774) (1,778,774) 538,720 2,317,502

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,606,634) (1,606,634)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 31,242 31,232

Net income-GAAP basis (1,278,774)$       (1,778,774)$       (1,036,672)$       742,100$           

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN CONVENTION CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 2,256,000$        2,256,000$        2,329,498$        73,498$             

  Rentals 2,637,000 2,637,000 2,727,851 90,851

  Other services 332,191 332,191 290,699 (41,492)

  Total operating revenues 5,225,191 5,225,191 5,348,048 122,857

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 5,296,327 15,276,791 2,811,955 (12,464,836)

  Investment earnings 40,949 40,949 40,863 (86)

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 11,136 11,136

  Total non-operating revenues 5,337,276 15,317,740 2,863,954 (12,453,786)

  Total revenues 10,562,467 20,542,931 8,212,002 (12,330,929)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,583,475 1,712,435 1,492,186 220,249

  Supplies 67,500 67,500 58,560 8,940

  Contractual and other services 1,632,612 1,766,822 1,464,284 302,538

  Repairs and maintenance 357,473 357,473 302,674 54,799

  Capital outlay 7,948,616 36,936,616 5,563,708 31,372,908

  Total administrative expenses 11,589,676 40,840,846 8,881,412 31,959,434

Non-departmental expenses (income):

  Interest and fiscal charges - - 266,287 (266,287)

  Bond related expense - - 6,496 (6,496)

  Capitalized interest - - (227,891) 227,891

  Total non-departmental expenses - - 44,892 (44,892)

  Total  expenses 11,589,676 40,840,846 8,926,304 31,914,542

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,027,209)$       (20,297,915)$     (714,302)$          19,583,613$      

 Transfers out (1,103,965) (1,353,965) (1,103,965) 250,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (2,131,174) (21,651,880) (1,818,267) 19,833,613

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (3,337,995) (3,337,995)

Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 5,563,707 5,563,707

Net income-GAAP basis (2,131,174)$       (21,651,880)$     407,445$           22,059,325$      
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 9,231,391$        9,231,391$        10,211,452$      980,061$           

  Rentals 1,222,897 1,222,897 1,497,054 274,157

  Other 185,000 185,000 202,817 17,817

  Total operating revenues 10,639,288 10,639,288 11,911,323 1,272,035

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 4,847 4,847

  Total non-operating revenues - - 4,847 4,847

  Total revenues 10,639,288 10,639,288 11,916,170 1,276,882

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 182,610 182,610 227,406 (44,796)

  Supplies 24,800 24,800 15,535 9,265

  Contractual and other services 394,900 369,900 293,789 76,111

  Repairs and maintenance 2,953 2,953 9,738 (6,785)

  Capital outlay - 260,600 79,398 181,202

  Total  administration 605,263 840,863 625,866 214,997

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 1,073,443 1,073,443 888,775 184,668

  Supplies 77,000 77,000 54,346 22,654

  Contractual and other services 481,487 481,487 615,783 (134,296)

  Repairs and maintenance 160,000 175,000 308,512 (133,512)

  Total operations 1,791,930 1,806,930 1,867,416 (60,486)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 50,368$             50,368$             50,368$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges 6,626 6,626 6,026 600

  Bond principal requirement 285,000 285,000 - 285,000

  Bond related charges - - 3,987 (3,987)

  Other 2,606,500 2,606,500 2,970,293 (363,793)

  Total non-departmental expenses 2,948,494 2,948,494 3,030,674 (82,180)

  Total expenses 5,345,687 5,596,287 5,523,956 72,331

Excess of revenues over

   expenses (budget basis) before transfers 5,293,601 5,043,001 6,392,214 1,349,213

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,902,900 1,902,900 - (1,902,900)

 Transfers out (4,633,777) (4,633,777) (4,840,282) (206,505)

Net transfers (2,730,877) (2,730,877) (4,840,282) (2,109,405)

Excess of revenues over budget 2,562,724 2,312,124 1,551,932 (760,192)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (573,073) (573,073)

Interest on board advances - - 486,649 486,649

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 79,398 79,398

Net income-GAAP basis 2,562,724$        2,312,124$        1,544,906$        (767,218)$          
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

Current Bridge

Reserved for Debt Capital

City Distribution Service Contingency Improvement Total

Cash and investments at September 30, 2011 4,170,498$              167,366$     501,628$         396,306$          5,235,798$      

Add:

Transfers in 4,608,653                124,776       -                      745,052            5,478,481        

Interest earned 1,785                   -                   570                  791                   3,146              

Total additions 4,610,438                124,776       570                  745,843            5,481,627        

Less payments:

Retirement of  Series Revenue Bonds -                              285,000       -                      -                       285,000          

Interfund transfers 4,170,498                12                -                      -                       4,170,510        

Interest and fiscal charges -                              7,130           -                      -                       7,130              

Total payments 4,170,498                292,142       -                      -                       4,462,640        

Cash and investments at September 30, 2012 4,610,438$              -$                 502,198$         1,142,149$       6,254,785$      

Cash and investments at September 30, 2012

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                            -$                 -$                    124,204$          124,204$         

Investments 4,608,653                -                   502,198           1,017,945         6,128,796        

Accrued interest 1,785                      -                   -                      -                       1,785              

4,610,438$              -$                 502,198$         1,142,149$       6,254,785$      
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 2,311,173$        2,311,173$        2,596,703$        285,530$           

  Rentals - - 11,111 11,111

  Other 60,000 60,000 40,607 (19,393)

  Total operating revenues 2,371,173 2,371,173 2,648,421 277,248

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 2,000 2,000 2,664 664

  Total non-operating revenues 2,000 2,000 2,664 664

  Total revenues 2,373,173 2,373,173 2,651,085 277,912

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 125,647 125,647 86,255 39,392

  Supplies 6,200 6,200 8,037 (1,837)

  Contractual and other services 305,577 335,577 268,110 67,467

  Repairs and maintenance - - 6,109 (6,109)

  Capital outlay - 25,000 - 25,000

  Total  administration 437,424 492,424 368,511 123,913

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 354,771 354,771 296,074 58,697

  Supplies 15,000 15,000 6,472 8,528

  Contractual and other services 38,028 38,028 49,727 (11,699)

  Repairs and maintenance 42,094 42,094 84,085 (41,991)

  Capital outlay 22,000 22,000 3,607 18,393

  Total operations 471,893 471,893 439,965 31,928

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,000$             12,000$             12,000$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,773,720 1,773,720 1,772,085 1,635

  Interest on board advances - - 486,649 (486,649)

  Bond related charges - - 17,043 (17,043)

  Bond principal requirement 820,000 820,000 - 820,000

  Total non-departmental expenses 2,605,720 2,605,720 2,287,777 317,943

  Total expenses 3,515,037 3,570,037 3,096,253 473,784

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 
(budget basis) before transfers (1,141,864) (1,196,864) (445,168) 751,696

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,343,736 1,343,736 671,868 (671,868)

Net transfers 1,343,736 1,343,736 671,868 (671,868)

Excess of revenues over budget 201,872 146,872 226,700 79,828

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,538,249) (1,538,249)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses 
per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 3,607 3,607

Net income-GAAP basis 201,872$           146,872$           (1,307,942)$       (1,454,814)$       
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS INTERNATIONAL CROSSING FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012

Current

Debt

Contingency Service

Reserve Series A-$26M

Cash and investments at September 30, 2011 33,762$              364,116$                  

Add:

Transfers 45,000             1,836,015              

Interest earned 68                    -                             

Total additions 45,068                1,836,015                 

Less payments:

Principal payments -                          450,000                    

Interfund transfers -                       (29)                            

Interest and fiscal charges -                          1,203,765                 

Total payments -                          1,653,736                 

Cash and investments at September 30, 2012 78,830$              546,395$                  

Cash and investments at September 30, 2012

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                        -$                              

Investments 78,830                546,395                    

78,830$              546,395$                  

- 184 -



Current

Debt

Service Capital

Series B-$13M Improvement Total

524,779$                  67,686$                 990,343$                          

671,866                 213,706              2,766,587                         

473                        66                       607                                   

672,339                    213,772                 2,767,194                         

370,000                    -                             820,000                            

-                                -                             (29)                                   

571,053                    -                             1,774,818                         

941,053                    -                             2,594,789                         

256,065$                  281,458$               1,162,748$                       

-$                              56,393$                 56,393$                            

256,065                    225,065                 1,106,355                         

256,065$                  281,458$               1,162,748$                       

- 185 -



Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 283,100$           283,100$           391,659$           108,559$           

  Other services - - 695 695

  Total operating revenues 283,100 283,100 392,354 109,254

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 3,443,993 3,443,993 747,961 (2,696,032)

  Investment earnings - - 2,726 2,726

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 18 18

  Other - - 1,001 1,001

  Total non-operating revenues 3,443,993 3,443,993 751,706 (2,692,287)

  Total revenues 3,727,093 3,727,093 1,144,060 (2,583,033)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,162,536 1,162,536 1,155,186 7,350

  Supplies 2,100 2,100 1,321 779

  Contractual and other services 144,476 144,476 125,116 19,360

  Repairs and maintenance 709,261 709,261 611,128 98,133

  Capital outlay 3,213,215 3,213,215 149,524 3,063,691

  Total expenses 5,231,588 5,231,588 2,042,275 3,189,313

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,504,495) (1,504,495) (898,215) 606,280

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,076,599 1,076,599 1,076,599 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (427,896) (427,896) 178,384 606,280

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (676,277) (676,277)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 149,524 149,524

Net income-GAAP basis (427,896)$          (427,896)$          (348,369)$          79,527$             

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EXPRESS  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Operating revenues:

  Fleet billings 2,730,000$        2,730,000$        2,893,897$        163,897$           

  Materials management 158,400 158,400 121,912 (36,488)

  Total operating revenues 2,888,400 2,888,400 3,015,809 127,409

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 5 5

  Other - - 14,962 14,962

  Total non-operating revenues - - 14,967 14,967

  Total revenues 2,888,400 2,888,400 3,030,776 142,376

Expenses:

 Materials management:

  Salaries and benefits 147,309 147,309 153,593 (6,284)

  Supplies 2,150 2,150 1,602 548

  Contractual and other services 2,100 2,100 808 1,292

  Repairs and maintenance 4,215 4,215 1,713 2,502

  Total  materials management 155,774 155,774 157,716 (1,942)

Fleet operations :

  Salaries and benefits 847,406 847,406 688,062 159,344

  Supplies 22,614 22,614 15,599 7,015

  Contractual and other services 1,608,300 1,608,300 2,092,216 (483,916)

  Repairs and maintenance 38,280 38,280 38,728 (448)

  Capital outlay 160,220 228,207 174,117 54,090

  Total fleet operations 2,676,820 2,744,807 3,008,722 (263,915)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,493$             12,493$             12,493$             -$                       

  Other - - 15,216 (15,216)

  Total non-departmental expenses 12,493 12,493 27,709 (15,216)

  Total expenses 2,845,087 2,913,074 3,194,147 (281,073)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) 43,313 (24,674) (163,371) (138,697)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (42,320) (42,320)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses per 
budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 174,117 174,117

Net income-GAAP basis 43,313$             (24,674)$            (31,574)$            (6,900)$              
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 8,621,009$        8,621,009$        7,873,119$        (747,890)$          

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 60,000 60,000 16,743 (43,257)

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 411 411

  Other - - 39 39

  Total non-operating revenues 60,000 60,000 17,193 (42,807)

  Total revenues 8,681,009 8,681,009 7,890,312 (790,697)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 212,361 212,361 226,160 (13,799)

  Supplies 3,000 3,000 2,976 24

  Contractual and other services 1,259,971 1,259,971 1,225,604 34,367

  Self insurance claims 7,024,600 7,024,600 7,325,477 (300,877)

  Capital outlay 50,000 50,000 - 50,000

  Total expenses 8,549,932 8,549,932 8,780,217 (230,285)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 131,077 131,077 (889,905) (1,020,982)

Net income-GAAP basis 131,077$           131,077$           (889,905)$          (1,020,982)$       

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 1,222,368$        1,222,368$        405,938$           (816,430)$          

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 4,710 4,710

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 354 354

  Total non-operating revenues - - 5,064 5,064

  Total revenues 1,222,368 1,222,368 411,002 (811,366)

Expenses:

  Contractual and other services 50,000 50,000 64,154 (14,154)

  Self insurance claims 860,000 860,000 (71,137) 931,137

  Total expenses 910,000 910,000 (6,983) 916,983

Excess of revenues over budget 312,368 312,368 417,985 105,617

Net income-GAAP basis 312,368$           312,368$           417,985$           105,617$           

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Original 
Budget Final Budget

Actual 
Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 3,560,296$      3,560,296$      3,741,652$      181,356$         

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 81,000 81,000 70,200 (10,800)

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 11,609 11,609

  Other 208,000 208,000 355,743 147,743

  Total non-operating revenues 289,000 289,000 437,552 148,552

  Total revenues 3,849,296 3,849,296 4,179,204 329,908

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 270,144 270,144 162,200 107,944

  Supplies - 4,000 3,356 644

  Contractual and other services 1,370,777 1,366,777 1,349,858 16,919

  Self insurance 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,410,162 389,838

  Repairs and maintenance 1,572 1,572 22,653 (21,081)

  Total expenses 3,442,493 3,442,493 2,948,229 494,264

Excess of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers 406,803 406,803 1,230,975 824,172

 Transfers out - (2,035,009) - 2,035,009

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 406,803 (1,628,206) 1,230,975 2,859,181

GAAP basis adjustments: - - - -

Net income-GAAP basis 406,803$         (1,628,206)$     1,230,975$      2,859,181$      

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-charges for services 2,900,003$        2,900,003$        2,900,017$        14$                    

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 51,089 51,089

  Increase in the fair value of investments - - 12,212 12,212

  Other - - 30,076 30,076

  Total non-operating revenues - - 93,377 93,377

  Total revenues 2,900,003 2,900,003 2,993,394 93,391

Expenses:

  Capital outlay 1,396,662 1,435,457 1,018,715 416,742

  Total expenses 1,396,662 1,435,457 1,018,715 416,742

Excess  of revenues over expenses (budget basis) 1,503,341 1,464,546 1,974,679 510,133

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,931,019) (1,931,019)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses
   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,018,715 1,018,715

Net income-GAAP basis 1,503,341$        1,464,546$        1,062,375$        (402,171)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2012
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Contents

This part of the City of McAllen's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

Revenue Capacity

These shedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Debt Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local revenue 
source, the property tax.

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current levels 
of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

Operating Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the government's financial activities take place.

Th  h d l  t i  i  d i f t t  d t  t  h lp th  d  d t d h  th  i f ti  i  

Other Information
Information that City considers useful to its citizens is included in this section.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in 
the government's financial report related to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial report for the relevant year.



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















SchEdule 8 

City of McAllen, Texas 

Olrect and OW;t'lflpping Property Tax Rates 


Last Ten Fiscal Years 

{rate per SlQO ofasstsscd value) 


City Olrect Rates Overlapping Rates 
Fiscal Gcflet'al Hidalgo 
Yesr Tn ObligntilJo County 

Ended Roll Bask Debt Total School Distrkl$ --------- Drainage Ricl$;)go 
Direct McAlle~t Sl:mrvland P.SJ,A So. Tx Coi1Cie Hidalgo Edinburg 

2003 2002 $ 036 5 0.06 $ 0.42 $ 154 $ 154 $ L6! $ om $ 157 $ 1.59 $ 005 $ 059 
2004 2003 036 0.06 0.42 1.54 1.54 1.61 om 157 1.59 0.04 0.59 
2005 2004 0.42 0.42 1.54 1.57 1.6t (},02 159 1.58 (},04 059 
2006 2005 0.42 0.42 154 1.57 L61 (L 15 1.59 1..'19 004 0.59 

~ 2007 200G IJ42 0.47 1.61 1.57 L61 0.15 1.61 L5S 005 0.59 
0 w 2008 2007 OAI 0,01 0.42 lAg !.55 1.52 0.15 1.54 1.45 0.07 0.59 

2009 2008 0.41 0,01 0.42 US 1.19 1.2! 0.J5 1.32 1.12 0.07 059 
2010 2009 0.41 0.01 0.42 Ll7 1.19 IX] 0.15 US 119 0.07 059 
2011 2010 0.41 0.01 OAJ. !.I7 1.19 1.27 (US US ! 19 {!.O7 059 
ZOt2 2011 041 0.01 0.42 Ll7 1.20 136 0.15 JA4 1.24 0.Q7 0.59 





























This section contains information regarding grant activity, which was audited under the guidelines of the 
United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement.
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ps&Co.I Padgett Stratemann 


Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over 

Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 


Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 


To the Hcnorable Mayor, 

Members of the City Commission, 

Utillty Chairman, and Trustees 


CltyofM(:Allen, Texas 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the !)uslness--type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Citv of McNlen, Texas (the 
"'Clty") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basiC 
financial statements. and have issued our report thereon dated february 26,2013, We condu{:ted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of Amerka and the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the: United States. 

intema! Control Oller Finartdal Repcrling 

Manag~meflt of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
fimmclal reporting. In phmnmg and performing our audit, we considefe<l the CIty'S interral control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures fur the purpOS€ of expressing our 

opinions on the financial statements, but riOt fur the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's Internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists. when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

maoagement or emp!oyees, In the normal coutse of performing thefr assigned functii.',ms, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a defiCiency, or combination 
of defICiencies, if! internal control. such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a 

timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the Hmited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not deSigned to identify all deficiencies in internal contror 
over financial reporting that might be defldencies, significant defidencies, ot material weaknesses. We 
did not identify any deficiencil'ts in internal cOritrol over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined previously. 

SANANTONtO AUSTIN 
100 NJf, lOOP 410, SUITE llCC 811 MitTON $Pfl::-IGS ROAO, SUITE 55:) rem fREE: 800879 4966 

SAN AmONtO, n:XAS 7ti2.16 AUSTU',,- 'TliXAS 78704 WE:S: f'ADGETT.(PA.CQM 

21C!!:l:S6.?1l1 511 011&0117 
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Compliance omi Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Ot(s financial statements are ffee of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regufations, contracts, grant agreements, and the Public Funds Investment ACt, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and materia! effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opiniOl1 on compliance with those provisIons was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not eXpress such an opinion. The res-uits of our tests disclosed no instances of 
no{)compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 
Of the Publle Funds Investment Act. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the City, 
members of the City Commission, federa! and state awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and IS 
not lntended to be, and should not be, used by a...~yone other than these spacITl€d parties. 

0/;~,I t; UP. 
Certified Public Accovntants 
February 26, 2013 



ps&eo.l Padgett Stratemann 


Independent Auditors' Report On Compliance With 

Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material 


Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control 

Over Compliance in Accordance With OMS Circular A-133 


To the Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Commission 

Utility Chairman, and Trustees 
City of McAllen, Texas 

Compliance 

We have audited the City of McAllen, Texas' (the "City,"} compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMS Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect 011 each of the (fry;; major federal programs fO'r the year ended September 30, 2012, 
The OtYs major fede-ral programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compl'ilnce witn the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants app!icable to ~ach of its major federal programs is the responsibitity of 
the City's management, Our responsibmty is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on 
our audit, 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generalty accepted in the 
united States of America; the standards applicable to financial iludits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMS Circular A-ln, Audits of 
States; Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgonizf1tiotlS. Those standards and OMS Circular A·B3 
require that we pliln and petform the atJdit to obtaln reasonable 3S;Uf3rJJ::e about whether 
noncompliance with the types: of compliance requirements referred to abov€ that eQuid have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit Includes exarTHnll1(, on a test basis, 
evidence about the City's compHance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary In the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our audit does nnt provide a legal determination of the City'S compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, the City wmplied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have it direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year ended 
September 30, 1012. 

SAN ANTONIO AUSTIN 
100 N r lOOP4jO, StinE 1100 Sll1V<!<TON SPIUNGS ROA~, swre SSG TOll ~!ln, 000$79 49&6 

SAN AMON10, HtAS hiHG AUSTIN, TEXAS 78104 WEll; PAOGm"CPAJ::OM 

lWBlSfi231 S)14/f.t1717 
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ps&Co.I Padgett Stratemann 


Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With 


Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material 


Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control 

Over Compliance in Accordance With the 


State of Texas Single Audit Circular 


To the Honorable Mavor, 
Members of [he City Commission, 

Utility Chairman, and Trustees 
City of McAllen, Texas 

Compliance 

We have audited the City of McAllen, Texas' (the "City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the State of Texas Single Audit Circular that could have a direct and material 

effect on the City's major state program for the year ended September 30, 2011. The City's major state 
program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs . Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations. contracts, and 
grants applicable to its major state program is the responsibilitV of the City's management. Our 
responsibility is to eMpress an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit at compliance in accordance with auditing standards general1y accepted in the 

United States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of Texas Single Audit 
Circular. Those standards and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state program for the year ended 

September 30, 2012. 

SAN ANTONIO AUSTIN 

100 IU . lOOP 410, sum 1100 811 GARTON sPRI~GS R.OAO, SUITE SSO lOll FlUE: BOO BH .,66 

SAN ANTO~IO. TrxAS 78216 AusnN, T£XAS 7870­ W£8: PAOGm·C'A.COM 
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- 223 ­





CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 


NOTES TO SCHED ULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE A WARDS 


Year Ended September 30, 2012 

Federal GraDlorl Federal Pass-Througb PrDeram 
PaS$--Through CFDA Grantor's or Award DisbursementsJ 

GrantorlProgra m Title Number Number Amount Expend itures 

U.S. Department ofHouJing and Urban Dnelopmenf 
Diretl Program: 

Community Development Block Grant: 
)6th Year Entitlement Grant 14.2 18 CBI OMC48506 1,936,487 $ 1.476,84 1 
)7lh Year Entitlement Grant 14.218 CB II MC48506 1,6 18.7&9 9$4,65) 
18th Year Entitlement Gram 14 .218 CB 12MC48506 1,601,178 
ARM - Homeless ~nllon Dnd RapliJ Re-Housing 

Program 14 .257 S09-48-MY-48-0505 733,518 139,524 
Disuter Recovery Grant 14.228 4,027,591 999,)13 
PIUI t"raugh Hldmgo County I UrbaJI 

DHiIll1 Pro,rtlm 14.257 S09-UY-48-()501 1)5,887 60,143 
Home Program 14 .239 MOSM0I80506 600,183 97,5)8 
Home Prog.ram 14.2J9 M09MC480506 664.689 61,4)9 
Home Program 14.2)9 MIOMC4805Q6 664,307 
Home Program 14.2)9 MI JMC480506 585.793 
Home Program 14.239 MI2MC4805Q6 465,925 

TOI.lI U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 3,789,450 

U.S. Otpartmenl orTransporlation 
Direct Program: 

Airpon Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0 14 4-15 5,890.708 48,945 
AitpOf"t Improvement Progrwn 20. 106 3-48-t114-4-40 912, 14 5 41,904 
Airpon Improvemrnt Prognun 20.106 3-48-0144-41 87,122 52,699 
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144·42 4,318,8n 246,841 
Airpon Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0144-43 680,373 179,257 
Federal Transit Administmlion 20.507 TX-90-X733-00 1,823,797 
Federal Transit Administration 20.507 TX-90-X778-00 1,679,250 119,6 19 
Federal Transit Administration 20.'07 TX-90-X830-01 1,337,939 ],424 

Fcdet1.1 Transit Administration 20.52 1 TX-57·XOJO-OO 108,087 104 
Fedml T~sil Administrati on 20507 TX-90-X906-00 1.962.520 )54,409 
Ftdua1 Transil AdminiSlration 20.5 16 TX-J7-X035-00 885.105 19),586 
Federal Transit Administmtion 20.507 TI<-90-X937-OO ' .207,312 
Fedual Transit AdminiSlnltion 20.500 TX-04.00 I0-00 495.000 
Federal Transit Administration TX-88-000I -OO 1,906,908 
Federal HlgltwayAdministral[on 20.205 STP 201 1(243)TE 9]),069 
Federal Hlglrway AdmJllislraJlon 20.205 CSJ 0921-02-204 800,000 

STEP/Comprchensive Grunt 20.600 201 2-McAllenP-S_1 YG·0044 24,976 15,587 
STEPllmpain:d Driving Mobilization Grant 20.600 2012-McA1JcnPD- ID M-OOOO2 14,984 10,54) 

STEP/Click II or Tickcl 20_600 20 IJ-McAllenPD-C IOT -0003 1 6,958 3,485 
Relocation or 10lh Street 20.600 CSJ 0621-O 1-()95 600,000 61.1 92 

Tolll U.S. Department of Transportation , 1,3)0,194 

- 225 ­



CITY OF McALLEN, n:XAS 


NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE A WARDS 


Year Ended September 30, 2012 

Federal Grantor! 

Pass-Tbrougb 


Grantor/Prognm Title 


U.S. Department of Justice 

Dirttt Program: 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance: Grant 

U.s. Environmental Protection Agency 

Pass through ARRA - Te:ms Wmer 

Developmellt Board 


Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Border Interoperability Demonstration Project 

Pass through Texas Department of Public Safety 
Pass through Division ofErnergency Management 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
Repetitive Flood Claims Progrnm 
Stalt Homeland Security Program 
State Homeland Security Program - LETPA 
State Homeland Security Program - LETPA 

Total U.S. Department Hometand Security 

U.S Department ofEner~ 
ARRA - Energy Efficiency & Conservation 

Bluck Grant 

Total U.S. Department of Energy 

U.S Department of the Interior 
Pass through Texas Historical Commission 


Cenified Local Government Program 


Total U.S. Department of me Interior 

Total federal financiat assistance expended 

Federal Pass-Through 
CFDA Grantor's 

Number Number 

16.738 
16.738 

66.458 

97.120 

97.042 

97,039 

97.067 
97.067 
97.073 

81.128 

2011-DJ-8X-J045 

2012-DJ-BX-030 I 

TWDB#72933 

2011·PD-120-0007 
12TX-EtvlPG-0713 

FEMA 1780-008 
fEMA 1780-007 
FEMA 1780-007 
RFC-FYl2-oo3 
2011-55-00019 
2011-55-000 19 

20 10-SS-TO-0008 

DE-5COOO2917 

TX-tl-027 

Program 
or Award Disbursements! 
Amount Expenditures 

33,263 S 33,263 
25,924 

33,263 

39,485,000 5,420,000 

5,420,000 

],597,613 1,225,620 

48,389 44,816 

341,997 163,186 
39,311 9,518 

1,311,446 95,193 
31 J ,050 
257,714 
234,846 
57,353 57,353 

1,595,686 

1,292,500 603,705 

603,705 

22,500 19,300 

19,300 

$ 12,791,598 
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CITY OF McALLEN, n:XAS 


NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE A WARDS 


Year Ended September 30,2012 

Federal GrantQr! Federal Pass*Throllgh 
Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's 

GrantorfProgram Title Number Number 

Texas Agencies 
T:xas Comptroller of Public Accounts 

Texas State Unive~ily 
Texas Oflh~ ofjh;:; At:Qmcy Gener,,1 
Texas Office oflhe Al10mey Ge-:1crr.1 
Texas DepUlfllCnI ofPubllc Safet)' 

Texas D:::partmenl of franSfll)J1tl\ion: 
Safe Rou1<:s to School 
Routine Airport Maintenance Program 
Rouline j\lrporl Maintenru:ct Program 

Pass 'flm;.ugh" City ofBrownsvilk 

Aulo Theft Prevenlkm 201:? 
Au!0 TheR Pr<:vention 201 J 

Pass Through - Lower Rio Grande VaHey DeveL Council 
Texas Pill'ks and Wildlife 
Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Texas Com.mission on Environmental Quali!y: 

Pass lhrough-
LRGVDC - Reginal Solid Waste Grant Program 

9),991 
93,991 

T 0bacco Comp:ia:nl:¢ (iran! 20 12 
;'obacco C'omp:i:;m,;'C GrUll! 2013 

VeLG'l2 
VCLG'LJ 

LGClll GNder S¢curity Pragrnm 

C$JJf 0921 ·02·196 
CSSP M221MCALN 
CSJn M32IMCAlJ, 

SAOOTO[ 10041 12 
SAOOTOllOO,!1 13 

FY 12,5307 Grunt 
50-000401 
51·000062 

13·21·C;OJ 

TOJa~ fcdcral-and stale nnand81 rE'sistance expenlkd 

Program 
Or' Award Disbursemt<nt'>l 
AmOunt Expenditures 

5,000 

5,IC';} 
39,ot6 
39,Ol6 
75,000 

$ 4-.843 

35,712 
2,598 

19.960 

565,690 
50,O{JO 
50,000 

28.579­

288,439 
292.408 
23M3? 

1,625,000 
315,000 

240.239 
23,189 

23M37 

13.800 

$ 13,383,415 
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CITY Of' McALLEN, TEXAS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENJ}!TURES OF n:DERAL AND STATE AWARDS 


Year Ended September 30, 2012 


1. General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of federal and Stale Awards presents the activity of all 
federal and state award programs of City of y1cAHen, Texas, for the year ended September 30. 20J 1, 
The reporting entIty consists of the primary government, organizations tor which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and oth~r organizations for which the primary govenunent is not 
accotmtabte, but for which the nature and significance ofthejr relationship with the primary government 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 

Financial accountability exists if a primary govemment appoints a voting majority of an organization's 
governing Board and is either abJe to impose its will on that orgamzation Or there is a potential for tbe 
organization to provlde specific l1nancial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens 00, the 
primary government A primary govenunenl may also be firu.mdaHy accouotable for govemmental 
organizations with a separateiy elected governing Board, a goveming Board appointed by another 
governmt:ot, Or a jointly appointed Board that is fiscally dependent on the primary gO'vernrnenL 

In accordance with Govenunental Accounting Standards Board requirements, the Clty has reviewed 
other entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity and detennined that there are 
none; however. federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included on 
(he scheduie, 

2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The federal and state grant funds were accounted for in the Special Revenue Fund, a component of the 
Governmental Fund type,. and in an Enterprise Fund. T11e accounting and financial reporting treat.ment 
applied to a fund is detennined by iiS measurement focus. The Governmental Fund types are accounted 
for using a Current financial resourCes measurement focus. With the Govermnental Fund type 
measurement fOCllS, only current assets and current liabitities generally are included on the balance 
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (Le., revenues and other fmancing sources) 
and decreases (I.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used lor the Governmental Fund types. This basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, 
i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability 
is incurred. if measurable, except for certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which 
are recognized when the obligations are expected to be Uquidated with expendable available financial 
resources, 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a marUiel' 
similar to private business or where the governing body has decided that the determination of revenues 
eamed, costs incurred, andior net income is necessary for management accountability. Enterprise Funds 
are aCcollnted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of 
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